Public Document Pack

Legal and Democratic Services EPSOM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Wednesday 23 September 2020 at 7.30 pm

Place: Remote Meeting
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’.

The link to the meeting is: https://attendee.qotowebinar.com/register/845541343769587471

Webinar ID: 402-610-891
Telephone (listen-only): 020 3713 5012, Telephone Access code: 784-670-840

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Planning Committee meeting, on
the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Councillor Clive Woodbridge (Chair)  Councillor Jan Mason

Councillor Monica Coleman (Vice- Councillor Steven McCormick
Chair) Councillor Lucie Mclintyre
Councillor Alex Coley Councillor Debbie Monksfield
Councillor Neil Dallen Councillor Peter O'Donovan
Councillor David Gulland Councillor Clive Smitheram

Councillor Previn Jagutpal
Councillor Colin Keane

Yours sincerely

\(e\de~r

Chief Executive

For further information, please contact Democratic Services, email:
democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk.


https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/845541343769587471

Public information
Information & Assistance:

Please note that this meeting will be a ‘virtual meeting’

This meeting will be held online and is open to the press and public to attend as an observer using
free GoToWebinar software, or by telephone.

A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda and on the
Council’s website. A telephone connection number is also provided on the front page of this
agenda as a way to observe the meeting, and will relay the full audio from the meeting as an
alternative to online connection.

Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on the
Council’'s website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes.

Agendas, reports and minutes for the Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app
for iPad, Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information
regarding this Committee, please email us at Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk.

Exclusion of the Press and the Public

There are no matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose
confidential or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985. Should any such matters arise during the course of discussion of
the below items or should the Chairman agree to discuss any other such matters on the grounds of
urgency, the Committee will wish to resolve to exclude the press and public by virtue of the private
nature of the business to be transacted.

Public speaking

Public speaking in support or objection to planning applications is permitted at meetings of our
Planning Committee. As this meeting of the Committee will be held online, you must register in
advance if you wish to speak.

To register to speak at this Planning Committee meeting, please contact Democratic Services,
email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, tel: 01372 732000 in advance of the deadline
for registration, which is given below.

We will ask you to submit a written statement that can be read out at the meeting in the event of
any technical issues during the meeting. The statement must be of no more than 3 minutes in
length when read aloud.

If a number of people wish to speak on a particular application, public speaking will normally be
allocated in order of registration. If you fail submit your written statement, then your place may be
allocated to those on speakers waiting list. Further information is available by contacting
Democratic Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, tel: 01372 732000.

Deadline for public speaking registration: Noon, 18 September


https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

Guidance on Predetermination /Predisposition

The Council often has to make controversial decisions that affect people adversely and this can
place individual members in a difficult position. They are expected to represent the interests of
their constituents and political party and have strong views but it is also a well established legal
principle that members who make these decisions must not be biased nor must they have pre-
determined the outcome of the decision. This is especially in planning and licensing committees.
This Note seeks to provide guidance on what is legally permissible and when members may
participate in decisions. It should be read alongside the Code of Conduct.

Predisposition

Predisposition is lawful. Members may have strong views on a proposed decision, and may have
expressed those views in public, and still participate in a decision. This will include political views
and manifesto commitments. The key issue is that the member ensures that their predisposition
does not prevent them from consideration of all the other factors that are relevant to a decision,
such as committee reports, supporting documents and the views of objectors. In other words, the
member retains an “open mind”.

Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a decision will not be
unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination “just because” a member has done
anything that would indicate what view they may take in relation to a matter relevant to a decision.
However, if a member has done something more than indicate a view on a decision, this may be
unlawful bias or predetermination so it is important that advice is sought where this may be the
case.

Pre-determination / Bias

Pre-determination and bias are unlawful and can make a decision unlawful. Predetermination
means having a “closed mind”. In other words, a member has made his/her mind up on a decision
before considering or hearing all the relevant evidence. Bias can also arise from a member’s
relationships or interests, as well as their state of mind. The Code of Conduct’s requirement to
declare interests and withdraw from meetings prevents most obvious forms of bias, e.g. not
deciding your own planning application. However, members may also consider that a “non-
pecuniary interest” under the Code also gives rise to a risk of what is called apparent bias. The
legal test is: “whether the fair-minded and informed observer, having considered the facts, would
conclude that there was a real possibility that the Committee was biased’. A fair minded observer
takes an objective and balanced view of the situation but Members who think that they have a
relationship or interest that may raise a possibility of bias, should seek advice.

This is a complex area and this note should be read as general guidance only. Members who
need advice on individual decisions, should contact the Monitoring Officer.



AGENDA

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the
meeting.

15 BEECH ROAD, EPSOM, SURREY, KT17 4NH (Pages 5 - 16)

Proposed ground and first floor rear extension, ground and first floor side
extension and internal alterations.

WOODCOTE GROVE, ASHLEY ROAD, EPSOM, SURREY, KT18 5BW,
19/00999/FUL (Pages 17 - 100)

Demolition of existing office buildings and redevelopment of Application Site to
provide 98 apartments/dwellings, including conversion of the Grade II* Listed
Woodcote Grove and Grade Il Listed Stable Block, with parking, access,
landscaping and other associated works

WOODCOTE GROVE, ASHLEY ROAD, EPSOM, SURREY, KT18 5BW,
19/00998/LBA (Pages 101 - 130)

Development of 98 apartments/dwellings, including conversion of the Grade II*
Listed Woodcote Grove and Grade |l Listed Stable Block, with parking, access,
landscaping and other associated works, following the demolition of the existing
reprographics centre and conference centre (Listed Building Consent)



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

15 Beech Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT17 4NH

Ward: College Ward,;
Site: 15 Beech Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT17 4NH
Application for: Proposed ground and first floor rear

extension, ground and first floor side
extension and internal alterations

Contact Officer: Tom Bagshaw

1 Plans and Representations

1.1 The application is referred to committee as it was subject to a call in request
by Councillor Julie Morris.

1.2  The Council now holds this information electronically. Please click on the
following link to access the plans and representations relating to this
application via the Council’'s website, which is provided by way of
background information to the report. Please note that the link is current at
the time of publication, and will not be updated.

Link: http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QA7I6L
GYHSRO00

2 Summary

2.1 The proposal seeks planning permission for the erection of a single and two
storey side extension, with a single and two storey rear extension and a
front porch

2.2 The proposed two storey side extension is a modest size and would appear
subordinate to the main property. It is set back from the front of the property
and set in from the boundary of the neighbouring property by 1.1 metres
and would maintain characteristic gaps between properties preventing a
terracing effect. As such, it would not result in any unacceptable impact
upon the character of the area or appearance of the property.

2.3 The proposed front porch and single storey side extension are designed to
be subordinate to the main dwelling and are in keeping with the character
of the property and the surrounding area. The roof form of the extensions
are in keeping with the main property.

Page 5


http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QA7I6LGYHSR00
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QA7I6LGYHSR00
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QA7I6LGYHSR00

Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

2.4 The two storey rear and single storey rear extension are only visible from
the rear of the property. It is noted that the two storey rear extension would
be visible from the gardens of neighbouring properties. However, this is not
considered to be significant enough to warrant the refusal of the scheme on
these grounds. As such the proposed rear extensions are considered to be
acceptable in terms of design.

2.5 The materials of the proposals would match the existing property and
therefore would be in keeping with the character of the surrounding area..

2.6 The proposed side extensions are separated from the boundary of the
neighbouring property at No. 13a Beech Road. They would not be located
adjacent to any useable private amenity space and they are located next to
two windows both of which do not serve habitable rooms. As such, the
proposed extensions would not be considered to result in any unacceptable
impacts upon neighbouring amenity in terms of overbearing,
overshadowing or daylighting/sunlighting.

2.7 The proposed single storey rear extension is 3 metres in depth and would
not project beyond the rear of the building lines of either No. 17 or No. 13a
Beech Road. As such, it is not located adjacent to any useable private
amenity space at either property and it is not of a height or massing that
would result in any unacceptable impacts upon the neighbouring properties
in terms of overbearing, overshadowing or daylighting/sunlighting.

2.8 The proposed two storey rear extension would not breach the BRE 45
degree daylighting/sunlighting guidance to both neighbouring properties
and it would not project beyond the rear building line of either property. As
such, it would not be considered to result in any unacceptable impacts upon
either property in terms of overbearing, overshadowing or
daylighting/sunlighting.

2.9 The proposal will have conditions restricting the use of the flat roofs of the
property to maintenance purposes only and the side windows above ground
floor will be required to be none openable and obscurely glazed to 1.7
metres from finished floor level and as such, the proposal will not result in
any unacceptable impacts upon neighbouring amenity in terms of
overlooking.

Site description

3.1 The property is located within a built up area. The Site is comprised of a
semi-detached property in an area comprised mainly of semi-detached
dwellings. The property is located on the south side of Beech Road.

3.2 The property is not listed nor is it located within a Conservation Area.

Page 6



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2

Number: 20/00639/FLH

3 September 2020

4 Proposal

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a single and
two storey side extension, a single and two storey rear extension and a
front porch.

The proposed two storey rear extension would be 2.5 metres in depth; 5.5
metres to the eaves; 7.9 metres to the roof ridge; and 3.4 metres in width.

The proposed single storey rear extension would be 3.2 metres in height; 3
metres in depth; and, 7.6 metres in width.

The proposed two storey side extension would be 7 metres in depth; 5.6
metres in height to the eaves; 8.2 metres to the ridge; and 1 metre in width.

The proposed single storey side extension would be 3.2 metres in height;
8.2 metres in depth; and, 0.8 metres in width.

The proposed porch would be 0.7 metres in depth; 3 metres in height to the
eaves; 3.6 metres in height to the roof ridge; and 4.2 metres in width.

5 Comments from third parties

5.1

5.2

The application was advertised by means of letters of notification to 11
neighbouring properties. To date (07.09.2020) 9 letters of objection have
been received regarding:
o Overdevelopment

o Loss of light to 13a

o Overbearing

o Contrary to Householder design Guidance
o Lack of spacing between properties

o Materials out of character

o traffic/parking implications

8 letters of support were received regarding:

o Redevelopment of an old house
o Extensions in keeping
o No out of character due to mixed composition of surrounding area

Page 7



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

6 Consultations
6.1  N/A

7 Relevant planning history

Application Decision |Application detail Decision
number date

20/00562/CLP [29.04.2020 |Hip/gable loft conversion, rear Permit
dormer extension

8 Planning Policy

National Policy Planning Framework (NPPF) 2019

Chapter 4: Decision Making
Chapter 12: Achieving well-designed places

Core Strateqgy 2007

. Policy CS01 - General Policy
. Policy CS05 - The Built Environment

Development Management Policies Document 2015

. Policy DMQ9 - Townscape Character and Local Distinctiveness
. Policy DM10 - Design Requirements

Householder Applications: Supplementary Planning Guidance 2004

9 Planning considerations

9.1  Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
that applications be determined iin accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

9.2 The main issues identified in this case are design of the proposal; and its
impact upon the character and appearance of the area, the neighbouring
amenity (eg. Light, privacy, outlook) and in addition other material
considerations, in this case there is a potential ‘fallback’ position under
permitted development which should be given appropriate weight in
decision making.

Design and Character

9.3 The NPPF promotes attractive environments by creating well-designed
buildings in terms of appropriate massing, bulk, materials and details, and
in doing so, raising the profile of the borough in a positive way.

Page 8



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

9.4 Paragraph 3.7.5 of the Core Strategy states that new development should
enhance and complement local character, and be capable of integrating
well into existing neighbourhoods. Paragraph 3.7.6 goes on to state that
The Council will expect developments to be of a high quality, creating a safe
environment which enhances the public realm and which positively
contributes to the townscape.

9.5 Policy CS05 also states that the settings of heritage assets such as historic
buildings, conservation areas, archaeological remains, ancient
monuments, parks and gardens of historic interest will require higher
standards of design to protect and enhance these assets.

9.6 DM10 (Design Requirements for New Developments) identifies the most
essential elements which contribute toward the character and local
distinctiveness of a street or an area which should be respected, maintained
or enhanced, and includes the following:

e Prevailing development typology, including house type, sizes, and
occupancy;

e Prevailing density of the surrounding area;

e Scale, layout, height, form, massing;

e Plot width and format which includes spaces between buildings;
e Building line build up, set back, and front boundary; and

e Typical details and key features such as roof forms, window format,
building materials and design detailing of elevations, existence of grass
verges etc.

Rear two storey and single storey extension

9.7 The proposed two storey rear and single storey rear extensions would not
be visible from the streetscene. However, they would be visible from the
rear gardens of neighbouring properties.

9.8 Single storey rear extensions are common in the surrounding area and
therefore this element of the proposed extensions is considered to be
acceptable in terms of principle. The extension is not of an excessive size
or scale and would not have any unacceptable impacts upon the design or
character of the area. Therefore, this element of the proposal is acceptable
in terms of design and character.

Page 9



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

9.9 It is noted that two storey rear extensions are not common in the
surrounding area. However, the location of the proposed two storey rear
extension is not considered to be detrimental to the character of the area
and the surrounding character is not a conservation area. The two storey
rear extension is not considered to be of a size or scale that would have
any detrimental impacts upon the character or appearance of the
surrounding area from the rear of the property and would be acceptable in
terms of design.

Single and two storey side extension.

9.10 The proposal include a two storey/single storey side extension. neighbours
have raised that the prosed extensions would be out of character and
disproportionate with the streetscene

9.11 The proposed two storey side extension is set back from the front of the
property by 0.5 metres and is set in from the boundary of the neighbouring
property by 1.1 metres. The extension is a modest size with a width of 1
metre. This is well below 50% the width of the original property which has
a width of 5.9 metres. Therefore, the design of the proposed extension
would ensure that the extension remains subordinate to the main dwelling
and officers consider this to be a modest and proportionate addition to the
property.

9.12 The proposed single storey side extension would be set 0.3 metres from
the boundary of the property which would allow space for guttering. The
extension is a modest size with a width of 1.8 metres and in unison with the
two storey side extension would not be considered to result in an
unacceptable increase in the bulk or massing of the property and is design
to be proportionate to the main property.

Porch

9.13 The proposed porch would span the width of both the single storey and two
storey side extension and as such form a part of their character.

9.14 The porch is designed to match the character of the main property and the
roof relates well to the main dwelling. The main roof would be a mono pitch
roof whilst the doorway would be a small gable end which relates to the
front bay of the main dwelling.

9.15 Overall the porch is a modest addition and would not be considered to result
in any acceptable impacts upon the character or appearance of the
surrounding area as many nearby properties also feature front porches.

Impact Upon Amenity

Page 10



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

9.16 Policy CS05 of the Core Strategy and Development Management Policy
DM10 seeks to safeguard residential amenities in terms of privacy, outlook,
sunlight/daylight, avoidance of visual intrusion and noise and disturbances.

9.17 The main dwelling to consider in an assessment of the impacts upon
neighbouring amenity are the neighbouring properties at No. 17 Beech
Road to the west and No. 13a Beech Road to the east.

9.18 In addition to policy and when considering the amenity impact of the
proposal it is also identified that the applicant has a viable ‘fallback’ position,
which should be given weight as a material consideration in this case.

9.19 A ‘Fallback’ position refers to what development could take place if planning
permission under an application currently being considered is not granted.
This might be as a result of permitted development rights or an existing
planning permission.

9.20 In this case the applicant does not have a certificate of lawfulness to
formally confirm that a rear extension is permitted development, but Officers
confirm that a single storey rear extension to the height of 3m would be
permissible and is a realistic prospect in this case.

13a Beech Road

9.21 The proposed two storey side extension would not exceed the existing
depth of the property and would be set 1.1 metres from the neighbouring
property at No.13a Beech Road. As the extension does not project beyond
the existing rear of the property it is considered that it would not result in
any overshadowing or overbearing issues that would warrant the refusal of
the proposal.

9.22 Neighbour concern has been raised regarding the opening of a ground and
first floor side window at No. 13a Beech Road being restricted by the two
storey side extension and ground floor side extension. The proposed two
storey side extension is set 1.1 metres from the boundary of the
neighbouring property which in unison with the neighbouring properties
separation from the boundary is considered to be sufficient to open these
windows. Furthermore, these windows serve non-habitable rooms and thus
it is not considered to result in any unacceptable loss of
daylighting/sunlighting to any neighbouring habitable rooms.

Page 11



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

9.23 The proposed single storey side extension is set 0.3 metres from the
boundary of the property. It is located adjacent to an area of No. 13a Beech
Road which is not considered to be of a high amenity value and as such,
the proposed single storey side element of the extensions would not be
considered to result in any unacceptable overbearing, overshadowing or
daylighting/sunlighting to the neighbouring property at No. 13a Beech
Road. The proposal is set 0.3 metres from the boundary of the property
which is considered to be sufficient to allow for the opening of the ground
floor window for ventilation purposes.

9.24 The proposed two storey rear extension is set 2.1 metres from the boundary
of the neighbouring property at No. 13a Beech Road and is approximately
2.5 metres in depth. The height and depth of the extension would not
breach the BRE 45 degree Daylighting Sunlighting guidance to any
windows at neighbouring No. 13a Beech Road. The property at 13a Beech
Road has a natural deeper rear building line and is approximately 3.5
metres in depth beyond the rear of No. 15 Beech Road and as such, the
proposed extension would not be project beyond the existing rear of No.
13a Beech Road. Therefore. The location of the extension in unison with its
height and depth would not be considered significant enough to warrant the
refusal of the scheme on the ground of overbearing to No. 13a Beech Road.

9.25 The proposed single storey rear extension would be set 0.3 metres from
the boundary of No. 13a Beech Road and is 3 metres in depth and it would
not project beyond the rear building line of the neighbouring property. It is
not located adjacent to any useable private amenity space nor is it a height
scale or location that is considered to result in any unacceptable impacts
upon neighbouring amenity in terms of overbearing, overshadowing or
daylighting/sunlighting.

9.26 The proposed porch would be located at the front of the property and would
not be situated adjacent to any useable private amenity space. As such, the
proposed front porch would not be considered to result in any unacceptable
impacts upon neighbouring amenity in terms of overbearing,
overshadowing, overlooking or daylighting/sunlighting.

9.27 The proposed two storey side extension includes a first floor window on the
side elevation. In order to ensure that this window does not cause any
unacceptable overlooking impacts a condition will be imposed which
requires the window to be obscurely gazed an non openable below 1.7
metres from finished floor level. Furthermore the roof of the single storey
extension will be conditioned to ensure that it is only accessible for
maintenance purposes. Therefore, the proposals are not considered to
result in any unacceptable overlooking impacts to the neighbouring
property at No. 13a Beech Road.

17 Beech Road

Page 12



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

9.28 The proposed single storey rear extension is approximately 3 metres in
depth and would abut the boundary of the neighbouring property at No. 17
Beech Road. The 3.2 metre height of the extension would not be
permissible via permitted development however it is not uncommon for 3
metre depth extensions to be built along neighbouring boundaries via
permitted development rights. Officers consider that the additional height
of 0.2 metres to be the main issue in regards to the neighbouring amenity
due to the presence of what is a viable fall back option. Furthermore, the
neighbouring property at No. 17 features its own single storey rear
extension of a similar depth. These material considerations accounted for
the additional 0.2 metres above that which would be permitted development
would not result in any unacceptable impacts upon the neighbouring
property in terms of overbearing, overshadowing or daylighting/sunlighting
to No. 17 Beech Road.

9.29 The proposed two storey rear extension is set 2.5 metres from the boundary
of the neighbouring property at No. 17 Beech Road and is approximately
2.5 metres in depth. The height and depth of the extension would not
breach the BRE 45 degree Daylighting sunlighting guidance to any windows
at neighbouring No. 17 Beech Road. The property at 17 Beech Road has
an existing single storey rear extension that abuts the boundary and is
approximately 3 metres in depth and as such, the proposed extension
would not be of a location that would have any significant overshadowing
impacts to the neighbouring property due to the presence of an existing
extension of a greater depth. The location of the extension in unison with
its height and depth would not be considered significant enough to warrant
the refusal of the scheme on the ground of overbearing to No. 17 Beech
Road.

9.30 Neither properties feature side facing windows above ground floor level and
the extension will be conditioned to only be accessible for maintenance
purposes. Therefore it would not be considered to result in any
unacceptable overlooking impacts to the neighbouring property.

9.31 The proposed porch is located at the front of the property and n the eastern
side of the property. It would not be in close proximity to No. 17 Beech Road
and as such, it would not be considered to have nay unacceptable impacts
upon neighbouring amenity in terms of overbearing, overshadowing,
overlooking or daylighting/sunlighting to No. 17 Beech Road.

10 Conclusion

10.1 The proposed two storey side extension has no unacceptable impacts in
terms of design and character or neighbouring amenity as it is not located
adjacent to any useable amenity space and is a modest size and scale.

Page 13



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2

Number: 20/00639/FLH

3 September 2020

11

10.2 The proposed single storey side extension and front porch are modest
additions to the property and relate well to the main dwelling. They are not
of a size scale or location that would result in any unacceptable impacts
upon neighbouring amenity to the neighbouring property.

10.3 The single storey rear extension is not visible from the streetscene and it
would not project beyond the rear of the neighbouring properties and as
such it would not result in any unacceptable impacts upon neighbouring
amenity.

10.4 The proposed two storey extension would not have unacceptable visual
impact to the character of the area due to its located at the rear of the
property. It is a sufficient separation from both neighbouring properties in
order to mitigate any amenity impacts to neighbouring windows in terms of
daylighting/sunlighting or outlook.

10.5 There are therefore no harms that can be attributed to the proposed
development that would warrant the refusal of the scheme.

Recommendation

11.1 Approve subject to conditions

Planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions:

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the

following approved plans:

Drawing No 04 Rev D — Proposed Plans
Drawing No 05 Rev D — Proposed Elevations

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is
carried out in accordance with the approved plans to comply with Policy CS5 of
the Core Strategy (2007).

3. Prior to the occupation of development hereby approved, details and samples

of the external materials to be used for the development shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual
amenities and character of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the

Page 14



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development
Management Policies 2015.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-
enacting this Order) no windows or other openings (other than those hereby
approved) shall be formed in the side walls of the extensions hereby approved
without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the occupiers of the adjoining
residential properties in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements
for New Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Development
Management Policies Document Adopted October 2015.

5. The roof of the extension hereby permitted shall not be converted or used as a
balcony or a sitting out area, and no access shall be gained except for
maintenance purposes.

Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining residential
properties in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for New
Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Development
Management Policies Document Adopted October 2015.

6. Before any occupation of the development hereby permitted, any windows
above ground floor level on the east elevation shall be constructed so that no
part of the framework less than 1.7m above finished floor level shall be
openable. Any part below that level shall be fitted with, and retained in, obscure
glazing of a patterned type only which shall thereafter be retained as such.
Obscure glazed windows should be obscured to minimum of level 3 of the
Pilkington Scale. The use of any type of film or material affixed to clear glass is
not acceptable for the purposes of this Condition.

Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining residential
properties in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for New
Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Development
Management Policies Document Adopted October 2015

Informative(s):

1 In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement
in the National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a
positive and proactive way. We have made available detailed advice in the
form or our statutory policies in the Core Strategy, Supplementary Planning
Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as
offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure that the
applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which is
likely to be considered favourably.

Page 15



Planning Committee  Planning Application Agenda Item 2
Number: 20/00639/FLH
3 September 2020

2 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of
the Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation.
These cover such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection
of a new building or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change
of use of buildings, installation of services, underpinning works, and fire
safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to demolish existing
buildings must be given to the Council’s Building Control Service at least 6
weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with
detailed plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is
commenced.

3 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to
your neighbours and do not undertake work before 8am or after 6pm Monday
to Friday, before 8am or after 1pm on a Saturday or at any time on Sundays
or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all vehicles associated
with the construction of the development hereby approved are properly
washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers
to control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the
Clean Air Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and
advice, please contact - Environmental Health Department Pollution Section.

4 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal

agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

e carry out work to an existing party wall;

e build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

¢ in some circumstances, carry out groundwork’s within 6 metres of an

adjoining building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the
building owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning
Controls. The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has
obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing
said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for
the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information
and advice is to be found in “The Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - Explanatory
Booklet”.

Page 16



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Ward: Woodcote Ward
Site: Woodcote Grove, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT18 5BW
Application for Demolition of existing office buildings and redevelopment of

Application Site to provide 98 apartments/dwellings,
including conversion of the Grade II* Listed Woodcote
Grove and Grade |l Listed Stable Block, with parking,
access, landscaping and other associated works

Contact Officer: Ginny Johnson

Plans and Representations

1.1 The Council now holds this information electronically. Please click on the following link to
access the plans and representations relating to this application via the Council’'s website,
which is provided by way of background information to the report. Please note that the link
is current at the time of publication, and will not be updated.

Link: http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-
applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

Summary

21 The application was presented to Planning Committee on 23 July 2020 with an Officer’s
recommendation for approval. Planning Committee deferred the application on the basis
that it required further information on a range of matters, including:

Block A

Block F

Density

Housing Mix

Private amenity space, including details of children’s play area
Heritage

Highways and car parking

Affordable housing

Trees.

2.2 The Applicant has prepared additional information, which was subject to formal
consultation.

2.3 The application proposes 98 apartments/dwellings, including the conversion of Grade II*
listed Woodcote Grove (otherwise referred to as “Mansion House”) and Grade Il listed
Stable Block, with parking, access, landscaping and other associated works, following the
demolition of the existing reprographics centre and conference centre. The proposed
development is a distillation of extensive engagement between the Applicant, Officers and
Statutory Consultees and technical work undertaken by the Applicant team.

24 The proposed scheme is considered to viably offer eight affordable units, at the proposed
tenure mix of seven shared ownership and one social rented unit. These are proposed
within Building A (otherwise referred to as “Block A”). The development appraisal shows
that the scheme produces a surplus of £15,950, agreed as a payment in-lieu.

Page 17


http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

2.5 90 car parking spaces would be provided at the Site, of these 9 are disability spaces. In
addition, there would be 122 cycling spaces. The Local Planning Authority’s car parking
standard require 101 car parking spaces for the development.

26 The refurbishment and conversion of the Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove and Grade I
listed Stable Block to residential use is considered acceptable in principle. The internal
refurbishment is considered acceptable and the exterior alterations are considered to
preserve the special historic interest of the buildings.

2.7 The proposal seeks a coherent layout that opens up the link between the two listed
buildings, achieved through the orientation of new buildings, sensitive design and careful
landscaping. The architectural character of the development is considered to respond to
the Site’s surroundings, but with a more contemporary and sustainable context.

2.8 The proposed new building (Block F) adjacent to the Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove
would replace the former Atkins office building. It was initially envisaged as part of an
earlier development that the existing office building would be removed from the Site to
improve the setting of the Grade II* Woodcote Grove. However, the Local Planning
Authority’s severe housing land supply deficit and the requirements of the National
Planning Policy Framework (“NPPF”, or the “Framework”) mean that all sites should be
considered for optimisation. The design of Block F is considered acceptable, subject to
details and finishes being secured by Condition, subject to planning permission being
granted. It is established that retaining a building in this location would have a less than
substantial harm. This harm must be weighed against the public benefits of the scheme,
which are considered wide ranging in this case.

29 When employing the presumption in favour of sustainable development, the adverse
impacts of this development are not held to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework.

Site description

3.1 The Application Site (“Site”) measures 1.29 hectares in size and comprises five buildings,
including a Grade II* and Grade Il listed building.

3.2 The Site presently forms part of the wider Atkins campus. Planning permission was granted
on 26 January 2015, under application ref: 14/01150/FUL, for a new office building. This
is located immediately adjacent to this Site in question. Due to the new office building,
which is nearing completion, the buildings located on this Site, are considered surplus to
requirements. In essence, Atkins has consolidated its office requirements on the adjacent
Site.

3.3 The Site is immediately bound by the Atkins Office building and its associated car park to
the north. It is bound by woodland to the east (falling within the Green Belt) and by a wall
to the south and west.

3.4 To the south of the Site is Chalk Lane, which comprises a hotel (benefiting from planning
permission to accommodate 21 dwelling units, application ref: 17/01275/FUL), residential
properties and a pub. To the north-west of the Site is Worple Road, which typically
comprises residential properties. The Site is located approximately 1.8 kilometres from
Epsom town centre.

3.5 The Site is currently accessed from Ashley Road, to the north-east, which falls within the
Green Belt. The proposal seeks an underground car park (beneath proposed Block F),
which is accessed via the existing access off Ashley Road. The proposal also seeks a new
vehicular access along Chalk Lane.

Page 18



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

The Site is designated as a Built up Area and is within the Chalk Lane Conservation Area.
As above, the Site comprises a Grade II* and Grade Il listed building and a wall. In
accordance with Historic England’s records, the wall surrounding the Site is not
independently listed.
The surrounding area also comprises the following listed buildings:

e Chalk Lane Hotel. Grade Il listed.

Maidstone House. Grade |l listed.

2,4,5,6, 8,10, 12 and 14 Chalk Lane. Grade Il listed.

Woodcote Green House. Grade II* listed.

South East Boundary Wall to Woodcote Mews. Grade |l listed.
e South East Boundary Wall to 1 Woodcote Mews. Grade Il listed.

The Site is located within a sustainable location:

. The nearest bus stops are on Ashley Road, approximately 0.2 miles from the Site
(approximately three minute walk), with buses travelling towards Tadworth and
Crawley, to the south-east

. Epsom train station is located approximately 1.3 kilometres to the north of the Site
(approximately 18 minute walk)

. Epsom Downs train station is located approximately 3.2 kilometres to the east of the
Site (approximately 40 minute walk)

. Tattenham Corner is located approximately 3.2 kilometres to the south-east of the

Site (approximately 35 minute walk)
The Site is located within Flood Zone 1 (low probability of flooding).
Descriptions and details of the five existing buildings at the Site are provided below:
Woodcote Grove

Woodcote Grove (otherwise referred to as “Mansion House”) is a Grade II* listed building.
It is four storeys in height, including a basement and attic and comprises office floor space.

Stable Block

The Stable Block is a Grade Il listed building. It is two storeys in height and comprises
office floor space.

Atkins office building

The Atkins office building is four storeys in height and comprises office floor space. This
building is in the process of being demolished.

Planning permission was granted on 26.01.2015, under ref: 14/01150/FUL, for a new office
building at W S Atkins Ltd, Woodcote Grove. The formal description of development is as
follows:

Proposed new office building (use class B1) of 9924m GIA with associated revised

access and parking, demolition of existing blocks A, B and C with the reinstatement of
land and landscaping of site

Page 19



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Condition 3 of planning permission ref: 14/01150/FUL sets out that the existing office
blocks shall be demolished and resultant material removed from the Site within 6 months
of first occupation of the new building. The Atkins office building identified within this
application in question, is an office block required to be demolished under ref:
14/01150/FUL.

Conference centre

The conference centre is a single-storey building, used for conferences and as a canteen.

Print room

This is single-storey building, in use for printing services.

Proposal

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The Site presently forms part of the wider Atkins campus, but is considered surplus to
requirements, since Atkins consolidated its office requirements under application ref:
14/01150/FUL, granted on 26.01.2015. This adjacent office building, approved under ref:
14/01150/FUL, is nearing completion.

The proposal seeks to demolish the existing office buildings and redevelop the Site to
provide 98 flats/dwellings. The below paragraphs set out further information regarding this
proposal.

As above, planning permission was granted in 2015 under application ref: 14/01150/FUL,
for a new office building at W S Atkins Ltd, Woodcote Grove. Condition 3 of this planning
permission required existing office blocks to be demolished within 6 months of first
occupation of the new building. The four storey Atkins office block (located at the south-
eastern part of this Site in question) was identified for removal. This building is being
demolished and it is proposed to be replaced with residential accommodation (proposed
Block F).

The proposal includes the conversion of the Grade II* listed building Woodcote Grove and
Grade |l listed Stable Block to residential use. Parking, access, landscaping and other
associated works are also proposed.

A Listed Building Consent application was submitted in tandem with this application,
under ref: 19/00998/LBA. This was also deferred by Planning Committee on 23 July
2020.

The following development is proposed:

Building A (otherwise referred to as “Block A”) (plots 1-8)

The existing print room, proposed to be demolished, measures 4 metres in height, from
the surrounding courtyard. Building A is proposed in this location.

The general height of Building A is 8.275 metres, measured from surrounding site level

(the existing ground level has been excavated by 500mm as part of the proposed
development).

Page 20



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

4.13

Building A is located at the north-western end of the Site. This comprises an irregular
shape and is two storeys in height, with an eaves height of 63.55 metres AOD and a ridge
height of 66.44 metres AOD. This building would provide eight flats: four flats at ground
floor level and four at first floor level. The below table provides a breakdown of the housing
mix for Building A:

Building A
Floor 2B4P 3B5P Total
Ground Floor 3 1 4
First Floor 3 1 4
Total 6 2 8

Stable Block (otherwise referred to as “Building B”) (plots 9-12)

Building B seeks the conversion of the Grade Il listed Stable Block to residential use. This
building seeks the provision of four flats: two flats at ground floor level and two flats at first
floor level. The below table provides a breakdown of the housing mix for Building B:

Building B
Floor 1B2P
Ground Floor 2
First Floor 2
Total 4

Buildings C and D (otherwise referred to as “terraces” or “houses”) (plots 13-26)

The existing conference building, proposed to be demolished, measures 6.02 metres in
height, measured from ground level to roof apex.

Buildings C and D are two identical rows of terraces. Each row comprises seven dwellings,
totalling 14 dwellings in total. These comprise two-bedroom, four person houses.

The general building height for proposed Buildings C and D is 8.2 metres. Building C is
two-storeys in height, with an eaves height of 64.27 metres (AOD) and a ridge height of
66.8metres (AOD). Building D is two-storeys in height, with an eaves height of 64.05metres
(AOD) and a ridge height of 66.94metres (AOD).

Building C and D

Building C D
2 storey House (2B4P) 7 7
Total 7 7

Page 21



23.09.2020

4.14

4.16

417

4.18

4.19

19/00999/FUL

Agenda Item 3

Woodcote Grove (otherwise referred to as “Mansion House” or “Building E”) (plots 27-22)

Building E seeks the conversion of the Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove. This seeks the

provision of seven flats:

Building E
Floor 1B2P 2B4P 3B5P 3B6P Total
Basement 2 2
Ground 1 1 2
Floor
First Floor 1 1(DUPLEX) | 1(DUPLEX) | 3
Second
Floor
Total 7

Block F (otherwise referred to as “Building F” (plots 34-98)

Block F is a new build, replacing the existing office building at the south-eastern end of the
Site. This comprises a basement, with a vehicular access ramp leading to Ashley Road.
This building seeks the provision of 65 flats.

The height of the existing office building is as follows:

¢ 11.8 metres to ridge (measured from Garden Square level)

e 15.2 metres to top of lift overrun (from Garden Square level)

The proposed general building height of Block F is15.4 metres (from Garden Square level

to ridge).
The below table provides a breakdown of the housing mix for Building F:
Building F Finished Floor Level
(FFL)

Floor 1B2P 2B3P 2B4P Total FFL (AOD)
Ground 6 1 7 14 59.63 (AOD)
Floor
First Floor 4 5 7 16 62.63 (AOD)
Second 4 5 7 16 65.63 (AOD)
Floor
Third Floor | 6 1 6 13 68.63 (AOD)

Page 22




23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

5

5.1

4.20

Fourth Floor | 2 2 2 6 71.63 (AOD)

Total 22 14 29 65 Ridge: 74.88 (AOD)

The proposed basement of Block F comprises 61 car parking spaces, 8 disabled spaces,
totalling 69 car parking spaces. It also comprises 4 motorcycle spaces.

Comments from third parties

The application was advertised by means of letters of notification to 126 neighbouring
properties. 89 letters of objection were initially received regarding:

5.2

Update

5.3

Principle of development

Density, massing and design
Adverse visual impact

Adverse impact on historical significance of listed buildings, wall and the character of
Conservation Area

Impact on neighbouring amenities
Loss of light/overbearing

Loss of outlook

Noise

Traffic/Parking implications

Flood risk

Ecology and biodiversity

Green Belt

A response from Woodcote (Epsom) Residents’ Society was received, regarding (inter
alia) proposed Block F, traffic and parking impact, lack of affordable housing units and new
pedestrian gateway within the wall

A response from Epsom Civic society was received, regarding (inter alia) the principle of
Block F, the height, massing and design of Block F, the proposed buildings do not
compliment the listed buildings and Conservation Area, the pedestrian access into the wall,
vehicular access from Chalk Lane, lack of car parking, emergency access to the Site,
potential construction works and refuse.

A response from the Jockey Club was received. The comments are references and
addressed within this report

A response from The Durdans Stables was received, regarding the secondary route and
emergency access at Chalk Lane

A Site Notice was displayed and the application was advertised in the local paper.

Following deferral by Planning Committee on 23 July 2020, the Applicant prepared additional
information. The Local Planning Authority re-consulted accordingly (21 days) and a Site
Notice was displayed and the application was advertised in the local paper. 161 letters of
objection have been received regarding:

The amended proposal is not materially different from the application deferred at Planning
Committee

Principle of development

Residential provision (need for housing)

Density, massing and design

Accommodation mix

Page 23



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

6

6.1

e  Affordable housing/viability

e  Adverse visual impact

Adverse impact on historical significance of listed buildings, wall and the character of
Conservation Area

Private amenity space

Loss of light/overbearing

Noise

Traffic/parking implications (too few car parking spaces proposed)
Flood risk

Ecology and biodiversity (wildflower)

Sustainability, environment, climate change

e A response from Woodcote (Epsom) Residents’ Society was received, regarding (inter
alia) density, housing mix, private amenity space, impact of Block F on Mansion House,
inadequate car parking provision and implications of overspill parking.

e A response from Epsom Civic society was received, regarding (inter alia) the Site’s
planning history and the principle of Block F, the impact of Block F on Mansion House and
the impact of development on Conservation Area. Objection to proposed highways junction
improvements and construction access, density, housing mix and private amenity space.

e A response on behalf of The Board at Sandown Lodge Estate, regarding principle of
development, impact of development on character of area, density, affordable housing,
Block F and traffic implications.

Consultations

The following consultees were consulted on the application. Following deferral at Planning
Committee in July 2020, the applicant prepared additional information. The ‘updated responses’
relate to the latest replies received by consultees.
e  Thames Water (02.09.2019): No objection, informative recommended
e Natural England (06.03.2020): No comments to make
Natural England updated response (14.08.2020): No additional comments
e  The Georgian Group (20.09.2019): Does not wish to formally comment
e  The Victorian Society (24.09.2019): No comments to make
The Victorian Society updated response (18.08.2020): No additional comments

e Ecology (09.10.2019): No Objection, subject to conditions

Ecology updated response (07.09.2020): No objection. Request updated
recommendations section of report.

e  SCC Archaeology (20.02.2020): No Objection, subject to conditions

SCC Archaeology updated response (19.08.2020): No additional comments

Page 24



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

SCC Local Lead Floor Authority (LLFA) (03.03.2020): No objection, subject to conditions
and Informatives

SCC LLFA updated response (01.09.2020): No objection, subject to conditions and
Informatives

Environmental Agency (03.03.2020): No Objection, subject to conditions
Environmental Agency updated response (10.08.2020): No additional comments
Historic England (18.03.2020): No objection

Historic England updated response (28.08.2020): do not wish to offer any
comments. Letter of 18.03.2020 represents HE's substantive response

Contaminated Land (23.03.2020): No Objection, subject to conditions
Arboricultural (30.06.2020): Conditions proposed to enable development to proceed
SCC Highways (18.05.2020): No objection, subject to S106 Obligations and conditions

SCC Highways updated response (02.09.2020): No objection, subject to S106
Obligations and conditions

Fire & Rescue (14.04.2020): No objection, subject to Informatives
Fire & Rescue updated response (01.09.2020): No objection, subject to Informatives
EEBC Transport and Waste: (14.04.2020) Objection, but condition recommended

EEBC Transport and Waste updated response (02.09.2020): arrangements for waste
and recycling collections not having changed. Objection.

Design and Conservation Officer (16.04.2020): No objection, subject to conditions
Design and Conservation Officer updated response (01.09.2020): No objection.
Queried road junction improvements and impact on integrity Conservation Area.
Officers advised that this is in relation to highways works.

Environment Health: no objection, subject to condition

The Ancient Monuments Society: no response received

The Council for British Archaeology: no response received

The Twentieth Century Society: no response received.

Relevant planning history

The below table sets out principle recent and relevant planning history relating to the Application
Site and the adjacent (W S Atkins Ltd, Woodcote Grove) Site. For clarity, it does not include minor
full planning applications, approval of non-material amendment applications, approval of details
applications or tree applications.

Page 25



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Application Decision date Application detail Decision
number
18/01009/REM Granted Application to vary Condition 27 of planning permission 15.02.2019

14/01150/FUL as varied by planning permission
15/01097/REM and planning permission 16/01591/REM to
enable a final plant solution to be implemented

16/01591/REM Granted Variation of Condition 27 of planning application reference: 28.04.2017
14/01150/FUL and 15/01097/REM to enable the erection of
a fixed guard railing to the main office building

15/01097/REM Granted Variation of Conditions 2 (Phasing), 5 (Materials), 9 14.12.2015
(Construction traffic management plan) and 13 (Soft
landscaping) of planning permission 14/01150/FUL. Changes
to the wording of the conditions is required to revise the
overall phasing of the development and to allow some
conditions to be discharged in a phased manner

14/01150/FUL Granted Proposed new office building (use class B1) of 9924m GIA 26.01.2015
with associated revised access and parking, demolition of
existing blocks A, B and C with the reinstatement of land and
landscaping of site

Planning Policy

National Policy Planning Framework (NPPF) 2019

Chapter 2 Achieving sustainable development
Chapter 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Chapter 6 Building a strong, competitive economy
Chapter 9 Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places
Chapter 13 Protecting Green Belt Land

Page 26



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Chapter 14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Chapter 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Core Strategy 2007

CS2 Conserving and Enhancing Open Space and Landscape Character
CS3 Biodiversity and Designated Nature Conservation Area

CS4 Open Spaces and Green Infrastructure

CS5 Conserving and Enhancing the Quality of the Built Environment
CS6 Sustainability in New Developments

CSs7 Providing for Housing and Employment Development

CS8 Broad Location of Housing Development

CS9 Affordable Housing and meeting Housing Needs

CS16 Managing Transport and Travel

Development Management Policies Document (2015)

DM1 Extent of the Green Belt

DM4 Biodiversity and New development

DM5 Trees and Landscape

DM8 Heritage Assets

DM9 Townscape Character and Local Distinctiveness

DM10 Design Requirements for New Developments (including House Extensions)
DM13 Building Heights

DM17 Contaminated Land

DM21 Meeting Local Housing Needs

DM24 Employment Uses Outside of Existing Employment Policy Areas
DM36 Sustainable Transport for New Development

Revised Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2014)
Chalk Lane Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Proposals (August 2010)

Parking Standards for Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document (2015)

Page 27



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Update

9.1

9.2

9.3

The planning application was presented at Planning Committee on 23 July 2020, with an
Officer's recommendation for approval. This was deferred by Members, who requested
additional information to enable an informed decision.

The applicant prepared additional information, including an amended planning statement
(titled ‘additional information in support of the proposed development at Woodcote
Grove, Epsom’). The below is a link to the document:

http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-
applications/files/4B2DE561A17AA1EA3D72F67908130039/pdf/19 00999 FUL-
Planning Statement-1125144.pdf

The following material planning considerations formed part of the Members discussion at
Planning Committee. Below is a brief summary of the discussions’ main points, with each
area reviewed in more detail within the relevant sections of this report.

Block F (reviewed at paragraphs 10.16 — 10.24)
e Queries relating to the principle of a building in its location within the Site

Density and Heritage (reviewed at paragraphs 15.89 — 15.96)
e The development was considered too dense
¢ Queries regarding whether the scheme would improve the setting of the Site’s listed
buildings and whether there would be wider public benefits as a result of the
scheme
e Queries regarding what weight should be attributed to Historic England’s formal
response

Housing Mix (reviewed at paragraphs 13.13 — 13.22)
e The development is not policy compliant in relation to housing mix, specifically
lacking 3 bedroom family units

Private amenity space, including details of playground (reviewed at paragraphs 14.9 —
14.20)
o The development was not considered to provide sufficient private amenity space
e There was a lack of detail of the proposed children’s play area.

Block A (reviewed at paragraphs 15.59 — 15.63)
e Concerns regarding the impact of the height, massing and design of Block A on the
character of the listed Stable Block.

Highways impact and car parking (reviewed at paragraphs 18.52 — 18.71)
e The development is not policy compliant in terms of car parking provision
e Concerns that the proposed car club is not on-site
e Queries relating to how far the Site is from nearby public transport nodes (reviewed
at paragraph 3.8)

Affordable housing (reviewed at paragraphs 13.13 — 13.22)
e Queries regarding mix of affordable housing
¢ Queries regarding review mechanism

Trees and landscaping (reviewed at paragraphs 20.43 — 20.48)
. Concerns regarding potential impact on trees

Page 28


http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/files/4B2DE561A17AA1EA3D72F67908130039/pdf/19_00999_FUL-Planning_Statement-1125144.pdf
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/files/4B2DE561A17AA1EA3D72F67908130039/pdf/19_00999_FUL-Planning_Statement-1125144.pdf
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/files/4B2DE561A17AA1EA3D72F67908130039/pdf/19_00999_FUL-Planning_Statement-1125144.pdf

23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL

10 Planning considerations

. Principle of Proposed development
. Residential provision

. Green Belt

. Affordable Housing

o Quality of Accommodation
. Design and Heritage

. Visual Impact

. Neighbouring Amenity

. Air Quality

. Highways and Parking

. Refuse and Recycling

. Trees and Landscaping

. Ecology

. Flood Risk and Drainage
. Archaeology

o Contamination

o Sustainability

. Legal Agreements

Principle of proposed development

10.1  The key principles to consider for this application are:

i. Presumption in favour of sustainable development

ii. Loss of employment uses
iii. Heritage

Presumption in favour of sustainable development

Agenda Item 3

10.2  The NPPF is a key consideration in relation to this application and is a material consideration.
It states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of

sustainable development.

Page 29



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

10.3  The Site is located within the built up area of the Borough. The existing access road partly falls
within the Green Belt. It does not affect any other assets of particular importance, including
SSSI, AONB or any European or National ecological designations. These designations would
be given additional weight by the NPPF. When considering the principle of development, the
presumption in favour of sustainable development is fundamental, in this case.

104 The proposal does affect the setting of listed buildings and a Conservation Area. These
designated heritage assets do not disengage the presumption in favour of sustainable
development (footnote 6 of paragraph 11, NPPF). But, it does require the decision maker to
balance any harm to these assets against the public benefits of the scheme.

10.5 In accordance with paragraph 12 of the NPPF, development proposals that accord with an up
to date Development Plan should be approved and where a planning application conflicts with
an up to date Development Plan, planning permission should not usually be granted.

10.6  Development policies are regarded as being out of date where a Local Planning Authority
cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites or where the housing
delivery test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially below the housing
requirement over the previous three years (paragraph 11d and footnote 7 of the NPPF). Existing
policies should not be considered out of date simply because they were adopted or made prior
to the publication of the 2018 NPPF or its reissue in 2019. Due weight should be given to
existing policies according to their degree of consistency with the policies of the NPPF
(paragraph 213). The NPPF is therefore an important material consideration that may over-ride
Development Plan policies that were adopted prior to the publication of the NPPF and which
are not consistent with it.

10.7  Policy CS7 of the Core Strategy is considered out of date under the terms of the NPPF. The
housing target of 188 dwellings per annum was taken from the South East Plan, which was
revoked in 2012, with housing requirements then to be determined by local need. The Core
Strategy pre-dates the NPPF and in accordance with paragraph 213 of the NPPF, the policies
of the Core Strategy should be given due weight according to their degree of consistency with
the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight
that may be given). In the case of old housing targets within Policy CS7, no weight should be
given.

10.8 The Government's standard method for calculating the Borough’'s assessed housing need
identifies a housing requirement of 579 new homes each year. In the absence of a five year
housing land supply, this has been increased to 695 under the housing delivery test, as
published on 13 February 2020. The Local Planning Authority is presently falling significantly
short of this requirement and cannot presently demonstrate five years housing land supply.

10.9  Paragraph 11d of the NPPF is engaged via footnote 7 in circumstances where Local Planning
Authorities cannot demonstrate a five year housing land supply. The practical application and
consequence of this is that unless a site is located in an area or involves an asset of particular
importance that provides a clear reason for refusal, then planning permission must be granted,
unless it can be demonstrated that any adverse impacts demonstrable outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the NPPF as a whole.

10.10 Turning to this application, it is noted that planning permission was granted on 26.01.2015 for
a new office, associated access and parking, under ref: 14/01150/FUL, at W S Atkins Ltd,
Woodcote Grove. The Site Location Plan for application ref: 14/01150/FUL includes the “Atkins
office building” that is identified for redevelopment within this pending application. This is
located at the south-eastern corner of this Site.

10.11  For clarity, the below provides a screenshot of the Site Location Plan, attached to planning

application ref: 14/01150/FUL (WDGR-ATK-00-00-DR-A-1000 Rev P2 — Location Plan — dated
09.09.14)

Page 30



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

i

</

g
7w N/
\V

10.12 Condition 3 of planning permission ref: 14/01150/FUL sets out that the existing office blocks
shall be demolished and resultant material removed from the site within 6 months of first
occupation of new the new building. The reason for this was to ensure that the development
does not adversely impact on visual amenity or the setting of Woodcote Grove (the Grade II*
listed building). For clarity, the Condition wording is provided below:

The existing office blocks shall be demolished and resultant material removed from the
site within 6 months of first occupation of new building and the grass bank and soft
landscaping shall be reinstated in accordance with the Landscape Masterplan Drawing
Number WDGR-ATK-XX-XX-SK-A-0001 (dated 2014-12-19).

Reason: To ensure the development does not have any adverse impact on visual
amenity or the setting of the listed building in accordance with Policies BE1 and DC1
of the Epsom and Ewell District Wide Local Plan (May 2000), Policy CS5 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies
submission document (November 2014).

10.13 The accompanying Planning Statement sets out at paragraph 6.8 that this Site, subject to this
application, is surplus to requirements, given that Atkins has consolidated its office
requirements under application ref: 14/01150/FUL. The planning permission at Atkins is key to
consider as part of this application, as it presents an opportunity to optimise this Site for new
residential development. The NPPF encourages optimising the potential of sites to
accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development.

10.14 The purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable
development. This Site comprises two listed buildings and it is in a Conservation Area, so the
decision maker must balance any harm to these assets against the public benefits of the
scheme.

Page 31



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

10.15 This application is considered to provide an opportunity to optimise the Site for residential
development. As assessed within this report, the adverse impacts of this development are not
held to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the
policies in the framework.

Update

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

At Planning Committee, queries were raised about the principle of Block F, given that this
area of land was required to be landscaped, as part of application ref: 14/01150/FUL.

Concerns have been raised by nearby residents regarding the principle of development
at this part of the Site. Representation refers to landscaping conditions that has been
discharged (15/01392/COND and 18/01381/COND). A representation encloses a report,
dated 12 May 1959, by the Ministry of Housing and Local Government, confirming that
an appeal is allowed at the Application Site. Representation is considered under the
Officer’s response below.

Applicant’s response

The updated planning statement references the planning history of the Site, but, it does
not provide reference to the principle of development.

Officer’s response

A representation received has enclosed a report, dated 12 May 1959, by the Ministry of
Housing and Local Government, confirming that an appeal was allowed at the
Application Site. Local planning policy has significantly changed since 1959 and this
appeal bears little weight in the consideration of this application.

Subject to planning permission being granted, this application, if implemented, would
override the requirement of part of the Site to be reinstated to landscaping, as required
by application ref: 14/01150/FUL. For the avoidance of doubt, this would also override
Conditions that have been discharged relating to landscaping of this area.

This Site is considered surplus to requirements, since Atkins has consolidated its office
requirements at the adjacent Site. This provides an opportunity to re-develop this Site, in
line with the NPPF, which seeks site optimisation. Block F would provide residential flats,
each with private amenity space, which is a scheme benefit, weighing positively in the
planning balance, specifically given that the Local Planning Authority cannot demonstrate
a five year housing land supply.

In the updated planning statement, the Applicant highlights that the proposal seeks to
rebuild on a section of the Site, where the former office building was located. This is
illustrated on supporting drawing 1.04 of Appendix 1, which shows that the footprint of
proposed Block F is smaller than the former office building.

The design of Block F and its relationship to the Grade II* listed building is considered
acceptable. Its design had been improved during the application’s determination period,
in response to Historic England’s initial comments. Significant weight should be given to
Historic England’s comments and in this case, in its updated response, dated 18 March
2020, Historic England acknowledged that the scale of Block F had been reduced, which
decreases the prominence of this building in key views of Woodcote Grove and thus also
the harm to the Grade II* listed building. The Local Planning Authority’s Design and
Conservation Officer sets out that the design alterations to Block F significantly reduces
its dominance on the Site and its massing should no longer compete with the listed
building.

Page 32



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

10.24 In summary, the Site is considered surplus to requirements, with an opportunity for
redevelopment and optimisation, as required by the NPPF. Block F is proposed in a
location that should be reinstated to landscaping as part of a previous application, but,
given that it proposes much needed residential flats and comprises an acceptable design
that would not adversely impact the adjacent listed building, it is considered acceptable
and appropriate.

Loss of employment uses

10.25 Chapter 6 of the NPPF relates to building a strong, competitive economy. Paragraph 80 sets
out that planning decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses can invest,
expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth
and productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider opportunities for
development.

10.26 Paragraph 82 sets out that planning decisions should recognise and address the specific
locational requirements This includes making provision for clusters or networks knowledge and
data-driven, creative or high technology industries; and for storage and distribution operations
at a variety of different sectors.

10.27 Policy DM24 sets out that outside of employment locations and Epsom Town Centre, proposals
resulting in the loss of employment floor space will not be granted planning permission unless
there is genuine evidence, including that the site has been marketed without success and that
the site as it stands is no longer suitable for its existing or other employment uses. The Council
will require that the site has been marketed for a minimum period of 18 months at an appropriate
rate for its location and condition.

10.28 Policy DM24 further states that where the loss of existing employment floor space can be
demonstrated, new mixed-use redevelopment will be allowed if the development provides for a
mix of uses, including a significance element of employment generating uses.

10.29 As detailed in the above section, planning permission was granted on 26.01.2015 for a new
office, associated access and parking, under ref: 14/01150/FUL, at W S Atkins Ltd, Woodcote
Grove. The Site Location Plan for application ref: 14/01150/FUL includes the “Atkins office
building”, which is identified for redevelopment within this pending application.

10.30 Condition 3 of planning permission ref: 14/01150/FUL sets out that the existing office blocks
shall be demolished and resultant material removed from the site within 6 months of first
occupation of new the new building. The reason for this was to ensure that the development
does not adversely impact on visual amenity or the setting of the Grade II* listed Woodcote
Grove. As set out in the accompanying Planning Statement, this Site (identified in this
application) is surplus to requirements, given that Atkins has consolidated its office
requirements under application ref: 14/01150/FUL. Officers also note that development has
commenced at the adjacent site and understand that this is nearing completion.

10.31 The large office building is being demolished and proposed as residential accommodation
within this application, as Block F. Given that the office use is being re-provided at the adjacent
Atkins site and that this building is required to be demolished as part of application ref:
14/01150/FUL, Officers are satisfied with the loss of employment use within this building.

10.32 Woodcote Grove is a Grade II* listed building and given its constraints as a historic building, its
commercial space is considered too constrained for most office occupiers. The other buildings
on the Site are considered to comprise ancillary office accommodation and during site visits
undertaken by Officers, it was noted that these buildings were vacant.

Page 33



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

10.33 Whilst the Site has not been marketed for a minimum period of 18 months, in line with the
requirements of DM24, it is accepted that the buildings are no longer suitable for employment
uses and have been adequately replaced. The proposal presents an opportunity to redevelop
the Site and to provide residential accommodation, especially given that the Local Planning
Authority cannot demonstrate a five-year housing land supply.

10.34 In summary, the loss of employment space at the Site is considered acceptable, given that the
Site is considered surplus to requirements as Atkins has consolidated its office accommodation
on the adjacent Site. Furthermore, the commercial space within the Listed buildings on this Site
is likely to be considered too constrained for most office occupiers.

Heritage

10.35 A separate Listed Building Consent application (ref: 19/00998/LBA) has been submitted in
tandem with this application.

10.36 The refurbishment and conversion of the Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove and Grade |l listed
Stable Block to residential use is considered acceptable in principle. The internal
refurbishment is considered acceptable and the exterior alterations are considered to
preserve the special historic interest of the buildings.

10.37 The proposal seeks a coherent layout that opens up the link between the two listed buildings,
achieved through sensitive design, the orientation of new buildings and careful landscaping.
The architectural character of the development is considered to respond to the Site’s
surroundings, but with a more contemporary and sustainable context.

10.38 The proposed development is considered to deliver an optimum viable use for the listed
Buildings, helping to secure their longer-term future. The proposed adaptations and
alterations are considered suitably sensitive, preserving the special historical and architectural
character of these buildings and their setting.

10.39 In summary, the proposal presents an opportunity to enhance the listed buildings on the Site
and the Conservation Area.

11 Provision of residential development

11.1  Chapter 5 of the NPPF relates to delivering a sufficient supply of homes. Paragraph 59

sets out that to support the Government’s objective of significantly boosting the supply of
homes, it is important that a sufficient amount and variety of land can come forward
where it is needed, that the needs of groups with specific housing requirements are
addressed and that land with permission is developed without unnecessary delay.

11.2  Chapter 11 of the NPPF relates to the effective use of land. Paragraph 117 of the NPPF

sets out that planning decisions should promote an effective use of land in meeting the
need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and improving the environment and
ensuring safe and healthy living conditions.

11.3  Policy CS8 sets out that new housing development will be located within the defined built

up area of Epsom and Ewell. Within these areas the emphasis will be on the re-use or
conversion of existing buildings for housing. In principle, higher density development is
directed to central locations, such as Epsom town centre and other local centres, close to
existing services and facilities and accessible by public transport, walking and cycling.
This enables relatively lower densities to be applied to other parts of the built up area to
help retain their character and local distinctiveness.

Page 34



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

11.6

In May 2018, the Licensing Planning Policy Committee took a decision to set aside
Policy DM11 (Housing Density) and Policy DM13 (Building Heights). This was based on
the policy restricting opportunities for growth in the Borough.

Concerns have been raised by nearby residents regarding the principle of Block F, given
that application ref: 14/01150/FUL required the existing office building to be removed and
grass bank and soft landscaping reinstated. Concerns have also been raised regarding
converting Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove into residential flats. These concerns have
been taken into consideration by Officers in the assessment.

The Site is located within a ‘Built Up Area’, which in accordance with Policy CS8, is an
area deemed appropriate for housing development. The Site is surrounded by a mix of
uses, including residential properties at Chalk Lane and Worple Road. As such, the
provision of residential use at this Site is considered appropriate within its spatial context.

The proposal seeks to demolish existing office buildings, which are considered surplus to
requirements, due to Atkins consolidating its office requirements under application ref:
14/01150/FUL. The Site’s redevelopment to residential use, including the provision of
Block F, is considered to promote an effective use of the Site in meeting the needs for
homes, complying with paragraph 117 of the NPPF. The Site comprises two listed
buildings and given the constraints of these (in terms of their historical significance), it is
considered that their commercial spaces would be too constrained for most office
occupiers. But, converting these buildings into residential use would bring them into
viable use and contribute to much needed housing within the Borough.

In summary, the Site is located within a Built Up Area, where housing development is
deemed appropriate. The provision of residential development at this Site is considered
suitable within its spatial context. The proposal seeks to bring two listed buildings into
viable use and develop the reminder of the Site, contributing towards the Local Planning
Authority’s housing need. The provision of new housing is a substantial public benefit,
which weighs in favour of this application. The proposal is considered to comply Policy
CSs.

12 Green Belt

121

12.2

12.3

Chapter 13 of the NPPF relates to the protection of Green Belt land. Paragraph 134 sets out
that the Green Belt serves five purposes:

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)

to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;

to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;

to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;

to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and

to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban
land.

Paragraph 143 of the NPPF sets out that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful
to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances.

Paragraph 144 of the NPPF sets out that when considering any planning application, local
planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green
Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations.

Page 35



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

124

12,5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Paragraph 146 of the NPPF sets out that certain forms development are not inappropriate in
the Green Belt provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict with the purposes of
including land within it. This includes (inter alia) local transport infrastructure which can
demonstrate a requirement for a Green Belt location.

Policy CS2 sets out that to ensure the Green Belt continues to serve its key functions, its
existing general extent will be maintained and, within its boundaries, strict control will continue
to be exercised over inappropriate development as defined by Government policy.

Policy DM1 sets out that the Green Belt will be maintained along the boundaries of the
existing built-up area.

Concerns have been raised by nearby neighbours that the proposal represents inappropriate
green belt development. This has been taken into considered by Officers in the assessment.

Part of the existing access road from Ashley Road falls within the Green Belt. This part of the
access road currently serves the Site and adjacent Atkins Site and is considered a
requirement from a local transport infrastructure perspective, given that it provides existing
access. No development is proposed on the strip of access road that falls within the Green
Belt. As such, it is considered to comply with Paragraph 146 of the NPPF.

For clarity, no other part of the Site falls within the Green Belt, other than part of the existing
access road.

The proposal is considered to comply with policies CS2 and DM1.

13 Affordable Housing

13.1  Chapter 5 of the NPPF relates to delivering a sufficient supply of homes. Paragraph 64 of

the NPPF sets out where major development involving the provision of housing is
proposed, planning decisions should expect at least 10% of the homes to be available for
affordable home ownership, unless this would exceed the level of affordable housing
required in the area, or significantly prejudice the ability to meet the identified affordable
housing needs to specific groups. Exemptions to this 10% requirements should also be
made where the site or proposed development:

. Provides solely for Build to Rent homes;

. Provides specialist accommodation for a group of people with specific needs (such
as purpose-built accommodation for the elderly or students);

. Is proposed to be developed by people who wish to build or commission their own
homes; or

. Is exclusively for affordable housing, an entry-level exception site or a rural

exception site.

13.2  Policy CS9 sets out that the Council has a target that overall, 35% of new dwellings

should be affordable. Taking into account the viability of the development proposed and
other planning objectives, the Council will negotiate to achieve the provision of affordable
housing. Residential development of 15 or more dwellings gross (or on sites of 0.5ha or
above) should include at least 40% of dwellings as affordable.

13.3  Supporting paragraph 3.12.11 sets out that other than in exceptional circumstances the

provision of the affordable housing should be made on site. Where there are specific and
overriding site constraints, or where development-specific issues inhibit the provision of
affordable housing, off site provision or financial contributions may be acceptable.

Page 36



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

13.4 Concerns have been raised by nearby residents that the proposal seeks inadequate
affordable housing provision. Concerns have been taken into consideration by Officers in
this assessment.

13.5 The proposal is subject to the provision of affordable housing.

13.6  An Economic Viability Appraisal Report, dated August 2019, was submitted with the
application, which was independently reviewed by Viability Consultants BPS, on behalf of
the Local Planning Authority.

13.7  Following a revision of the proposed scheme, the Applicant prepared an updated Viability
Appraisal Report, dated January 2020), which was also independently reviewed by BPS
Surveyors (BPS), on behalf of the Local Planning Authority.

13.8 BPS prepared a “Summary of Viability Discussions” report, dated 7 May 2020. This sets
out that the scheme viably offers eight affordable units, at the proposed tenure mix of
seven shared ownership and one social rented unit, which are to be provided in Block A.
The development appraisal shows that the scheme produced a surplus of £15,950. BPS
did not consider that this would be sufficient to convert a private unit to an affordable
housing unit, nor an intermediate unit to social rent. But, it could be used to contribute
towards a payment in lieu of affordable housing, given that the proposed scheme is not
policy compliant. The Applicant agreed on 1 July 2020 to accept this amount as a
payment in lieu.

13.9  Aletter prepared by ULL Property, dated 26 May 2020, seeks to provide justification for
the Applicant not providing 10% affordable housing, as required by paragraph 64 of the
NPPF. The proposal has been through viability testing and seeks 8.2% affordable
housing provision. The projections are for a global recession to match or exceed the
effects of the Global Financial Crisis of 2008. It is unlikely that the project’s viability will
improve in the short or medium term. The proposal cannot viably sustain 10% affordable
housing today, with the prospects for improvement being poor.

13.10 Itis not for Officers to provide reasoning or justification for the shortfall in the affordable
housing offer. But, in this case, Officers recognise that there are significant costs
associated with the development of this Site, including the conversion of two listed
buildings, developing a scheme that incorporates high quality design to respect the listed
buildings and the integrity of the Conservation Area. Furthermore, basement parking is a
significant cost, which in this case is considered a positive feature of the Site, as it
removes the need for significant surface car parking, which could detract from the Site’s
historic significance. Officers take advice from BPS and positive weight should be
attributed to the provision of eight affordable units and the surplus of £15,950.

13.11 Officers recommend the implementation of a review mechanism, which would allow the
Council to benefit from any improvements in scheme viability over the development
period. Subject to planning permission being granted, this would be included within the
S.106 Agreement and would require the submission of a revised Viability Statement.

13.12 In summary, the proposal has been subject to viability testing. Officers have taken the
advice of BPS and confirm that the proposal viably offers eight affordable units, at the
proposed tenure mix of seven shared ownership and one social rented unit. Furthermore,
the scheme produces a surplus of £15,950. Whilst the scheme is not policy compliant,
providing 8.2% affordable housing, it does provide on-site affordable housing units,
which is a public benefit and which should be given moderate positive weight.

Page 37



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

13.13

13.14

13.15

13.16

13.17

13.18

13.19

13.20

13.21

13.22

Update

A range of questions were raised at Planning Committee on 23 July 2020, relating to the
affordable housing offer, the affordable housing mix and a S106 Agreement review
mechanism.

Concerns have been raised by nearby residents that an inadequate provision of
affordable housing is proposed. Representation is considered under the Officer’s
response below.

Applicant’s response

The updated planning statement sets out the significant costs associated with the
development, including the provision of a basement and restoration of two listed
buildings. The statement sets out that the Applicant went through a strict viability review
process, with the Local Planning Authority’s viability consultants, coming to a conclusion
on the affordable housing offer. The statement also makes reference to estimate CIL
charges.

The updated planning statement sets out that the viability review mechanism would be
agreed as part of a S106 Agreement.

The updated planning statement sets out that all affordable units benefit from private
amenity space.

Officer’s response

Officers acknowledge that the scheme is not policy compliant. The shortfall in the
affordable housing offer has been explained as being linked to significant costs
associated with the development of this Site. The Applicant has made reference to an
estimate CIL payment, which is due once a development starts. It must be stressed that
CIL liability is not a material planning consideration and therefore this is of no relevance
to the shortfall

The Local Planning Authority has sought the advice of independent viability consultants
and have been advised that the scheme viably offers eight affordable units, at the
proposed tenure mix of seven shared ownership and one social rented unit, with a
surplus of £15,950. Positive weight is attributed to this provision. Affordable housing
tenure mixes are tested as part of viability process, to ensure that the maximum
affordable housing offer is achieved.

Review mechanisms are agreed as part of the S106 Agreement negotiations. Review
mechanisms can be carried out at an early stage in the development, where the benefit
lies in providing additional affordable housing on Site, or, towards the end of a
development, where up to date values and costs can be taken into account. The choice
is dependent on the scale of development, the development period and other factors that
may be relevant. The purpose of a review mechanism is to strengthen the ability of the
Local Planning Authority to seek compliance with relevant policies over the lifetime of a
project.

The affordable housing is proposed within Block A. These comprises a mix of 2 and 3
bedroom units, each benefiting from private amenity space and car parking provision.

In summary, though the scheme is not policy compliant, it does present a viable offer of

eight affordable housing units at an appropriate tenure. The provision of on-site
affordable housing should be considered positively, as a scheme benefit.

Page 38



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

14 Quality of Accommodation

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

The Nationally Described Space Standards (March 2015) sets out internal space standards for
new dwellings.

Supporting paragraph 3.35 of Policy DM12 (Housing Space Standards) sets out that for houses
a minimum total private outdoor space of 70m2 for 3 or more beds and 40m2 for 2 beds are
required. A minimum depth of 10m of domestic rear garden space is required. For flats, a
minimum of 5m2 of private outdoor space for 1-2 person dwellings is required and an extra 1m2
should be provided for each additional occupant.

Policy DM22 requires all residential development proposals for four or more units be comprised
of a minimum of 25% three bedroom, or more, units. We will consider exceptions to this
approach where it can be demonstrated that such a mix would be inappropriate to the location
or endanger the viability of the proposal.

The proposal seeks to provide 98 flats/dwellings.

The application proposes the following mix:

. 1 bedroom flats = 27

. 2 bedroom flats = 51

e 3 bedroom flats = 6

. 1 bedroom houses =0
e 2 bedroom houses = 14
. 3 bedroom houses =0
e 4 bedroom houses =0
Building A:

e This seeks the provision of 8 flats, which accord with internal space standards
e Each proposed flat benefits from a terrace and all ground floor flats benefit from a further
rear amenity courtyard.

Stable Block (Building B):

. This seeks the conversion of the Grade Il listed Stable Block to residential accommodation.
This seeks the provision of 4 flats, which accord with internal space standards.

Building C:
e This seeks the provision of 7 houses, which accord with internal space standards

e The private amenity space for both Blocks C and D vary between 21.1sgm and up to
34.2sgm

Building D:

e This seeks the provision of 7 houses, which accord with internal space standards.
e The private amenity space for both Blocks C and D vary between 21.1sqm and up to
34.2sqm

Woodcote Grove (Building E):

e This seeks the conversion of the Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove to allow for 7 flats,
which accord with internal space standards.

e Plots 31 and 32 benefit from balconies. The balcony for plot 31 measures 7.1sqm and
the balcony for plot 32 measures 8sqm.

Page 39



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Block F

e This seeks the provision of 65 flats, which accord with internal space standards.
e The private amenity space for each flats vary between 5sqgm to 36.2sgm.

Private Amenity Space

Flats

e Proposed flats (73 units) across Buildings A and F meet the required private amenity
space standards. This is calculated at 5sgqm for 1B2P and an additional 1sgm per
occupant. In addition 36no.units exceed the requirements (50%)

o Of the converted listed buildings, the Stable Block has no private amenity space.
Woodcote Grove includes 2 units, plots 31 & 32, which meet the required area standards.

e The proposed flats within Woodcote Grove exceed internal floor plan requirements, in
order to respond to the historic fabric of the building. The provision of private amenity
space (in the form of balconies, for example) could have been at the detriment of the
buildings.

o Total meet or exceed standards — 75/84 = 89.2% (all new dwellings)
o Total below standards — 9/84 = 10.8% (Blocks B & E — Listed Buildings)

Houses

e The proposed houses fall short of the required private amenity areas and range in size
from 21.1sgqm — 34.2sgm (the standard is 40sgm)

o The reduced private amenity space is a result of the Applicant responding to the
relationship between Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove and the Grade Il listed Stable
Block. The design proposal reinstates the link between these heritage assets. The design
of the terrace housing provides a framed view between these two listed buildings and is
based on the axial relationship between the centre point of Woodcote Grove and the
gates of the Stable Block.

e Total meet or exceed standards — 0/14 = 0%
e Total below standards — 14 /14 = 100%

Site

e Communal open space provision: 3176sqm
e Children’s play area: 60sgm.

Summary

14.6  The proposed flats and houses do meet internal space standards, but, there is a shortfall in
private amenity space. The Applicant prepared a map, which shows recreation spaces within
walking distance of the Site.

14.7  In considering the shortfall of private amenity space, Officers do acknowledge that the Site is
constrained by two listed buildings and a wall. The Applicant has worked proactively with
Officers to prepare a scheme that is well designed and scaled, respecting the Site’s historical
significance and the identified character of the surrounding area. In this case, the shortfall of
private amenity space is considered acceptable, given that the scheme seeks to remove
unattractive buildings and hardstanding, provide much needed residential accommodation
provide a considered landscaped scheme with communal outdoor amenity space. It is also
noted that there is an expanse of green space in close proximity to the Site. In light of this, the
shortfall of private amenity space is considered acceptable.

Page 40



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

14.8

In summary, the proposal is considered to provide adequate internal space standards and
provides an acceptable offer in terms of private amenity space and communal amenity space,
given its constraints.

Update

14.9

14.10

14.11

14.12

14.13

14.14

14.15

At Planning Committee, concerns were raised that the proposed housing mix is not
policy compliant, with a lack of 3 bedroom units. There were also concerns raised
regarding the private amenity space provision, specifically given Covid-19. Clarification
was sought of the size of the children’s play area.

Concerns have been raised by nearby residents regarding the proposed housing mix and
lack of private amenity space. Representation is considered under the Officer’'s response
below.

Applicant’s response

No change has been made to the mix of units proposed. There are 6 x 3 bedroom units
proposed, with a further 51 x 2 bedroom, 4 person, flats. The updated planning
statement sets out that some Local Planning Authorities consider that 2 bedroom, 4
person flats are classed as family units. This would mean that the scheme provides for
57 units family units on Site, approximately 58% of the total number of units.

The Applicant prepared plans to illustrate the proposed private amenity spaces (3.03 —
3.06 of Appendix 1). There are 11 flats within the listed buildings and 9 of these do not
benefit from private amenity space. This is due to the buildings constraints, which do not
allow for private amenity space without adversely impacting the heritage significance.
There is amenity space located adjacent to both listed buildings, which could be used by
future residents. Moreover, there is an additional 3,236sqm of amenity space provided
though landscaped gardens and roof top amenity space, to facilitate the needs of
residents.

Officer’s comments

Officers acknowledge that the proposal predominately provides 2 bedroom units and that
there is a lack of 3 bedroom units as required by local planning policy. It is also
acknowledged that the Applicant has not sought to amend the proposed mix. The
Applicant has put forward a case that a 2 bedroom 4 person flat could be classed as a
family unit. In this case, considering this proposal only, Officers would consider this a
small family unit.

This scheme has been developed on a Site that is constrained by two listed buildings, a
boundary wall and a Conservation Area. The scheme has been carefully designed to
respond to its constraints and the character of the surrounding area, whilst delivering a
meaningful supply of new homes. It also seeks on-site affordable housing provision,
which weighs positively in the planning balance.

It is important that new housing developments provide a choice and mix of housing. As
part of this, housing schemes should attract and retain younger households in the
Borough and contribute to mixed, diverse communities. In this case, the Site is in a
sustainable location, benefiting from good public transport links, so likely to attract varied
households, including younger households, who may seek smaller family units.

Page 41



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15

151

15.2

15.3

14.16 Officers acknowledge that Covid-19 has given rise to the importance of adequate private

amenity space. Flats within the proposed new buildings and the terraced houses benefit
from private amenity space. It is acknowledged that the houses fall short of the required
standard, as a result of the scheme responding to the relationship between the listed
buildings. This is considered appropriate and acceptable in this case.

14.17 9 of the 11 flats within the listed buildings do not benefit from private amenity space.

Given that the Site is considered surplus to requirements and that the listed buildings are
too constrained for future office users, reinstating these buildings back into their former
residential use is considered appropriate. These buildings would be unacceptably
harmed if balconies were designed onto these. The lack of private amenity space is in
this case considered acceptable, to ensure the integrity of the listed buildings.

14.18 The Site does offer communal private amenity space. Drawing 3.01 of Appendix 1 shows

surrounding amenity space, within a 12 walking distance of the Site. Drawing 3.02 sets
out that there is 3,176sgm of private amenity space provided on the Site.

14.19 A children’s play area measuring 60sgm is sought. The Applicant has provided example

of play equipment, but not specific details as part of this application. A Condition
requiring details of play equipment is included, should planning permission be granted.

14.20 In summary, the housing mix is considered acceptable, given that the Site’s seeks

optimisation within its constraints. The shortfall in private amenity space is attributed to
preserving the integrity of the listed buildings on Site and the wider Conservation Area
setting. Officers are satisfied that the scheme seeks communal amenity space and a
children’s play area.

Design and Heritage

This section of the Committee Report is split into distinct sections:

Planning policy

Historical background and the Site’s significance
The proposal

Listed buildings

Conservation Area

Planning policy

Chapter 12 of the NPPF relates to achieving well-designed places. Paragraph 124 sets out that
the creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and
development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development,
creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to
communities. Being clear about design expectations, and how these will be tested, is essential
for achieving this.

Paragraph 127 sets out that planning decisions should ensure that developments (inter alia)
function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term, but over the
lifetime of the development. Developments should be visually attractive as a result of good
architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping. Development should be
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environmental and
landscape setting, establish or maintain a strong sense of place and optimise the potential of a
Site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development. Furthermore,
places should be created that are safe, inclusive and accessible, with a high standard of
amenity for existing and future users.

Page 42



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.4  Paragraph 128 sets out that design quality should be considered throughout the evolution and
assessment of individual proposals. Early discussion between Applicants, the Local Planning
Authority and local community about the design and style of emerging schemes is important for
clarifying expectations and reconciling local and commercial interests.

15.5 Paragraph 130 sets out that permission should be refused for development of poor design that
fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and
the way it functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides in plans or
supplementary planning documents. Conversely, where the design of a development accords
with clear expectations in plan policies, design should not be used by the decision-maker as a
valid reason to object to development.

15.6  Paragraph 131 sets out that in determining applications, great weight should be given to
outstanding or innovative designs, which promote high levels of sustainability, or help raise the
standard of design more generally in an area, so long as they fit in with the overall form and
layout of their surroundings.

15.7 Chapter 16 of the NPPF relates to the conservation and enhancement of the historic
environment. Paragraph 189 sets out that in determining applications, Local Planning
Authorities should require an Applicant to describe the significance of any heritage asset
affected, including any contribution made by their setting. The level of detail should be
proportionate to the assets’ importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the
potential impact of the proposal on their significance.

15.8  Paragraph 190 sets out that Local Planning Authorities should identify and assess the particular
significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by development
affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available evidence and any
necessary expertise. They should take this into account when considering the impact of a
proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset’s
conservation and any aspect of the proposal/

15.9  Paragraph 192 sets out that in determining applications, Local Planning Authorities should take
account of:

. The desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

. The positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities including their economic vitality; and

. The desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character
and distinctiveness.

15.10 Paragraph 193 sets out that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the
significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than
substantial harm to its significance.

15.11 Paragraph 194 sets out that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage
asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require
clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:

a) Grade Il listed buildings, or grade Il registered parks or gardens, should be exceptional;

Page 43



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites,
registered battlefields, grade | and II* listed buildings, grade | and II* registered parks and
gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional.

15.12 Paragraph 195 sets out that where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to (or
total loss of significance of) a designated heritage asset, Local Planning Authorities should
refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total loss is
necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the
following apply:

a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and

b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and

c) conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or public ownership
is demonstrably not possible; and

d) the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use.

15.13 Paragraph 196 sets out that where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial
harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against
the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable
use.

15.14 Paragraph 200 sets out that Local planning authorities should look for opportunities for new
development within Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites, and within the setting of
heritage assets, to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those
elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal its
significance) should be treated favourably

15.15 Policy CS5 sets out that the Council will protect and seek to enhance the Borough’s heritage
assets including historic buildings and conservation areas. The settings of these assets will be
protected and enhanced. The policy also sets out that high quality and inclusive design will be
required for all developments. Developments should (inter alia) create attractive, functional and
safe environments, reinforce local distinctiveness and complement the attractive characteristics
of the Borough and make efficient use of land.

15.16 Policy CS8 sets out that new housing development will be located within the defined built up
area of Epsom and Ewell. Within these areas the emphasis will be on the re-use or conversion
of existing buildings for housing. In principle, higher density development is directed to central
locations, such as Epsom town centre and other local centres, close to existing services and
facilities and accessible by public transport, walking and cycling. This enables relatively lower
densities to be applied to other parts of the built up area to help retain their character and local
distinctiveness.

15.17 In May 2018, the Licensing Planning Policy Committee took a decision to set aside Policy DM11
(Housing Density) and Policy DM13 (Building Heights). This was based on the policy restricting
opportunities for growth in the Borough.

15.18 Policy DM8 sets out that the Local Planning Authority will resist the loss of Heritage Assets and
every opportunity to conserve and enhance these should be taken by new development.

Page 44



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.19 The Chalk Lane Conservation Area Map recognises Woodcote Grove as a Grade II* listed
building and a focal building. The Stable Block is identified as a Grade Il listed building and the
wall running around the perimeter of the Site (off Chalk Lane and Worple Road) is identified as
Grade Il listed. There is a historic street light at the Site and an important view, to the south-
east of Chalk Lane. Furthermore, the Atkins Office Building is identified as a negative building.

Historical background and the Site’s significance

15.20 A Heritage Statement accompanies this application, which assesses the significance of the
listed Buildings on the Site and its historical surroundings. The Heritage Statement refers to the
Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove as “Mansion House”.

15.21 The Mansion House was originally constructed as a single-family residence, within ample
grounds. To the south, north and east of Mansion House was a large formal garden, creating
long views over Epsom Downs, to the south of the Site. Later works included the addition of
two small wings to the main building, as well as the Stable Block, which appears on mapping
by the 1840s.

15.22 In the 1950s the Site was sold to Atkins. The earliest complete set of plans of Woodcote Grove
date from this period, showing the intention to alter Mansion House to office use, resulting in
the subdivision of much of its historic space. The purchase of the estate by Atkins also saw the
creation of a large office block to the South of Mansion House, as well as to the south and north
of the Stable Block. These works severely altered the formal setting of Mansion House and saw
the loss of visual connection between the Mansion House and the Stable Block.

15.23 The Mansion House remains the principle building within the Site, set on raised ground and set
back from the entrance off Chalk lane, meaning that it benefits from glimpsed views from the
road only. To the north-west and south of the Site, modern ancillary office buildings mar the
garden setting of the Mansion House. The largest of these office buildings is the late twentieth
century ‘S’ shaped office building, which has a utilitarian appearance, contrasting with the
ornate fagade of the Mansion House. This office building diminishes an appreciation of the
original grounds that surround Mansion House, as well as eroding its domestic character.

15.24 The Heritage Statements assesses the significance of the listed buildings and wall. The findings
are summarised below, with additional comments from the Local Planning Authority’s Design
and Conservation Officer.

15.25 The setting of the Site is mixed, making only a limited contribution to the significance of Mansion
House, due to the mid and late twentieth century building works within the grounds.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Except that the gates and walls are of
significance to the entrance, but will not be affected at any point near the main listed building

15.26 The Site is relatively sheltered from its surroundings by the boundary wall, which encloses the
western and northern boundaries. The wall is believed to have been repaired and potentially
rebuilt in the twentieth century, although it retains a nineteenth century character. The wall and
Mansion House possesses a group value and each inform an appreciation of the significance
of the other. The overall significance of the wall is considered to be moderate.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed and not substantially harmed

15.27 There are clear views of Mansion House on entering the Site through the southern gateway.
Despite alterations to this over the years, the Mansion House and side wings have retained a
cohesive appearance. The overall significance of the building is high, as this is the primary
building on the Site, reflecting eighteenth/nineteenth century design and aesthetics.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed

Page 45



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.28

15.29

15.30

15.31

15.32

15.33

15.34

The Grade Il listed Stable Block retains its raised central parapet and arched central opening,
formally known as an open carriage way. Both the northern and southern elevations have been
constructed of different brick stock resulting in a contrasting appearance. Repairs to the
northern elevation are less sympathetic. The infill of the central opening in particular is
detrimental to the appearance of the building.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed

The conversion of the Grade |l listed Stable Block into an office has resulted in alterations to
the original openings and brickwork, as well as the interior. Views from the southern fagcade of
the Stable Block would have looked directly towards the Mansion House. This relationship has
been interrupted by the creation of additional office buildings between the two buildings.
Therefore, while the building dates to the period when the Mansion House remained in
residential use, this is no longer appreciable. This overall significance of the building is therefore
moderate.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: the orientation of the building towards
the Mansion House does remain of some significance, especially if the central doors
facing the Mansion House are retained, as they should be, and a view between the two
listed buildings is reopened as is proposed

Chapter 10 of the Heritage Statement assesses the significance of interior spaces of Mansion
House. The findings are summarised below, with additional comments from the Local Planning
Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer.

The basement of Mansion House has very limited fabric of interest because of its office fit out.
Modern partitions have disrupted the historic circulation of the space and suspended ceilings
result in the division of window openings. Volumes that appear to correspond to secondary
circulation spaces, such as the circular stair and servant’s passageway should be preserved.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: The interior of this level is not of
great significance except for the stairs, but the outer wall may also be some of the
earlier fabric, especially where doorways open to the vaults under the landscape to
the east and to the tunnel from Mansion House

The ground floor of Mansion House comprises the principle rooms, including the main
entrance hall, library and staircase. Largely this floor has avoided unsympathetic subdivisions.
The ground floor comprises some of the most significance internal spaces, with their original
volume best preserved

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed

The first floor retains a residential quality, due to the retention of wooden panelling and
glazing details. The northern wing extension and the western room within the southern wing
extension appear to the most altered.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed, though many or even most
of the alterations are pre-1948 and therefore of significance

The second floor is the most altered within the Mansion House, with the full extent of the floor
plan subdivided following the office conversion. There is very little historic fabric of interest at
this floor.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed, this floor probably never

had any features of great historic significance as it would have been the servants
quarters.

Page 46



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

The proposal

15.35 This section explores the design of the scheme and notes the comments received by Historic
England, the Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer and representation
received from nearby residents. It should be noted that comments received by Society for the
Protection of Ancient Buildings (SPAB) are directly related to the Listed Building Consent
application, submitted in tandem with this application (ref: 19/00998/LBA). SPAB’s comments
are therefore not referenced within this Committee Report, but are contained with the Listed
Building Consent’s Committee Report.

15.36 Officers undertook a Site Visit with Historic England on 30.09.2019. Following this, Historic
England formally responded to the originally submitted scheme on 10 October 2019 (referred
to as ‘initial’ advice). Historic England had concerns regarding the application on heritage
grounds and considered that the issues and safeguards outlined in its advice needed to be
addressed in order for the application to meet the requirements of paragraphs 190, 193, 194
and 195 of the NPPF.

15.37 The Applicant sought to revise the scheme, taking into consideration the views of Historic
England. A Design and Access Statement Addendum was prepared and submitted, which sets
out the key changes made to the scheme. Historic England provided an updated response to
the revised scheme on 18 March 2020. It sets out that overall, the revised scheme is capable
of meeting the requirements of paragraph 190 of the NPPF, to avoid or minimise harm to
significance.

15.38 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer formally comments on the
revised scheme on 16 April 2020. The comments are referred to below.

Mansion House

15.39 Proposed external alterations to Mansion House include repair to the main fagade, introduction
of a glazed balustrade above the bay windows of the side wings and a lightweight frame.

15.40 Proposed internal alterations to Mansion House comprise:

e At basement level, the proposal seeks to remove partitions and remove thicker masonry.
The proposal seeks to retain the small circular staircase and jack arches above the
corridor.

e At ground floor level, the proposal seeks to remove the modern WC adjacent to the stairs
and subdivide the side wings to create two apartments.

e At first floor level, the proposal seeks a secondary stair and partition walls, to create a
division between the three separate apartments.

e At second floor level, the proposal seeks the removal of partitions and subdivision.

15.41 Historic England’s initial comments acknowledged that internal demolition and subdivision had
been concentrated to the areas of lesser interest at Mansion House, such as the second floor,
basement and the nineteenth century wings. But, the degree of change to the principal rooms
through subdivision was considerable. Particular concerns were raised about the degree of
subdivision to the rear boardroom on the ground floor and the ground floor wing rooms, both of
which would cause harm.

15.42 The Applicant sought to address the comments made by Historic England and reduced the
internal partitioning within the Mansion Block (see Heritage Statement Addendum). Parking
spaces adjacent to Mansion House were also removed, with an area of hardstanding retained
as existing.

Page 47



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.43 Historic England’s formal comments on the revised scheme (18 March 2020) set out that it is
content that the revised ground floor plan for the Mansion House retains the principle rooms in
their historic form, reducing the harm to the significance of the Grade II* listed building.

15.44 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer acknowledges that Grade II*
listed Woodcote Grove is the most historically important building at the Site and has a very
substantial impact on Chalk Lane and the land and buildings to the north of the Site. The
alteration of the room plans of the interior of this building has some benefits and some
drawbacks. The partition of the back room on the upper ground floor is perhaps the most
harmful and results in a large reception room being subdivided into a single flat.

15.45 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that there are a
number of minor changes to the first floor, but these do not significantly alter the room plan.
The most significant change is in levels, which resolves some of the anomalies in this floor
resulting from several changes made in the past. An additional change is made to this level by
the introduction of a new stair well to the second floor. This unfortunately requires a subdivision
in the large northeast room but enables the occupation of flats on the second floor. At present,
the second floor is only accessible via the spiral stair, which is neither practical nor safe.

15.46 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that subject to
planning permission being granted, a Condition is recommended, seeking a historic building
survey with photographs, to more accurately survey and assess the significance and history of
the building’s fabric. The Historic building Survey must be submitted to the local authority and
to be recorded at Bourne Hall.

Stable Block

15.47 Proposed external alterations to the Grade Il listed Stable Block include opening up the
passageway underneath the central arch. The proposals also include improvements to the
setting of the Stable Block, re-establishing the visual link with the Mansion House, so that the
historic functional relationship between the two buildings is appreciable.

15.48 Historic England’s initial response considered the residential conversion of the Grade Il listed
Stable Block as suitable and raised no concerns about the principle of the works.

15.49 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer raises no objection to the
conversion of this building. The most sensitive and significant features of this building will not
be harmed, which includes the roof structure and the archway.

15.50 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer does wish to see the heavy
timber double doors in the archway retained. The Applicant team confirmed this and subject to
Planning Permission and Listed Building Consent being granted, this is secured by Condition.

Wall

15.51 Concerns have been raised by neighbouring residents regarding the pedestrian opening within
the wall. In accordance with Historic England’s records, this is not independently listed.

15.52 The wall is believed to have been repaired and potentially rebuilt in the twentieth century,
although it retains a nineteenth century character. The proposals seek the retention of the wall,
with the introduction of a pedestrian opening. This is to offer convenient access to this part of
the Site and glimpsed views to passing pedestrians.

Page 48



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.53 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer does not have an objection to
the proposed pedestrian entrance. The section of the wall is not independently listed, though
it is curtilage listed. An opening is considered to be acceptable and subject to listed building
Consent being granted (application ref: 19/00998/LBA), a Condition is recommended, to
ensure good design that respects the wall.

Boundary treatment

15.54 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that the proposed
steel fence acting as boundary treatment is a good solution, provided that this boundary is not
added to by dense planting of hedges and trees. The view across the landscape should retain
the dominance of Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove and its place in the landscape.

Building A

15.55 Concerns have been raised by neighbouring residents regarding the height, design and
materiality of Building A and its proximity to the boundary wall. Concerns have been taken into
consideration by Officers in this assessment.

15.56 The Applicant sought to design Building A to respond to its surroundings, specifically drawing
on the materiality and massing of the Grade Il listed Stable Block. Building A is set back
approximately 3.336 metres from the boundary wall fronting Worple Road and approximately
4.967 metres from the boundary wall fronting Chalk Lane. The building comprises a prominent
gable end design with a pitched roof, and is predominantly brick faced. The building
incorporates pronounced chimney stacks, referencing eighteenth century building styles.
Window voids and a central parapet break the massing of this building over the central entrance
on the southern fagade.

15.57 In its initial response, Historic England recommended lowering the height of Building A, as this
would be visible from outside the Site and would sit rather awkwardly with the boundary wall,
interrupting the sense of seclusion of the Site within the Conservation Area. The Applicant
responded to this comment and reduced the height of Block A by 500mm, which was achieved
by a sunken courtyard (see Heritage Addendum). The Heritage addendum sets out this reduces
the building’s perceived massing onto Worple Road and Chalk Lane.

15.58 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer raises no objection to the
demolition of the existing print room building, as it has no architectural interest. The proposed
building is two storeys in height and should have relatively little impact on the Conservation
Area, which typically comprises two-storey dwelling houses. It will be separated from the listed
buildings surrounding the Site by the wall. The Local Planning Authority’s Design and
Conservation Officer confirms that the design of Building A is acceptable.

Update

15.1 Planning Committee raised concerns about the impact of Block A on the character of the
Stable Block.

15.2 Concerns have been raised by nearby residents concerning the impact of Block A on the

character of the Stable Block and its positioning on the corner of Worple Road and Chalk
Lane. Representation has been taken into consideration in the ‘Officer’s response’ below.

Page 49



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Applicant’s response

15.3 The Stable Block is currently enclosed by the conference centre, a print building and
excessive hardstanding, which harms the setting of the Stable Block. The scheme has
been designed to remove the conference building and replace it with an avenue that links
the Stable Block to Mansion House. Landscaped areas are proposed, which has a
double function, as a buffer between Block A and the Stable Block and as outdoor
amenity space.

15.4 Block A is taller than the existing print room, but, it is of a better design than the existing
building, which has been considered acceptable by Historic England and the Local
Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer.

Officer’'s response

15.5 There is no objection to the demolition of the existing print room building, as it has no
architectural interest. The design of Block A has evolved through pre-application
discussions and during the application’s determination period, to respond to comments
raised by Historic England. This is a two-storey building, adequately set in from the
boundary wall and the Stable Block, comprising an appropriate materials palette to
respond to the listed building, Conservation Area and immediate surroundings. Its height,
massing and design is considered compatible with the listed building and surrounding
area.

Buildings C and D

15.6  Buildings C and D comprise two rows of terraces, which have been designed to reference
historic cottage rows, typical of eighteenth century estate design. The terraces open views
between the Mansion House and the Grade Il listed Stable Block, reinstating the historic visual
relationship between these two buildings. The design of these buildings draws on traditional
building materials and proportions, using a pitched roof, with chimney stacks on each dwelling.
But, these buildings also comprise a contemporary character.

15.7  Within its initial response, Historic England welcomed the removal of the conference building,
which was considered to have a negative impact on the Grade II* listed building. But, Historic
England cautioned against taking a formal, axial approach to any housing development, which
might replace it. This has been pursued and Historic England note that its form is not particularly
historically appropriate, though it was acknowledge that the impact of this discrete part of the
scheme is an improvement on the present situation.

15.8 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer acknowledges that the
terraces are small two-bedroom homes, with limited outlook and rear gardens that are little
more than small yards. But, the buildings are well laid out, creating positive vistas along the
axis of the Site, with views from Woodcote Grove to the Grade Il listed Stable Block.

15.9 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that the outlook and
private amenity space can be compensated for by shared amenity space and well laid out
landscape.

Block F

15.10 Concerns have been raised by nearby residents regarding the principle of Block F, as
application ref: 14/01150/FUL, granted on 26.01.2015, required the removal of the existing
office building and the grass bank and soft landscaping reinstated. Furthermore, concerns
surround the height of Block F, its bulk, massing, design and materiality and impact on Grade
[I* listed Woodcote Grove and the Conservation Area. These concerns have been taken into
consideration by Officers.

Page 50



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.11 The principle of this building has been addressed and accepted within the earlier part of this
Committee Report (Principle of proposed development and Residential provision).

15.12 On submitting the application, building F comprised a part 4, 5 and 6-storey building.

15.13 Inits initial response, Historic England set out that it considered that the baseline scenario was
not the present office building, but empty landscaped ground, which was the benefit included
in application ref: 14/01150/FUL.

15.14 Historic England’s initial response considered that flanking the Grade II* listed building with a
taller residential block with a greater overall massing would weaken its status. In combination
with the recently built office building to the rear of the Site, the Grade II* listed building would
be confronted by dominant structures in most views. Although the present office block should
not be considered the baseline for comparison, it is notable that the proposed building would
be two storeys higher than the current post-war building (the conservation area’s most
prominent detractor) and includes an eye-catching roof form. The proposed building was not
considered to respond to the scale, character and design of the listed building and was
considered discordant and conspicuous in key views from in front of the Grade II* listed building
and across the one remaining area of open land to the rear. It would therefore cause harm to
the Grade II* listed building.

15.15 Following Historic England’s initial comments, the fifth floor of the proposed building was
removed and the fourth floor set back on the northern elevation (adjacent to Mansion House)
to reduce its massing. A recessed central section sought to reduce the scale of this building. A
contrasting fenestration approach of flint at ground floor providing a plinth to the building and
varying transparencies of glazing seeks to create a visual break in the front elevation. These
are framed by two bookend brick pavilions, which are detailed with projecting brick courses.
The recessed section has a reduced ridge height and the eastern wing sees a reduction from
four storeys to three, matching the western wing. The wing has also been reduced in plan to
allow space for the pedestrian access ramp from Ashley Road.

15.16 In its updated response, Historic England acknowledged that the scale of building F has been
reduced by one storey with a set-back top storey and recessed central bays. Historic England
concluded that this reduces the prominence of Building F in key views of Woodcote Grove and
thus also the harm to the Grade II* listed building.

15.17 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that the reduction of
height and setting back of the top floor of this building has significantly reduced its dominance
on the Site and its massing should not longer compete with the listed building. The comment
also sets out that brick is an appropriate material. This heavier materials gives the building a
lower centre of gravity, with the lightweight fourth floor.

15.18 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that the entrance to
the Site from the northeast remains an unfortunate and confined relationship with the vehicle
traffic, parked cars and pedestrians sharing a relatively narrow route. It should be noted that
there are no objections from a safety perspective, from SCC Highways.

Conservation Area
15.19 Concerns have been raised by nearby residents regarding the proposal and its impact on the
Conservation Area. Concerns set out that the proposal is a dense overdevelopment, which

adversely impacts the integrity of the Conservation Area. Concerns have been taken into
consideration by Officers in this assessment.

Page 51



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.20 The Heritage Statement sets out that the proposals seek to better reveal the historic character
of the Site, opening up the views between the Mansion House and the Grade Il listed Stable
Block, as well as replicating a small terrace cottage typology. This helps to understand the age
of the Site as well as enhancing a sympathetic appearance between the Site and its
surroundings.

15.21 The proposals will alter the existing views of the Site from along Chalk Lane. The introduction
of new buildings, which are more responsive in terms of massing and material character is
considered a positive contribution to the Conservation Area.

15.22 The listed buildings surrounding the Site derive their significance from their material character
and vernacular historic style, as well as their shared group value. The contribution of the Site
to the significance of the surrounding heritage assets is presently undermined by the late
twentieth century additions to the site, including the office buildings to the north and south of
the Grade Il listed Stable Block. The replacement of these buildings with more sensitively
designed buildings, responding to the location, hierarchy, materials and massing of the historic
buildings within the Site are considered to enhance the wider setting of the listed buildings.

Harm and public benefits

15.23 Paragraph 190 of the NPPF sets out that Local planning authorities should identify and assess
the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including
by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available
evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this into account when considering
the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the
heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

15.24 Paragraph 194 of the NPPF sets out that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated
heritage asset should require clear and convincing justification.

15.25 Historic England considers that the revised scheme is capable of meeting the requirements of
Paragraph 190 of the NPPF to avoid or minimise harm to significance. Officers are required to
decide if the remaining harm, which Historic England think is less than substantial, has clear
and convincing justification as required by paragraph 194 of the NPPF before weighing it
against the public benefits of the proposal in the manner described in paragraph 19 of the
NPPF.

15.26 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer provided further comments on
29 June 2020, to those referenced above. This summarises the harm to the historic significance
of the scheme:

e Block A replaces a post-war large building with no historic or special architectural interest.
The proposal will result in little to no harm. This is considered to cause very much less
than substantial harm

e The proposed works mainly affect the interior parts of the Grade Il listed Stable Block,
which has been subject to previous alterations. The proposal is considered less than
substantial harm. The external setting of the building also is attributed less than substantial
harm, due to the opening of the landscape and the reduced scale of adjacent buildings.

e Buildings C and D have little or no impact on the historic significance of the Site. These
comprises a reduced height and bulk than the existing building and should detract less
from Woodcote Grove. These buildings will have a better alignment, complimenting the
Grade |l Listed Stable Block. These two buildings are on balance considered beneficial
and not harmful to any significance of the building.

Page 52



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

e  Woodcote Grove should be caused no substantial harm by this proposal, provided that the
existing main central doors are retained. Subject to planning permission and listed Building
Consent being granted, a Condition secure this.

e Block F is a larger, but better designed building than existing. Its impact on the Site should
result in very much less than substantial harm.

15.27 Together, the Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer concludes that the
harm to the heritage significance of the whole Site is regarded as less than substantial.

15.28 In considering the above, the harm to the significance of the heritage assets at this Site is
considered less than substantial. It is necessary to consider the public benefits of the proposal.
In this case, the public benefits comprise the provision of new housing and affordable housing,
bringing buildings into viable use that are otherwise considered surplus to requirements and a
contribution to improve the pedestrian facilities and junction improvements at Worple Road and
Chalk Lane. The scheme benefits are considered to outweigh the harm caused.

Summary

15.29 The harm to the significance of the heritage assets at this Site is considered less than
substantial. The proposal has been subject to a thorough design process, to present a scheme
that is considered acceptable from a design and heritage perspective. It proposes various public
benefits, which are considered to outweigh harm. As such, there are no robust grounds to
refuse this application on this aspect.

15.30 The proposal is considered to comply with policies CS5, DM8 and DM9.
Update

15.31 Planning Committee raised concerns that the development is considered too dense and
questioned whether there would be an improvement to the setting of Mansion House as a result
of the proposal and queried what weight could be attributed to Historic England’s consultation
responses. Furthermore, clarification was sought of the scheme’s public benefits.

15.32 Concerns from nearby residents have been raised in relation to the density of the
development, with reference that this Site should have a density of 40 dwellings per ha.
This has been considered under Officer’s response below.

Applicant’s response

15.33 The Applicant does not propose to lessen the number of units proposed in order to
reduce the density of the scheme. But, within the updated planning statement, it is
highlighted that the scheme saw a reduction in units from 115 to 98, following the initial
response from Historic England. The Applicant refers to the NPPF, which seeks the
efficient use of land and site optimisation.

15.34 The updated planning statement sets out that a key benefit of the scheme is opening up
the Site to residents and visitors, allowing Mansion House to be enjoyed by the wider
community, as opposed to the current situation. Furthermore, the removal of the
conference centre and creation of a walkway between Mansion House and the Stable
Block opens reinstates views. The proposed pedestrian access gate at the north-western
corner of the Site would also serve to break up the dominant wall, allowing for passing
views of the Stable Block.

Page 53



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Officer’s response

15.35 The Local Planning Authority’s severe housing land supply deficit and the requirements

of the NPPF mean that all sites should be considered for optimisation. In May 2018, the
Licensing Planning Policy Committee took a decision to set aside Policy DM11 (Housing
Density) and Policy DM13 (Building Heights) as these policies were restricting
opportunities for growth in the Borough.

15.36 Significant weight should be given to the consultation responses from Historic England. It

considers that the scheme is capable of meeting the requirements of Paragraph 190 of
the NPPF, to avoid or minimise harm to significance. Officers acknowledge that the Site
currently comprises buildings and hardstanding that make a limited contribution to the
significance of the two listed buildings or the wider Conservation Area. The proposal
seeks to remove unsightly buildings from the Site and replace these with sensitively
designed buildings, which respond to the location, massing and materials of the historic
buildings and the Conservation Area setting. The Local Planning Authority’s Design and
Conservation Officer concludes that the harm to the heritage significance of the whole
Site is regarded as less than substantial.

15.37 In considering comments from Historic England and the Local Planning Authority’s

Design and Conservation Officer, it is imperative to consider the scheme benefits. The
proposal seeks the conversion of listed buildings, which are considered surplus to
requirements and which would fail to attract office occupiers due to their constraints. It
seeks the provision of new residential dwellings, on-site affordable housing and a
payment in-lieu. There is also a contribution to improve pedestrian facilities and junction
improvements at Worple Road and Chalk Lane. These benefits are considered wide
ranging and outweigh the scheme’s disadvantages.

15.38 In summary, the proposal seeks to remove buildings from the Site that do not currently

15.39

15.40

enhance the integrity of the listed buildings or the Conservation Area. The Application
has worked proactively to respond to comments from Historic England and the Local
Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer, to present a well-considered
scheme, which optimises the Site, delivers a meaningful supply of new homes, whilst
respecting the historic context.

Townscape and Visual Impact

Chapter 12 of the NPPF relates to the achievement of well-deigned places. Paragraph 127 of
the NPPF sets out that planning decisions should ensure that developments are (inter alia)
visually attractive as a result of good architecture and layout and are sympathetic to local
character, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting.

Policy DM9 (Townscape Character and Local Distinctiveness) sets out that Planning
Permission will be granted for proposals which make a positive contribution to the Borough’s
visual character and appearance. In assessing this, the following will be considered:

e compatibility with local character and the relationship to the existing townscape and wider
landscape;

e the surrounding historic and natural environment;

e the setting of the proposal site and its connection to its surroundings; and the inclusion of
locally distinctive features and use of appropriate materials.

Page 54



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.41 Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for New Developments, including House Extensions) sets
out that development proposals will be required to incorporate principles of good design. The
most essential elements identified as contributing to the character and local distinctiveness of
a street or area which should be respected, maintained or enhanced include, but are not limited,
to the following:

prevailing development typology, including housing types and sizes;

prevailing density of the surrounding area;

scale, layout, height, form (including roof forms), massing;

plot width and format which includes spaces between buildings;

building line; and

typical details and key features such as roof forms, window format, building materials and
design detailing of elevations, existence of grass verges etc.

15.42 In May 2018, the Licensing Planning Policy Committee took a decision to set aside Policy
DM13 (Building Heights). This was on the basis of the policy restricting opportunities for
growth in the Borough.

15.43 A Townspace, Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal (dated July 2019) and an
Addendum (dated 24 December 2019) accompanies this application. The Appraisal was
submitted with the scheme, seeking 115 apartments/dwellings. The Appraisal was
submitted with the revised and current scheme, comprising 98 apartments/dwellings.

Townscape/Landscape effects:
15.44 The Townspace, Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal (July 2019) sets out:

o that the woodland, adjacent to the Site, would experience a negligible effect as a result of
the development

e the proposal present an opportunity to reverse some characteristics associated with the
existing office block, noted as the most dominant detractor within the Conservation Area

e the proposal has been designed to respect the Site and its surroundings.

15.45 The Townspace, Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal (dated July 2019) does acknowledge
that the proposed development could cause some adverse townscape/landscape character
effects, including:

e  Tree clearance to facilitate the proposed secondary secondary vehicular access to the Site
would alter the experience of Chalk Lane to be more open or less enclosed than the
prevailing townscape character. This slightly increases the exposure of receptors within
the public realm to the built-form, features and activity within the Site

e A new gateway is proposed within the wall on Chalk Lane, approximately 14m south of
where the wall turns the corner into Worple Road. This may be regarded as an interruption
to the otherwise unifying feature that is a definitive component of the road’s scenic qualities

e The protrusion of the proposed Block A over the boundary wall at the corner of Chalk Lane
and Worple Road would increases the extent (i.e. the height) to which solid mass is
experienced and increasing the degree to which the street is perceived as being enclosed.
This experience would be comparable to that of Chalk Lane, which is enclosed by dense
tree cover rather than built-form

e The proposed development may increase pedestrian and vehicular flow through the
Conservation Are and domestic activity associated with the proposed development may
cause a low-level of disturbance, with an adverse effect on the perceived peacefulness of
the roads and Conservation Area.

Page 55



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.46 The Townspace, Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal (dated July 2019) sets out that the
above adverse effects are considered to be relatively small-scale changes within the context of
the roads surrounding the Site and the Conservation Area as a whole.

Visual effects:

15.47 The Townspace, Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal (dated July 2019) sets out that the
proposed development could cause some adverse effects on the visual amenity experienced
around the junction of Chalk Lane and Worple Road, including:

e  The protrusion of proposed Block A over the wall would re-apportion the current balance
of hard elements in relation to the sky within the visual composition. It would make the
built-form more dominant and alter the visual context of the wall. Furthermore, it may also
curtail views to the weathervane, which is situated on the roof of the Grade Il listed Stable
Block. Aside from historic/cultural associations with the weathervane, it may be regarded
as an orientation reference/landmark, on account of it penetrating the skyline

e The proposed pedestrian gateway on Chalk Lane would interrupt the baseline visual
amenity afforded by the wall as an inherently singular form of uninterrupted brickwork for
almost its entire length along Chalk Lane.

15.48 The Townscape, Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal (dated July 2019) sets out that it
should be noted that Block A was designed to take architectural cues from the built-environment
within which it would be situated and accordingly it's material choice and form would not appear
inappropriate or out of context. Similarly, the design of the proposed gateway through the high
brick wall would not be without precedent, as a similar existing gateway is located a short
distance north of the Site, along Worple Road, providing access into number 39.

15.49 As above, the Townscape, Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal (dated July 2019) sets out
the potentially adverse implications of the proposal. But, it also recognizes that the proposal
facilitates the removal of the existing office building and redevelops the Site with a scheme that
respects and draws upon the positive components of the existing townscape.

15.50 The Addendum (dated 24 December 2019) sets out the changes to the scheme from that
originally submitted, to this current proposal.

15.51 The Addendum sets out that the reduction in scale and massing of Block F has a positive effect,
in relation to Townscape, Landscape and Visual receptors. In all instances, the implications of
this design change is minimal in the context of the experience of the townscape, landscape and
visual amenity from the public realm, when considering the vegetative barrier at the Site’s edge.
In respect of the townscape effects, the benefit of the reduced presence of the built-form would
be countered by the possible increase in adverse effects of pedestrian and cycle movements
though the Site and within the Conservation Area, facilitated by widened paths. This does
however allow for better connectivity, which is considered positively by Officers.

15.52 Officers recognize that there are some adverse landscape and visual effects of this proposal

and that representation received by nearby residents raise concern that this is an overly
dense development that adversely impacts the Site itself and the surroundings.

Page 56



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

15.53 The Site currently comprises poorly designed buildings, considered surplus to requirements
and hardstanding. This proposal presents an opportunity to redevelop the Site for residential
development. The Site is constrained by two listed buildings, a wall and a Conservation Area
and the Applicant has worked proactively with Officers to present a scheme that is designed
and scaled to respect the Site’s historic significance, but also according to the identified
character of the surrounding area. As detailed within the Design and Heritage section of this
Committee Report, the harm to the significance of the heritage assets at this Site is
considered less than substantial. In this case, the various benefits of the scheme are
considered to outweigh the adverse landscape and visual effects.

15.54 The proposal is considered to comply with policies DM9 and DM10.
16 Neighbouring Amenity

16.1  Policy DM9 (Townscape Character and Local Distinctiveness) sets out that Planning
Permission will be granted for proposals which make a positive contribution to the Borough’s
visual character and appearance. In assessing this, the following will be considered:

e compatibility with local character and the relationship to the existing townscape and wider
landscape;

e the surrounding historic and natural environment;

e the setting of the proposal site and its connection to its surroundings; and the inclusion of
locally distinctive features and use of appropriate materials.

16.2 Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for New Developments, including House Extensions) sets
out that development proposals will be required to incorporate principles of good design. The
most essential elements identified as contributing to the character and local distinctiveness of
a street or area which should be respected, maintained or enhanced include, but are not limited,
to the following:

prevailing development typology, including housing types and sizes;

prevailing density of the surrounding area;

scale, layout, height, form (including roof forms), massing;

plot width and format which includes spaces between buildings;

building line; and

typical details and key features such as roof forms, window format, building materials and
design detailing of elevations, existence of grass verges etc.

16.3  Concerns have been received from nearby residents regarding the impact of the proposed
development on neighbouring amenity, enjoyed at properties along Worple Road and Chalk
Lane. Concerns have been taken into consideration by Officers in this assessment.

16.4  The site is located within a typically residential area, with properties lining Chalk Lane and
Worple Road. There are no residential properties that would be impacted by the development
to the north or east of the site.

16.5 A d wall currently runs along the south-western and north-western boundary of the Site, which
provides the Site with a degree of visual enclosure. The wall ranges in height from 62.23 AOD
(3.07 metres from pavement edge) where the Site boundary meets the corner of Chalk Lane
and Worple Road to 62.35 AOD (2.74 metres from pavement edge) where the entrance gates
on Chalk Lane are located. It has an average height of 3 metres. The wall is proposed to be
retained, as part of the proposal, but with a new pedestrian entrance punched into this (between
Building A and the Grade Il listed building).

16.6  The proposal seeks to maintain separation distances from the wall and surrounding residential

properties located at Chalk Lane and Worple Road. The below table sets out approximate
distances from the proposed buildings from the wall and closest residential properties:

Page 57



23.09.2020

19/00999/FUL

Agenda Item 3

Buildings General Distance from wall Distance from nearest
height boundary (metres) residential properties
(metres) (metres)
Building A | 8.275 3.336 metres to the north- | 9.328 metres to the south-
west (Worple Road) west (properties located on
Worple Road)
4.967 metres to the south-
west (Chalk Lane) 16.307 metres to the south-
west (properties located on
Chalk Lane)
Buildings | 8.2 7.639 metres to the south 15.538 metres to the south
CandD (Chalk Lane) (Chalk Lane)
Block F 15.4 10.684 metres to the south | 16.044 metres to the south
(Chalk Lane) (Chalk Lane)

16.1 A daylight and sunlight report, dated 6 August 2019, accompanies this application. Each of the
surrounding residential properties with windows serving habitable rooms overlooking the Site
were included within the assessment. The Vertical Sky Component (VSC) and No-Sky Contour
(NSC) assessments show that the neighbouring properties will experience little to no change
as a result of the proposals, demonstrating compliance with BRE guidelines for daylighting. In
respect of sunlight, all relevant neighbouring windows were fully compliant with BRE guidelines
for Annual Probable Sunlight Hours, with the scheme in place.

16.2  In addition to the daylight and sunlight assessments, sunlight amenity levels at neighbouring
property gardens was assessed. The results show that all gardens would remain adequately
sunlit throughout the year, with the scheme in place. It is considered to meet BRE targets for
sunlight amenity.

16.3  Overall, the assessment sets out that the impacts caused to neighbouring properties is minor
and the scheme fully accords with BRE targets.

16.4 A letter, dated 8 January 2020, accompanies this application, which considers the daylight and
sunlight implications of the revised scheme. The amendments to the scheme, comprising a
reduction in height of Building A and Block F and a reduction in footprint of Block F are
considered to improve the position in relation to daylight and sunlight levels to neighbours.

16.5 Paragraph 6.57 of the Planning Statement, sets out that in considering potential amenity
impacts to neighbouring properties, construction noise has been considered. It is anticipated
that, subject to a grant of permission, a Construction Management Plan, would be required
which would set out strict hours of construction to minimise any potential harm to neighbouring
properties.

Page 58



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

16.6 In considering the above, Officers note that the Site comprises built form at present, with
buildings that arguably fail to enhance the significance of the two listed buildings on the Site or
the wider Conservation Area. The proposal presents a logical layout of buildings, incorporating
hard and soft landscaping, respecting and enhancing the two listed buildings. The architectural
character of the development is considered to respond to the Site’s surroundings, but with a
more contemporary and sustainable context. The proposed buildings are set in from the wall
and adequately sited from neighbouring dwellings lining Chalk Lane and Worple Road. This
ensures that the neighbouring amenity enjoyed at these properties is not adversely affected by
the proposed development.

16.7  In summary, the proposal is not considered to adversely harm neighbouring amenity enjoyed
at neighbouring properties. It is considered to comply with Policy DM10 of the Development
Management Policies Document (2015).

17  Air Quality

17.1  Paragraph 170 of the NPPF sets out that planning decisions should prevent new development
from contributing to, or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by (inter
alia) unacceptable levels of air pollution.

17.2  Paragraph 181 of the NPPF sets out that opportunities to improve air quality or mitigate impacts
should be identified, such as through traffic and travel management and green infrastructure
provision and management.

17.3  An Air Quality Assessment, dated 12 February 2020 accompanies this application. This
considers the air quality impacts from the construction phase and once the proposed
development is fully operational.

17.4  For the construction phase, the most important consideration is dust. Without appropriate
mitigation, dust could cause temporary soiling of surfaces, particularly windows, cars and
laundry. The mitigation measures provided would ensure that the risk of adverse dust effects is
reduced to a level categorised as ‘not significant’.

17.5 For the operational phase, arrivals at and departures from the proposed development may
change the number, type and speed of vehicles using the local road network. Changes in road
vehicle emissions are the most important considered during this phase of development.
Atmospheric dispersion modeling has been undertaken for the first year in which the
development is expected to be fully operational, in 2021. The operational impact of the
proposed development on existing receptors is predicted to be ‘negligible’ taking into account
the changes in pollutant concentrations and absolute levels. The operational air quality effects
are considered to be ‘not significant’ overall.

17.6  The Local Planning Authority’s Environmental Health Officer reviewed the Air Quality
Assessment. The report is considered sound. It uses established guidance and methodology,
coming to a standardized outcome. This type of application is not considered to have significant
ongoing air quality impacts. Subject to planning permission being granted, a Condition is
recommended, to secure the mitigation methods detailed in the report.

17.7  The proposal is considered to comply with Policy DM10.

18 Highways and Parking

18.1  Chapter 9 of the NPPF relates to the promotion of sustainable transport Paragraph 108 sets
out that in assessing applications for development, it should be ensured that appropriate

opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be, or have been, taken up and that
safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users.

Page 59



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

18.2  Paragraph 109 of the NPPF sets out that development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

18.3  Paragraph 108 of the NPPF sets out that in assessing applications for development, it should
be ensured that:

a) appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be — or have been
— taken up, given the type of development and its location;

b) safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users; and

c) any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms of
capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated to an
acceptable degree.

18.4 Policy CS16 encourages development proposals that foster an improved and integrated
transport network and facilitate a shift of emphasis to non car modes as a means of access to
services and facilities. Development proposals should be appropriate for the highways network
in terms of the volume and nature of traffic generated, provide appropriate and effective parking
provision, both on and off-site, and vehicular servicing arrangements. Furthermore,
development proposals must ensure that vehicular traffic generated does not create new, or
exacerbate existing, on street parking problems, not materially increase other traffic problems.

18.5 Policy DM36 sets out that to secure sustainable transport patterns across the Borough, the
Council will (inter alia) prioritise the access needs of pedestrians and cyclists in the design of
new developments.

18.6  Representation received sets out that the roads surrounding the Site are frequently congested
and difficult to navigate. Concerns have been raised by nearby residents regarding the increase
in traffic along Chalk Lane in particular, the impact of increased traffic on school traffic, the
proposed access to the Site from Chalk Lane, the lack of car parking proposed at the Site and
potential overspill onto surrounding roads. Concerns have been taken into consideration by
Officers within the assessment.

18.7  The Parking Standards for Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
(2015) sets out minimum parking standards for residential development in the Borough. These
are summarised in the below table:

1 & 2 bedroom flats 1 space per unit
3+ bedroom flats 1.5 spaces per unit
1 & 2 bedroom houses 1 space per unit

3 bedroom houses 2 spaces per unit
4+ bedroom houses 3 space per unit

Page 60



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

18.8 A Transport Assessment, prepared by i-Transport accompanies this application, dated 16
August 2019. It was prepared based on the originally submitted scheme, seeking 115
apartments/dwellings. The scheme was revised throughout the application’s determination
period and a Technical Note, also prepared by i-Transport, dated 5 February 2020, sought to
respond to the revised scheme, comprising 98 apartments/dwellings, and comments raised by
SCC Highways. The below assessment refers to both the Transport Assessment and the
Technical Note.

18.9 The Transport Assessment sets out that the Site is located approximately 1km to the south of
Epsom town centre. The Site is well connected to a safe pedestrian and cycle network,
providing easy and convenient access to a range of destinations, including Epsom town centre.
There are bus stops located on Ashley Road, Birches Close and Woodcote Green Road,
providing frequent services to locations including Tadworth, Crawley, Gatwick and Morden.
Epsom train station has frequent services to London, Guildford and Dorking.

Access

18.10 The Transport Assessment sets out that the main vehicular access to the Site is from Ashley
Road, via the existing access to the Atkins offices. Both employees of Atkins and residents of
this scheme (subject to planning permission being granted) would jointly use this access. The
access would allow vehicles to park along the access road or into the proposed basement car
park, beneath Block F.

18.11 The Transport Assessment sets out that pedestrian and cycle access will be provided onto
Ashley Road. Pedestrians and cyclists will also be able to use the gate next to the existing
vehicular entrance at Chalk Lane. Furthermore, a further pedestrian access point will be
provided onto Chalk Lane, through the existing wall. This provides the opportunity to access
Woodcote Green Road and bus stops.

18.12 The Transport Assessment sets out that an additional point of emergency access is sought
from Chalk Lane. The Technical Note sets out that this is required, so that a fire tender can gain
access to all buildings (excluding Block F). At present, a fire tender would not be able to access
these buildings via the access onto Ashley Road, due to the level difference, or by using the
gated access from Chalk Lane, due to the width between the gates. A fire tender would use the
emergency access only and no other vehicular access would be permitted. It is not considered
that the emergency access would result in any measurable increase in traffic movements, along
Chalk Lane. Subject to planning permission being granted, emergency access is incorporated
within a Condition requiring a Delivery and Servicing Management Plan.

18.13 The Transport Assessment sets out that pedestrian and cycle access will be provided onto
Ashley Road. As part of the Atkins development, a new shared footway/cycleway is provided
to the south west of Woodcote Grove, which continues to the access to the Atkins offices. From
this point, cyclists will be able to cycle along the access road, to gain access to the Site. It is
proposed to provide a footway on the south western side of the carriageway. This footway
provides a pedestrian route to the proposed entrance to Building F and a pedestrian ramp.

18.14 The Transport Assessment sets out that pedestrians and cyclists will be able to use the gate
next to the existing vehicular entrance onto Chalk Lane. A further point of pedestrian access
will be provided onto Chalk Lane through the existing wall in the south western corner of the
site. This will provide the opportunity to access the Woodcote Green Road and the bus stops
located to the west.

Car parking and cycle parking
18.15 The proposal sought 85 car parking spaces (a ratio of 0.87 spaces per dwelling). The applicant

amended the car parking provision following Planning Committee on 23 July 2020. The scheme
proposes 90 car parking spaces, including 9 disabled spaces.

Page 61



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

18.16 The application proposes the following mix:

1 bedroom flats = 27

2 bedroom flats = 51

3 bedroom flats = 6

1 bedroom houses =0
2 bedroom houses = 14
3 bedroom houses =0
4 bedroom houses = 0

18.17 In line with the Parking Standards for Residential Development SPD (2015), the proposal
requires a minimum of 101 car parking spaces. The car parking provision proposed therefore
falls short of the local planning policy requirement.

18.18 SCC Highways has confirmed that the Applicant undertook an on-street car parking survey
analysis of the surrounding highway network, to identify whether any car parking overspill could
be accommodated. This detailed that if overspill did happen, it could be accommodated within
marked parking bays, the closest of which are located on Chalk Lane and Worple Road (noting
the parking restrictions in place) with space capacity, without causing a highway safety impact.
SCC Highways confirmed that it is generally recognised that residents park overnight, rather
than during the day, so would fall outside the hours of restriction on Worple Road.

18.19 The Technical Note sets out that 196 cycle spaces are proposed on the Site, in excess of Surrey
County Council’s standards. The Applicant has confirmed that this is to promote sustainable
modes of transport. Following Planning Committee on 23 July 2020, the applicant has reduced
the cycle spaces to 122.

18.20  The Technical Note sets out that seven spaces are proposed to be accessed from Chalk Lane.
Approximately two vehicles will use Chalk Lane in the morning and evening peak hour, to gain
access to the Site. This equates to one vehicle every 30 minutes during the peak hours. It is
not considered necessary for two vehicles to be able to pass when using this access, as the
probability of vehicles meeting is low.

18.21 The Transport Assessment sets out that there are extensive parking restrictions within the
vicinity of the Site. Along Woodcote Road and Woodcote Green Road there are double and
single yellow lines, on Chalk Lane there are a combination of double yellow lines, single yellow
lines and residents only parking restrictions and on Worple Road there is a combination of
double yellow lines and single yellow lines. This would act as a deterrent for individuals
purchasing apartments without an allocated parking space, if they had a car.

18.22 The Transport Statement sets out that a car club would be provided as part of the proposal,
enabling residents who only need occasional access to a car to purchase an apartment without
a car parking space.

18.23  The car parking provision proposed falls short of the local planning policy requirement, as
detailed above. This is considered to weigh negatively in the planning balance for this scheme.
However, the car parking is predominately provided at basement level, which lessens the need
for car parking at surface level, which could detract from the historic significance of the Site.
Car parking overspill can be accommodated, without causing a highway safety impact and a
car club would be available for use by residents. In considering this, the shortfall of the car
parking provision is considered acceptable.

Page 62



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Traffic Impact

18.24  The Transport Assessment sets out that the proposed development is anticipated to generate
approximately 30 two-way movements in the morning and evening peak. This equates to one
additional vehicle movement every two minutes. For clarity, morning peak hour is 0800 — 0900
and evening peak hour is, 1700 — 1800).

18.25 The Transport assessment sets out that only10% of the parking proposed on the Site is
accessed from Chalk Lane. Chalk Lane will therefore only be used by approximately four
vehicles in the morning and evening peak hour to gain access to the Site. This equates to one
vehicle every 15 minutes during the peak hours. This level of additional traffic will not have a
material impact on the operation of Chalk Lane.

Capacity Assessment

18.26  The Transport Assessment sets out that operational assessments Ashley Road/Woodcote
Grove (Site access) and Worple Road/Ashley Road mini roundabout, were undertaken.

18.27  The simple priority junction at Ashley Road/Worple Grove would operate within capacity in the
future, without material queueing or delay. With traffic growth up to 2022, the queue length on
Ashley Road south is anticipated to increase to 15 vehicles in the morning peak. In the evening
peak the queue length on Worple Road is anticipated to increase to seven vehicles. Queue
length increases on all other arms of the junction during both the morning and evening are
limited to two vehicles.

18.28 The Transport Assessment sets out that with the addition of traffic from the development, the
queue length on Ashley Road south increases by one vehicle in the morning peak. Queue
lengths on all other arms of the roundabout in the morning peak remain unchanged. In the
evening peak the additional traffic from the development is anticipated to increase queues on
Worple Road by one vehicle. Queue lengths on all other arms of the roundabout in the evening
peak remain unchanged. The development will not therefore have a material impact on the
operation of the Ashley Road/Worple Road mini roundabout.

Traffic surveys

18.29 The Technical Note sets out that when the traffic surveys were undertaken, the new Atkins
office building was not occupied. Atkins staff were however still based on site in the old
buildings, captured in the surveys. The Transport Assessment that supported the planning
application for Atkins established that whilst additional members of staff are anticipated to the
present on site, when the new building is occupied, no further car parking was proposed. The
relocation to the new building will not generate additional traffic.

Travel plan

18.30 A travel plan, dated 16 August 2019, also prepared by i-Transport, accompanies this
application. It was produced in conjunction with the Transport Assessment and the Technical
Note refers to this. Its purpose is to identify opportunities for the effective promotion and delivery
of sustainable transport initiatives in connection with the development, to reduce the demand
for travel, by less sustainable modes.

18.31 The travel plan sets out that new residents would be provided with travel information during the
purchase of a property, including a leaflet about the sustainability credentials of the
development. The developer would appoint a travel plan co-ordinator, to manage the day-to-
day delivery of the measures in the travel plan. A car club would also be provided as part of the
proposal.

Page 63



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

18.32 The travel plan would be monitored for a period of five years, following the occupation of the
development, to ensure that it is effective in encouraging residents to use sustainable modes
of travel.

Jockey Club

18.33 On behalf of the Jockey Club, Rapleys submitted two letters of representation (8 October 2019
and 12 March 2020). The letters seek to ensure that a potential impact of the proposed
development on the operation of the racehorse training yards, particularly highway safety for
racehorses, is fully considered and addressed in the determination of the application.

18.34 The representation, dated 8 October 2019, sets out that the Jockey Club has no objection to
the principle of the proposed development, but it does object to specific aspects of the proposal,
on the grounds that they have a potential impact on highway safety for racehorses and riders
accessing to the gallops.

18.35 The representation, dated 8 October 2019, sets out that the Durdans Stables, located on the
western side of Chalk Lane, to the south of the Site, is a racing stable yard. Horses will access
the gallops at Epsom Downs Training Grounds from Chalk Lane, via Langley Vale Road. The
Durdans Stables is currently vacant, but, the representation sets out that it is essential that its
horse access is protected, to ensure its occupation in the future, as a racing stable yard.

18.36 The representation, dated 8 October 2019, sets out that the operation of the Durdans Stables
relies on Chalk Lane being safe for racehorses and any increase in highway safety risks is a
significant concern to The Jockey Club.

18.37 The representation, dated 12 March 2020, sets out that the scheme amendment and Technical
Note have not fully addressed The Jockey Club’s concerns. As such, The Jockey Club maintain
their objection to the specific aspects of the proposal. The scheme amendment reduces the
number of units on the Site, but is unrelated to the issues raised by the Jockey Club in the
previous representation, in terms of the access/emergency access onto Chalk Lane.

18.38 The representation, dated 12 March 2020, sets out that proposed number of parking spaces to
be accessed from Chalk Lane has been reduced from 11 to seven. Additionally, the Applicant
sought to address concerns by measures including updating the travel plan, vehicle tracking
and provision of contributions to improve the existing arrangement for pedestrians at Worple
Road. Cottee Transport Planning, appointed by The Jockey Club, reviewed the Technical Note
and considers that this does not fully address the Jockey Club’s objections.

18.39 The representation, dated 12 March 2020, sets out that Applicant has not considered that Chalk
Lane is a restricted and narrow road, used by local racehorse establishments. , Any increase
in the use of this route, even for emergency vehicle use, would give rise to increased safety
risks to racehorses, particularly with the speed limit of 30mph with no street lighting. Therefore,
the proposed amendment to reduce the number of parking spaces to be accessed from Chalk
Lane and other measures proposed do not sufficiently address the highway safety concerns for
racehorses and riders.

18.40 The Applicant responded on 12 February 2020, setting out that seven car parking spaces would
be accessed from Chalk Lane, ensuring that there will not be a significant increase in traffic
movements along Chalk Lane. SCC Highways was aware of the Jockey Club’s representation
and raised no objection to the proposal. Furthermore, Surrey Fire and Rescue Services raised
no objection to the proposal.

Page 64



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Surrey Fire and Rescue Services

18.41 Surrey Fire and Rescue Services formally commented on this application on 14 March 2020.
The response sets out that the application has been examined by a Fire Safety Inspecting
Officer and it appears to demonstrate compliance with the Fire Safety Order, in respect of
means of warning and escape in case of fire. It provides information that should be carried out
prior to the start of works, should planning permission be granted. These are contained within
Informatives, should planning permission be granted.

Contributions

18.42 The proposal seeks to provide a contribution to improve the pedestrian facilities at the Worple
Road junction.

18.43 A junction improvement is sought for the junction at Worple Road and Chalk Lane.

18.44 There is no specific bus stop improvements detailed within the application documentation, but,
it is understood that the Applicant is willing to secure this. This would be subject to a scheme
to be agreed with Surrey Passenger Transport Services and a financial contribution secured
within a S106, should planning permission be granted.

SCC Responses

18.45 SCC Highways requested further information from the transport consultant on 08 October 2019,
including the traffic survey data that was used to inform the junction modelling and peak hours,
the junction model files and the validation report/process that supports the junction models and
outlines how these have been verified. Data was provided to SCC Highways on 10 October
2019 by i-Transport. SCC Highways issued a holding response on 11 October 2019, advising
that the junction models produced had been submitted and passed to the Surrey Traffic
Modelling Assessment team.

18.46 SCC Highways provided a formal response on 11 November 2019 and again on 2 April 2020.
Further information was requested by the Applicant. At the time of the traffic surveys in May
2019, the Atkins Headquarters was not operational and therefore, SCC Highways requested
that the Applicant submitted evidence to demonstrate that the level of usage of the Atkins
Headquarters, and corresponding base highway network flows could be justified as
representative. Furthermore, visibility and swept path analysis was requested of the main Site
access, from Ashley Road, to demonstrate that this could provide simultaneous two-way
movements and the required visibility splays.

18.47 SCC Highways provided a final response on 18 May 2020, with no objection to the application.
The response proposed Obligations for a S106 Agreement and Conditions, should planning
permission be granted. Within this response, there is a ‘note to planner. The notes are
summarised below:

e SCC Highways was presented with additional evidence as requested that addresses
previous concerns raised. This enabled SCC Highways to compare the traffic date with
that collected in relation to the Atkins Headquarters development consideration. SCC
Highways confirm that the traffic surveys undertaken in May 2019 are representative.

e The traffic survey data is considered reliable and appropriate to form the baseline on which
the junction modelling assessment has been carried out. The junction modelling highlights
that the local mini-roundabout junction of Worple Road and Ashley Road is operating at
capacity.

e  The Applicant presented a more detailed assessment of the Ashley Road junction, in terms
of visibility considerations. The Applicant provided sufficient information in order for SCC
Highways to secure a Condition, should planning permission be granted, to ensure
improved visibility splay.

Page 65



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

e SCC Highways responded on a number of comments in connection to re-opening the
access on Chalk Lane for residential parking and day to day servicing, as well as creating
an emergency access. SCC Highways does have reservations around the intensified use
of the Chalk Lane access via Worple Road and Chalk Lane, as these are narrow roads
with physical restrictions. But, the Applicant sought to respond on these concerns and
reduced the number of overall defined car parking spaces available via the Chalk Lane
access (from 11 to 7) and reduced the number of units from 115 to 98. This reduces the
overall impact along Chalk Lane to a level that would be considered within the daily
variations expected on the highway network. Additionally, a Delivery and Servicing Plan
was prepared by the Applicant, outlining refuse collection, which is considered acceptable
by SCC Highways. This plan also responds to the future management of the Chalk Lane
access, ensuring that this is safe and should not impact on the operation of Chalk Lane.
Subject to planning permission being granted, the Delivery and Servicing Plan is
conditioned.

e In terms of emergency access, SCC Highways recommend that the relevant statutory
operators for both emergency and refuse collection are also undertaken. SCC Highways
also recommend that the Environmental Services are consulted to ensure that the
approach to refuse and waste collection is acceptable and deliverable. It should be noted
that Officers consulted SCC Fire and Rescue, the Local Planning Authority’s refuse team
and the Local Planning Authority’s Environmental Health Team.

e Although SCC Highways has some small reservations about the approach to re-open the
Chalk Lane access, the development is proposing to provide a number of positive
measures to further reduce the impacts of the development. These include car parking
levels at a ratio is 0.86:1, which is the impacts of the development. These include car
parking levels at a ratio is 0.86:1 which is supported by SCC Highways. The proposals
seeks approximately 120 cycle spaces, which ensures that sustainable travel is being
promoted as a real alternative to car use.

e The Applicant has agreed to fund a number of transport improvements as part of the
mitigation strategy. This includes a car club, a highway junction improvement scheme at
Worple Road and Chalk Lane.

Assessment conclusions

18.48 The Site is within a sustainable location. It benefits from good public transport links and is
connected to a pedestrian and cycle network.

18.49 The proposal has been amended following Planning Committee on 23 July 2020, seeking to
provide 90 car parking spaces, falling below the local policy requirement of 101 car parking
spaces for this scheme.

18.50 SCC Highways has confirmed that the Applicant undertook an on-street car parking survey
analysis of the surrounding highway network, to identify whether any car parking overspill could
be accommodated. This detailed that if overspill did happen, it could be accommodated within
marked parking bays, with space capacity, without causing a highway safety impact.
Furthermore, given the sustainable location of the Site, the scheme benefits, including the
provision of a car club, it has sought to limit reliance on the private car and promote sustainable
transport modes, complying with the objectives of paragraph 108 of the NPPF.

18.51 SCC Highways has assessed the application and raises no objection, subject to Obligations
and Conditions being secured, should planning permission be granted. With these in place,
there is no robust reason to refuse the application on highways grounds. It is considered
acceptable and complies with policies CS16 and DM36.

Page 66



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Update

18.52 Planning Committee raised concerns that the development is not policy compliant in terms of
car parking provision and that the car club would not be located within the Site. The distances
of the Site to nearby public transport nodes was also queried.

Applicant’s response

18.53 The Applicant has made amendments to the scheme, to address concerns raised, while
ensuring that the development still encourages residents to choose more sustainable
transport options. The amendments comprise:

¢ Amended car parking layout to provide 5 additional car park spaces, 4 of which
are in the basement and 1 to the side of Mansion House. As a result, the number
of car parking spaces on the Site has risen to 90

e Providing 122 cycle spaces. This exceed SCC Highways cycle parking
requirements by 15%

¢ Retained the required number of disabled bays and electric charging points
e Moved the car club space into the Site
¢ Submitted a car parking management plan.

18.54 A Technical Note, dated 30 July 2020, has been prepared to address the impact of the
development on Chalk Lane. This sets out that the current buildings have a floor area of
2,520sgm, which requires a minimum of 25 car parking spaces. If the office use is
retained, employees have unrestricted access to the Site via the Chalk Lane access.
This equates to approximately 20 car movements along Chalk Lane in the morning and
evening peak, or alternatively on vehicle every 3 minutes.

18.55 The updated transport note sets out the 8 car parking spaces are proposed to be
accessed from Chalk Lane, as part of the proposal. These would be allocated to specific
dwellings and informal car parking, controlled by a car park management plan.
Approximately 2 vehicles in the morning and evening peak hours are expected, which is
a significant reduction in comparison to the existing office use on Site.

18.56 A separate Technical Note, also dated 30 July 2020, accompanies this application. It
sets out that a Car Park Management Plan is anticipated to be secured by Condition,
subject to planning permission being granted. This would be a ‘live’ document that is kept
under review. The Technical Note sets out that 90 car parking spaces, including 9
disabled spaces, are proposed. These are proposed to be allocated as follows:

7 x 3-bed dwellings 1 car park space allocated
64 x 2-bed dwellings 1 car park space allocated
13 x 1-bed dwelling 1 car park space allocated
14 x 1-bed dwelling Car free (no car park space)
Visitors 5 spaces

Car club 1 space on Site

Page 67



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

18.57

18.58

18.59

18.60

18.61

18.62

18.63

18.64

18.65

18.66

The Technical Note sets out that residents purchasing an apartment would be forbidden
from applying for an on-site parking permit, to prevent pressure on existing residents
parking zones.

The Technical Note sets out that accessible units are proposed within Block F, which
would be allocated to flats within this building. An additional disabled car parking space is
sought by Mansion House, to be allocated to any unit within Block A — Block E, based on
need.

The Technical Note sets out that the Applicant proposes for a management company to
be set up to manage the Site and to penalise any unauthorised car parking, which
access the Site via the Chalk Lane entrance.

The Technical Note sets out that the eight affordable dwellings proposed are 2-bed or 3-
bed and will each benefit from an allocated car parking space.

The Technical Note sets out that the provision of electric charging points would be
secured by Condition, should planning permission be granted. A total of 20 spaces would
be provided with a charging socket.

Car parking allocation

The Technical Note sets out the allocation of the 8 surface car parking spaces, accessed
from Chalk Lane, as follows:

¢ 7 dwellings within Block A would have a car parking space, accessed from Chalk
Lane (80-90 metre walking distance, 1-minute walk);

¢ 1 dwelling within Block A would have an allocated car parking space within the
basement (150 metre walking distance, 2 minute walk); and

e The remaining car parking space accessed from Chalk Lane is a disabled space
and would be available for any resident within Blocks A — E, based on need.

The Technical Note sets out the allocation of the 13 surface car parking spaces
accessed from Ashley Road, as follows:

o 7 flats within Block F will have a parking space along the access road (115 metre
distance, 2-minute walk)

o 5 visitor parking spaces and 1 space reserved for a car club, to be located along
the access road.

The Technical Note sets out the allocation of the basement parking, access from Ashley
Road:

. 47 of the flats within Block F would have a parking space in the basement
) 10 of the flats within Block F would be ‘car free’

The Technical Note sets out the remaining allocation of car parking, including:

. 14 terrace dwellings benefiting from 1 allocated parking space in the basement (55-
117 metre walking distance, 2-minute walk)
. 7 flats within Mansion House benefiting from 1 allocated parking space in the

basement (86 metre walking distance, 1-minute walk).

The Technical Note sets out that a car club would be provided and secured within a
S106 Agreement.

Page 68



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Car Park Management

18.67 The Technical Note sets out management measures. This includes making purchases
aware of the car-free apartments, allocated parking spaces and visitor parking spaces,
by the sales team. A management company would be responsible for the ongoing
management and maintenance of communal areas and would monitor the use of visitor
car parking spaces and in areas where car parking is not permitted.

Officer’s response

18.68 The Site is within a sustainable location. It benefits from good public transport links and is
connected to a pedestrian and cycle network. It was initially designed to limit reliance on the
private car and promote sustainable transport modes, to comply with the objectives of the
NPPF. If overspill did happen, it has been demonstrated that it could be accommodated without
causing a highway safety impact.

18.69 The applicant has sought to increase the number of car parking space on Site and reduce the
number of cycle spaces. Whilst not in strict conformity with the objectives of the NPPF, it is
considered that SCC Highways does not have an objection to the provision, subject to
Obligations and Conditions being secured.

18.70 SCC Highways provided an updated response, dated 02.09.2020. There is no objection, subject
to Conditions and Informatives, should planning permission be granted. There is an extensive
‘note to planner’, much of what mirrors the previous consultation response. In its updated
response, SCC Highways sets out that the overall level of on-site car parking has increased.
The Site is considered a sustainable location and capable of supporting a reduced level of car
parking, as accepted previously. Increasing the level of reliance of private car use over other
sustainable modes of transport is at odds with the primary overarching aims and objectives of
the NPPF, which promotes sustainable transport.

18.71 In its updated response, SCC Highways has amended proposed Obligations and Conditions,
subject to planning permission being granted. Of importance, SCC Highways requires two car
clubs: one on-site and one off-site. SCC Highways informed Officers that car clubs are viable
when placed off-site only. The Applicant has sought on-site provision and so the compromise
reached is for one car club on-site and one off-site.

19 Refuse and Recycling

19.1  Policy CS6 (Sustainability in New Developments) sets out that proposals for development
should result in a sustainable environment. To conserve natural resources, waste should be
minimised and recycling encouraged. Development should incorporate waste management
processes.

19.2 A Transport Assessment, prepared by i-Transport accompanies this application, dated 16
August 2019. It was prepared based on the originally submitted scheme, seeking 115
apartments/dwellings. The scheme was revised throughout the application’s determination
period and a Technical Note, also prepared by i-Transport, dated 5 February 2020, sought to
respond to the revised scheme, comprising 98 apartments/dwellings, and comments raised by
SCC Highways. The below assessment refers to both the Transport Assessment and the
Technical Note.

19.3  The Transport Assessment sets out service and refuse collection arrangements. It sets out that
the majority of bins on Site would be located within a bin store, located next to the turning head,
which is accessed from Ashley Road. A refuse collection vehicle would turn within the turning
head and collect bins from this store.

Page 69



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

19.4  There are four other bin stores located at the Site. A management company would bring these
bins to the entrance onto Chalk Lane, to be collected on the day refuse and recycling is due.
The management company would them be required to return the bins to the bin store. The
number of refuse vehicle movements on Chalk Lane will not increase as the refuse collection
vehicle already travels along Chalk Lane, to collect existing bins.

19.5 There is space within the Site for supermarket and parcel delivery vehicles.

19.6  The Technical Note clarifies that waste collection vehicles would be required to drive onto the
ramp, providing access to the basement car park of Block A and then reverse into the turning
head. The Note confirms that there should be no issue with undertaking this manoeuvre in
terms of the gradient of the ramp. Bins would be emptied on a level surface.

19.7 The Local Planning Authority’'s Waste team was formally consulted on this application.
Concerns were raised regarding the bin movement, required by the management company and
health and safety issues.

19.8 In its updated response, dated 02.09.2020, the Waste team confirm that the arrangements for
waste and recycling collections have not changed. There remains concern about the future
robustness of any arrangements for a management compact to move bins to and from
collections points.

19.9 A Condition is proposed as an appropriate mechanism requiring the Applicant to submit details
of the management company for approval by the Local Planning Authority. The Applicant also
confirmed that the Local Planning Authority would not have health and safety liability, this would
lie with the management company, to ensure it has appropriate insurance. The proposal is
considered to comply with Policy CS6.

20 Trees and Landscaping

20.1  Chapter 15 of the NPPF concerns the conservation and enhancement of the natural
environment. Paragraph 170 sets out that planning decisions should contribute to and
enhance the local environment by (inter alia) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of
the countryside and the wider benefits from ecosystem services, including trees and
woodland.

20.2  Paragraph 175 of the NPPF sets out that development resulting in the loss or deterioration or
irreplaceable habitats such as ancient woodland and ancient or veteran trees should be
refused, unless there are wholly exceptional reasons and a suitable compensation strategy
exists.

20.3  Policy DM5 (Trees and Landscape) of the Development Management Policies Document
(2015) sets out that the Borough'’s trees, hedgerows and other landscape features will be
protected and enhanced by (inter alia):

e Planting and encouraging others to plant trees and shrubs to create woodland, thickets
and hedgerows; and

e Requiring landscape proposals in submissions for new development, which retain existing
trees and other important landscape features where practicable and include the planting
of new semi-mature tree and other planting.

20.4 Policy DM5 further states that where trees, hedgerows or other landscape features are
removed, appropriate replacement planting will normally be required. Consideration should be
given to the use of native species as well as the adaptability to the likely effects of climate
change.

Page 70



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

20.5 Concerns have been raised by nearby residents regarding the proposed removal of trees, and
the impact this has on the Conservation Area and views from Chalk Lane. Concerns have been
taken into consideration by Officers in this assessment.

Trees
20.6  An Arboricultural Implications report, dated August 2019, accompanies this application.

20.7 105 individual trees, seven groups of trees, three hedges and one area of woodland within or
immediately adjacent to the Site. The trees are of generally low to moderate quality, with the
greatest density of specimens located adjacent to the western boundary. The dominant species
are common line, with a mix of ages (mature, semi-mature and young).

20.8 The Chalk Lane Conservation Area Character Appraisals requires the retention of mature or
semi-mature trees, which make a positive contribution to the character of the Conservation
Area. The Arboricultural Implications report assessed the individual and groups of trees within
or adjacent to the Site, which attributes would meet these criteria.

Trees to be removed

20.9 To accommodate the proposed development, 38 individual trees are proposed to be removed
because they are situated within the footprints of proposed structures or surfaces or because
they are too close to these to enable them to be retained.

20.10 The following are identified for removal:

e Category B: 6 (tree numbers: 16, 19, 22, 39, 62 and 98).

e Category C: 29

e Category U: 3 (these should be felled for arboricultural management reasons, irrespective
of the proposed development)

e Three groups of trees (G2 — G3 and G9) and two hedges (H1 and H2) are to be fully
removed. One group (G1) comprises of individual numbers: 9-45 and 51-103, along the
western boundary, which will be partially removed.

20.11  There are no Category A trees proposed to be removed.

20.12 20 of the 24 trees that constitute the main arboricultural features and made the greatest
contribution to the character and appearance of the local landscape will be retained. These
are located adjacent to Chalk Lane (tree numbers: 9-13, 21, 27, 29, 32, 36, 43-44, 46, 63, 77,
79-81 and 102-103)

20.13 Four of the individuals within this arboricultural feature are proposed to be removed, to
facilitate the development (tree numbers: 14, 16, 39 and 62). Tree number 14 is a Category
‘C’ hornbeam. The remaining three are category ‘B’.

Trees to be planted

20.14 Drawing 2068-TF-00-00-DR-L-1001 sets out that 46 trees are proposed to be planted, as part
of this development.

Trees to be pruned

20.15 Thirteen trees to be retained are to be pruned to facilitate implementation of the proposals
(tree numbers: 9-11, 12-13, 64, 77, 80, 81, 83, 84 and 109). The extent of pruning is minor.

Page 71



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

20.16  An Addendum to the Arboricultural Implications Report, dated January 2020 was prepared, to
take into consideration the revised scheme. It confirms that there is one reduction in the number
of trees needed to be pruned, tree number 77. Therefore, there are twelve trees proposed to
be pruned.

Root protection area (RPA) incursions
20.17 Twenty-four individuals demonstrate an incursion into their RPA.

20.18 An Addendum to the Arboricultural Implications Report, dated January 2020 was prepared, to
take into consideration the revised scheme. It confirms that four trees will be subject to minor
increases within their RPAs. It should be noted that these are not considered in addition to the
twenty-four trees.

Arboricultural Implications report conclusions

20.19 The proposed removal of individuals and groups of trees represent a partial alteration to the
main arboricultural feature of the Site, adjacent to Chalk Lane. It will have an initial notable short
to moderate term adverse impact on the arboricultural character and appearance of the local
landscape and the Conservation Area.

20.20 The proposed pruning is minor in extent and will not detract from the health or appearance of
the trees. It also complies with current British Standards.

20.21 The incursions into the RPA of trees to be retained are minor and subject to implementation of
the measures outlined on the Tree Protection Plan. No significant or long-term damage to their
root systems or rooting environments will occur.

20.22 The arboricultural impact of the scheme is of a medium magnitude. An Addendum to the
Arboricultural Implications Report, dated January 2020, was prepared, to take into
consideration the revised scheme. It concludes that the revised layout remains of medium
maghnitude.

20.23 The Local Planning Authority’s Tree Officer formally commented on this application on 12
December 2019. The response sets out that all of the trees on the Site are protected by a Tree
Protection Order (L1/W3). The tree protection measures are considered acceptable for the trees
that are to be retained. However, there is concern regarding the proposed removal of T16,
which is a London Plane. This is a mature specimen of some significance in the street scene,
which is clearly visible over the wall at Chalk Lane. This is a Category ‘B’ tree, which means
that it is of moderate quality, with the Arboricultural report setting out that it is a significance
component of the group of trees along the boundary.

20.24 The Arboricultural Implications report details the possibility of mitigating the loss of T16 (London
Plane) with replacement planting, which in the long term will replace its loss. The Local Planning
Authority’s Tree Officer accepts that mitigation planting might replace this tree in time, but, this
is a significant tree in the street scene, which is legally protected. This tree is established and
has reached maturity. There is a possibility that a replacement tree will not establish itself to
match that of the London Plane and there is a risk that a newly planted tree causes direct
damage to the wall as its roots establish. This could result in the removal of the replacement
tree(s) and make it less desirable for another tree to be planted, other than a small ornamental.

20.25 An Addendum to the Arboricultural Implications Report, dated January 2020 sought to respond
to the comments of the Local Planning Authority’s Tree Officer, specifically in relation to the
removal of T16 (London Plane). It sets out that while T16 is readily visible from the wall at Chalk
Lane, there are no long distance views of this tree. The tree is also considered to be out of
keeping with other trees on this boundary, which are predominantly common lime pollards.

Page 72



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

20.26 The Addendum to the Arboricultural Implications Report sets out that the replacement planting
of five “Tilia cordata” (Rancho) as detailed on the planting plan (2068-TF-00-00-DR-L-3001)
would restore the dominant boundary treatment of lime trees along Chalk Lane. Protection and
post management of these trees could ensure that they could reach maturity can be secured
through a Condition, should planning permission be granted. If approval for the removal of T16
was granted, the Local Planning Authority could place a TPO on any replacement plantings to
protect these in the future as they move towards maturity.

20.27 The Addendum to the Arboricultural Implications Report sets out there is risk that replacement
planting could damage the wall through root establishment. To try and prevent this, installation
of rooting barriers adjacent to the wall at the time of planting would significantly reduce the
likelihood of substantial root formation adjacent to the wall foundations, and thus direct damage
to the wall. Furthermore, if roots were to damage the wall, it could reasonable be prune and cut
as lime trees have a good tolerance of root pruning and disturbance.

20.28 The Local Planning Authority’s Tree Officer formally responded to the Addendum to the
Arboricultural Implications Report on 31 March 2020. The objection concerns two main areas:

e Potential damage from construction of Block A to Lime trees 9, 10 and 11 and Birch tree
8

e Collective loss of sylvan contribution to the Chalk Lane Conservation Area from the
removal of trees 14 — 19, in particular the loss of 14, 16 and 19. There is inadequate
mitigation planting and this is likely to have an adverse impact on residential amenity.

20.29 A Rebuttal report to the objections raised by the Local Planning Authority’s Tree Officer was
prepared, dated April 2020. This responds to the objections raised above.

20.30 The Rebuttal report sets out that the impacts on Birch Tree 8 and Lime Trees 9 — 11 have been
reduced further and there is no reason as to why any significant or adverse damage would
occur to the long-term retention of these individual trees, subject to a detailed and phased
arboricultural method statement and tree protection plans. These are subject to a Condition,
should planning permission be granted.

20.31 The Rebuttal report agrees that the removal of trees 14, 16 and 19 would at least in the short
term, denude a section of Chalk Lane and have an adverse impact on the character of
approximately 115 metres of the road. However, the remaining 1.17km would remain unaltered
in its leafy perception.

20.32 The rebuttal report sets out that the coordination of a detailed management plan, as well as the
provision of an extended rooting environment for proposed replacement trees would allow these
to reach maturity and contribute to the leafy character of Chalk Lane.

20.33 The Local Planning Authority’s Tree Officer informally responses to the rebuttal report on 12
May 2020, maintaining an objection. Further comments were provided on 30 June 2020. It is
the Local Planning Authority’s Tree Officer’s view that there a number of statements within the
rebuttal that are not considered plausible. This includes justifying why significant excavation
occurring within a RPA is acceptable, when a more harmonious objection would be for no
excavation and leaving the discovering of significant roots to chance.

Page 73



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

20.34 The Local Planning Authority’s Tree Officer does not consider that it is possible to safeguard
the lime trees by Condition as the excavation will be beyond their tolerance, whereby the
Applicant’s tree consultants consider that the scheme would be deliverable without detrimental
tree loss and damage. Should planning permission be granted and Conditions imposed, the
Local Planning Authority’s Tree Officer suggests a financial retainer is held, equivalent to the
CAVAT value of the threatened trees, so should they be irreparably damaged, the value is paid
into the LPA’s Green Infrastructure funds, to compensate the local community. This would be
secured within the S106 Agreement.

Landscaping

20.35 A landscape proposals plan (2068-TF-00-00-DR-L-1001) and planting plan (2068-TF-00-00-
DR-L-3001) is submitted with this application. The following summarises the proposed hard
and soft landscaping:

e Aformal courtyard, lawn and planting is proposed between Block A and the Grade I listed
Stable Block

e A paved courtyard is proposed to the front of the Grade Il listed Stable Block

e A paved courtyard and planting is proposed between Block A and Block D. The terraces
are proposed to benefit from rear gardens

e Woodcote Grove is surrounded by lawn, with the restored lawn to the south-east, in front
of Block F

e Aplay area is proposed in front of Block F, which is clearly visible

e  The woodland to the rear of Block F is retained, with new hedging and planting proposed

20.36 The areas within the Site are communal and open to all residents, with the exception of the
private gardens to the rear of Block A and the terraces (buildings C and D).

Summary

20.37 To accommodate the proposed development, 38 individual trees are proposed to be removed,
of which 6 are Category B. Furthermore, three groups of trees and two hedges are proposed to
be removed.

20.38 The proposal has sought to retain 20 of the 24 trees that constitute the main arboricultural
features of the Site and which make the greatest contribution to the character and appearance
of the local landscape. It also seeks to plant 46 new trees, which is greater than the number
proposed to be removed.

20.39 The proposed removal of individual and groups of trees will alter the main arboricultural features
of the Site and will have an initial notable short to moderate term adverse impact on the
arboricultural character and appearance of the Site and surrounding area. The Local Planning
Authority’s Tree Officer has particular concern regarding the loss of Tree 16, which is a London
Plane. This is a significant, established tree, which is prominent within the street scene. There
is risk that a replacement tree would not establish itself to match that of the London Plane and
that a newly planted tree would cause direct damage to the wall as a result of root
establishment.

20.40 The Applicant’s tree consultants have worked proactively with Officers, to mitigate the loss of
trees and to resolve any potential issues to existing tree roots and potential harm to the wall as
a result of new tree planting. Specifically, to mitigate the loss of Tree 16, five “Tilia cordata” are
proposed, to restore the dominant boundary treatment of lime trees along Chalk Lane. To
prevent risk to the wall through root establishment, rooting barriers are proposed to be installed.
The replacement planting could be subject to a TPO, for long-term protection as they move
towards maturity.

Page 74



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

20.41 Officers acknowledge that in its current form, the Site does not offer a functional space. This
proposal presents an opportunity to redevelop the Site to provide much needed housing, bring
the Grade II* Woodcote Grove back into its former use and open up the relationship between
this building and the Stable Block. The proposed landscaping is considered to be of a scale and
design that compliments the Site and in turn, creates a sense of place.

20.42 Having regard to the comments raised, the assessments carried out, the Conditions proposed
and the solutions presented, it is considered that the scheme should be supported and should
not be refused on this matter. The proposal is considered to comply with Policy DM5.

Update

20.43 Planning Committee raised concerns relating to the development’s potential impact on
existing trees and the management and maintenance of re-planted trees and landscaping.

Applicant’s response

20.44 The updated planning statement sets out that whilst trees are proposed to be removed, there
is an increase in the number of trees on Site as a result of the development. The Applicant
has agreed to enter into a ‘Landscape and Ecological Management Plan’ (LEMP), to
overcome any concern regarding tree loss now, or in the future. The benefits of the scheme
are considered to outweigh the harm caused by tree loss.

Officer’s response

20.45 To accommodate the proposed development, 38 individual trees are proposed to be removed,
of which 6 are Category B. Furthermore, three groups of trees and two hedges are proposed to
be removed.

20.46 The proposal has sought to retain 20 of the 24 trees that constitute the main arboricultural
features of the Site and which make the greatest contribution to the character and appearance
of the local landscape. It also seeks to plant 46 new trees, which is greater than the number
proposed to be removed.

20.47 It is acknowledged that the removal of individual and groups of trees will alter the main
arboricultural features of the Site and will have an initial notable short to moderate term adverse
impact on the arboricultural character and appearance of the Site and surrounding area.
Appropriate mitigation in the means of additional tree planting and management of tree works
are proposed. The Applicant has also agreed to enter into a Landscape Ecological Management
Plan (LEMP), to be secured within the S106 Agreement. A LEMP ensures that the landscape
and ecological objectives of the development and the mitigation measures required are
delivered, monitored and reviewed. The implementation of a LEMP would promote the long-
term maintenance and enhancement of the development’'s green infrastructure, so that it
benefits the landscape and biodiversity value of the Site and also provides benefit to future
residents.

20.48 Officers acknowledge that in its current form, the Site does not offer a functional space. The
loss of trees is considered to weigh negatively in the planning balance, whereas the provision
of new tree planting, to result in a greater number of trees on Site, is considered positively. The
proposed landscaping is considered to compliment the Site, creating a sense of place and with
a LEMP in place, the landscape and ecological value of the Site would be maintained in the
long-term.

Page 75



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

21 Ecology

21.1  Chapter 15 of the NPPF relates to the conservation and enhancement of the natural
environment. Paragraph 170 sets out that planning decisions should contribute to and enhance
the natural and local environment by (inter alia) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes
and sites of biodiversity. Development should, wherever possible, help to improve local
environmental conditions, such as air and water quality.

21.2  Paragraph 175 of the NPPF sets out that development whose primary objective is to conserve
or enhance biodiversity should be supported, while opportunities to incorporate biodiversity
improvements in and around developments should be encouraged, especially where this can
secure measurable net gains for biodiversity.

21.3  Policy CS3 (Biodiversity and Nature Conservation Areas) of the Core Strategy (2007) sets out
that the biodiversity of Epsom and Ewell will be conserved and enhanced through the support
for measures which meet the objectives of National and Local biodiversity action plans in terms
of species and habitat. Development that would harm Grade 3 Sites of Nature Conservation
Interests (SNClIs) will not be permitted unless suitable measures are put in place and it has
been demonstrated that the benefits of a development would outweigh the harm caused.

21.4  Policy DM4 (Biodiversity and New development) seeks to ensure that new development takes
every opportunity to enhance the nature conservation potential of a Site and secure a net
benefit to biodiversity. It sets out that development affecting existing or proposed nature
conservation sites and habitats of international, national or local importance will only be
permitted if:

e  The development would enhance the nature conservation potential of the site or is proven
to be necessary for the conservation management of the site; or

e There is no alternative location for the development and there would be no harm to the
nature conservation potential of the site; or

e There ae imperative reasons of overriding public interest for the development.

21.5 Elsewhere in the Borough, development affecting any site or building that supports species
protected by Law including their habitats, will only be permitted if appropriate mitigation and
compensatory measures are agreed to facilitate the survival of the identified species, keep
disturbance to a minimum and provide adequate alternative habitats to ensure no net loss of
biodiversity.

21.6  Concerns have been raised by nearby residents regarding the ecological impacts of the
proposed development. Concerns have been taken into consideration by Officers in this
assessment.

21.7  An Ecological Impact Assessment, dated 30 July 2019, accompanies this application. Its
primary findings include:

e There are no statutory or non-statutory designations apply to the Site and the Site does
not contain any Habitats of Principle Importance

e The plant rooms and Woodcote Grove were assessed as having low potential to support
roosting bats

e A Horse Chestnut Tree was assessed as having low potential to support bat roosts used
by single or low numbers of common and widespread bats

e The plant rooms and the Coach House (otherwise referred to as the Stable Block) were
confirmed as supporting breeding birds

Page 76



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

21.8

21.9

21.10

21.11

e The climbing plants on the Atkins Office building and introduced shrubs and planted
mature trees throughout the Site, had high potential to support breeding birds

e Three, partially-used badger outlier setts were recorded within deciduous woodland to
the south of the Site

e It would be necessary to carry out surveys to confirm the presence or likely absence of
roosting bats within the plant rooms prior to demolition

e It will be necessary to implement mitigation measures in order to avoid the requirement
for further bat surveys of Woodcote Grove, in addition to avoiding unlawful impacts to
roosting bats and breeding birds in other areas of the Site.

The Ecological Impact Assessment, dated 30 July 2019, sets out recommendations for further
surveys, if required, and mitigation measures also.

The Local Planning Authority’s Ecologist formally commented on this application. There is no
objection, subject to the recommendations in the report being conditioned, should planning
permission be granted.

In its updated response on 07.09.2020, the Local Planning Authority’s Ecologist reiterates that
there is no objection, but that there are a number of recommendations relating to bats and birds
that are caveated, so a request was made for the applicant to update this section of the report.

The proposal is considered to comply with Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and DM4 of
the Development Management Policies Document (2015)

22 Flood Risk and Drainage

22.1

222

223

Chapter 14 of the NPPF relates to meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and
coastal change. Paragraph 163 sets out that when determining any planning applications, Local
Planning Authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere. Where
appropriate, applications should be supported by a site-specific flood-risk assessment

Paragraph 165 of the NPPF sets out major developments should incorporate sustainable
drainage systems unless there is clear evidence that this would be inappropriate. The systems
used should:

a) take account of advice from the Lead Local Flood Authority;

b) have appropriate proposed minimum operational standards;

c) have maintenance arrangements in place to ensure an acceptable standard of operation
for the lifetime of the development; and

d) where possible, provide multifunctional benefits.
Policy CS6 sets out that proposals for development should result in a sustainable environment
and reduce, or have a neutral impact upon, pollution and climate change. In order to conserve

natural resources, minimise waste and encourage recycling, the Council will ensure that new
development (inter alia) avoids increasing the risk of, or from, flooding.

Page 77



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

22.4  Policy DM19 sets out that development on site of 1ha or greater in Flood Risk Zone 1 and sites
at medium or high risk from other sources of flooding will not be supported unless inter alia) it
can be demonstrated through a site Flood Risk Assessment that the proposal would, where
practical, reduce risk to and from the development or at least be risk neutral. Where risks are
identified through a Flood Risk Assessment, flood resilient and resistant design and appropriate
mitigation and adaption can be implemented so that the level of risk is reduced to acceptable
levels.

22.5 Policy DM19 expects development to reduce the volume and rate of surface water run-off
through the incorporation of appropriately designed Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS) at
a level appropriate to the scale and type of development.

22.6  The Site is located in Flood Zone 1 (low probability of flooding).

227 A Flood Risk Assessment & Surface Water Drainage Strategy, dated 12 July 2019,
accompanies this application. An updated Flood Risk Assessment & Surface Water Drainage
Strategy was prepared, dated 9 January 2020.

22.8 The site is located in a Flood Zone 1, however it is reported to have extents of surface water
flood risk. No new buildings are proposed at the Site that would obstruct the predicted course.
In addition, the underlying geological conditions at the Site are conducive to good infiltration
and the proposed surface water management measures would contribute to reducing the total
volume of overland flow generated, suggesting the predicted surface water flooding is
conservative. To mitigate the reported flood risk, ground floor levels of the new buildings are
recommended to be raised a minimum of 300mm above the external ground level. The site is
located on land with potential of groundwater emergence, however no further mitigation
measures are recommended.

229  Surface water runoff up to a 1 in 100 year rainfall event plus 40% climate change allowance
generated by the proposed development is proposed to be managed by geocellular storage
and permeable paving, significantly contributing to a positive reduction in flood risk.

22.10 Overall, it has been demonstrated that the development would be safe, without increasing flood
risk elsewhere and that a positive reduction in flood risk would be achieved through the
proposed inclusion of geocellular storage crates and permeable paving.

22.11 SCC Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) formally commented on this application. The LLFA is
satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme meets the requirements set out in the submitted
documentation and is content with the proposed development, subject to suitably worded
conditions being attached to any Planning Permission granted.

22.12 The application is considered to comply with Policies CS6 and DM19.
Update

22.13 Representation has been received regarding potential flood risk of Block A. This has been
considered below.

22.14 Inits response dated 27.08.2020, SCC LLFA referred to the levels associated with proposed
Block A. Concern was raised about the potential increase in surface water flood risk, which
could result from the level change. The Applicant was therefore asked to provide an
assessment of this risk.

Page 78



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

22.15 The Applicant’s drainage consultant responded on 28.08.2020, proposing a conservative
approach, recommending that the threshold level of the new access point is raised by
150mm, to help prevent water ingress into the Site. Should there be associated accessibility
issues, the main access is located approximately 100 metres further south-east along Chalk
Lane.

22.16 SCC LLFA considered the Applicant’s response and updated its consultation response (dated
01.09.2020) to amend Condition 1d, requiring details of how any surface water flooding risk to
Block A from the adjacent highway is mitigated.

23 Archaeology

23.1  Chapter 16 of the NPPF refers to the conservation and enhancement of the historic
environment. Paragraph 189 states that where a site on which development is proposed
includes, or has the potential to include, heritage assets with archaeological interest, local
planning authorities should require developers to submit an appropriate desk-based
assessment and, where necessary, a field evaluation.

23.2 Policy CS5 (Conserving and Enhancing the Quality of the Built Environment) of the Core
Strategy (2007) sets out that the Council will protect and seek to enhance the Borough's
heritage assets including (inter alia) archaeological remains. The settings of these assets will
be protected and enhanced.

23.3  Policy DM8 (Heritage Assets) of the Development and Management Policies seeks to resist the
loss of Heritage Assets and instead promote the opportunity to conserve and enhance these.
Specifically, on any major development site of 0.4ha or greater, Applicants are required to
undertake prior assessment of the possible archaeological significance of a site and the
implications of the proposals.

23.4  An Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment, dated 8 July 2019, accompanies this application.
It sets out that to the North of the Site there is evidence of landscaping having removed
archaeological potential and to the East of the Site is an Area of High Archaeological Potential
of Stance Street Roman Road. Due to the low archaeological potential that the Site is
considered to hold, there is no further archaeological input proposed.

23.5 SCC Archaeology (20.02.2020) formally commented on this application. SCC Archaeology
consider that the Site has a high archaeological potential for Heritage Assets of
archaeological significance of post-medieval date relating to Woodcote Grove, its ancillary
buildings and gardens. If present, these would be destroyed by the groundworks
associated with the proposed development. As such, further work in the form of an
archaeological trial trench evaluation is required to determine whether Heritage Assets of
archaeological significance remain within a potentially undisturbed area of the
development Site.

23.6 SCC Archaeology sets out that as it appears unlikely that archaeological Heritage Assets
of National Significance requiring preservation in situ would be present, securing the
archaeological work as a condition of any planning permission is appropriate and should
be attached to any planning permission that may be granted.

23.7 The application is considered to comply with policies CS5 and DM8.

24 Contamination
241 Policy DM17 (Contaminated Land) sets out that where it is considered that land may be

affected by contamination, planning permission will only be granted for development provided
that the following criteria are satisfied:

Page 79



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

e all works, including investigation of the nature of any contamination, can be undertaken
without escape of contaminants which could cause unacceptable risk to health or to the
environment;

o itis demonstrated that the developed site will be suitable for the proposed use without risk
from contaminants to people, buildings, services or the environment including the
apparatus of statutory undertakers.

242 A Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment, dated July 2019, accompanies this application. It
recommends a ground investigation to address the areas of suspected contamination identified
in the desk study.

24.3 The Local Planning Authority’s Contamination Land Officer formally commented on this
application on 23 March 2020. The Local Planning Authority’s Contamination Officer agrees
with the recommendations of the desk study. There are other suspect areas that have not been
referenced within the desk study, which the Contamination Officer believes should be
investigated, including the Grade Il listed Stable Block and a low voltage switch house.

244 A Condition is recommended, subject to planning permission being granted. The application is
considered to comply with Policies DM10 and DM17.

25 Sustainability

25.1 Chapter 2 of the NPPF relates to achieving sustainable development. Chapter 7 of the NPPF
sets out that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of
sustainable development. At a very high level, the objective of sustainable development can be
summarised as meeting the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

25.2 Chapter 8 of the NPPF sets out that there are three overarching objectives of sustainable
development, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways
(so that opportunities can be taken to secure net gains across each of the different objectives):
economic, social and environmental.

25.3 Policy CS6 sets out that proposals for development should result in a sustainable environment.
The Council will ensure that new development (inter alia) minimise the use of energy in scheme,
minimises the emission of pollutants into the wider environment, minimises the energy
requirements of construction and incorporates waste management processes.

25.4  Concerns have been raised by nearby residents regarding the sustainability of the scheme.

25,5 A Sustainability Statement, dated 9 August 2019, accompanies this application. This
demonstrates that principles of good sustainable design have been incorporated in the
proposed development and that good sustainable practices would be followed during the
construction phase.

25.6  The proposed scheme has sought to integrate sustainability into the design of the proposal and
it is considered to comply with Policy CS6.

26 Community Infrastructure Levy

26.1 The scheme would be CIL liable.

Page 80



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

27 Conclusion

27.1  The application was presented to Planning Committee on 23 July 2020 with an Officer’'s
recommendation for approval. Planning Committee deferred the application on the basis
that it required further information on a range of matters. The Applicant prepared
additional information, which was subject to formal consultation.

27.2  There have been a substantial number of comments received regarding the proposed
development at the Site. The Applicant has worked proactively with the Local Planning
Authority to deliver a scheme that provides many benefits.

27.3  The principle of development at this Site has been addressed. The Site currently offers
vacant office accommodation, which fails to enhance the historic nature of the Site, the
Conservation Area, or the Site’s spatial context.

27.4  The proposal seeks to provide much needed housing, bring Woodcote Grove back into
its former use as residential accommodation and open up the link between this building
and the Grade Il listed Stable Block, through sensitive landscaping.

27.5 The less than substantial harm to the designated heritage assets is considered to be
outweighed by the public benefits of the scheme. Other harm and impacts attributed to
issues such as parking deficit and loss of trees are considered to be outweighed by the
significant benefits of the development when assessed against the Framework as a
whole. The proposal is considered by Officers to be an acceptable form of sustainable
development

27.6  The alterations to the listed buildings on the Site have been dealt with by a separate
listed Building Consent application, which has been submitted in tandem with this
application.

27.7 Itis recommended that the scheme is approved subject to a S106 Agreement and
Conditions.

28 Recommendation
Part A

28.1  Subject to a legal agreement being completed and signed by 23.12.2020 to secure the
following Heads of Terms:

e  Provision of eight affordable units, at the tenure mix of seven shared ownership and one
social rented unit

e  Secure £15,950, as a payment in lieu of on-site affordable housing

e A S106 monitoring fee in respect of monitoring implementation of the obligations in the
S106 agreement of £2000 to be paid upon to the Council upon commencement of the
development

¢ Implementation of a review mechanism for the submission of a revised Viability Statement

e Should trees become irreparably damaged, a financial retainer is held, equivalent to the
CAVAT value of the threatened trees, to be determined by the Local Planning Authority
(LPA), with the value to be paid into the LPA’s green infrastructure funds, to compensate
the local community

e Applicant to prepare and enter into a Landscape Ecological Management Plan

¢ A financial monitoring fee to be paid within three months of the site being 50 percent
occupied of £4,600 towards future auditing of the site travel plan

e The provision of a fully funded scheme by the developer to improve the local bus
infrastructure on Ashley Road either side of the site access and at the bus stops on
Woodcote Green Road closest to the site, to consider real time passenger information,

Page 81



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

PartB

28.2

shelter provision and seating, in accordance with scheme details and timings to be
submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority

e  Prior to commencement of development to submit the Car Club Scheme to the County
Council for approval and, to implement such approved prior to the Occupation of the first
Dwelling to be occupied. The Car Club Scheme shall provide for two Car Club bays, one
on-street and one on-site

e The Car Club Scheme shall comply with the Surrey Guidance on car clubs in new
developments, to include but not be limited to, the following requirements:

a) That the Owner shall procure the establishment, operation and promotion of the
Car Club and provide the name and address of the operator of the Car Club to the
County Council prior to occupation of the first dwelling to be occupied;
b) On-street Car club bay to be provided with a fast charge electric vehicle charging
point;
c) On-site car club bay to be located in an open and highly visible location;
d) To fully fund the provision of the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to secure one
on-street parking space on the public highway; and
e) Every Dwelling shall have the offer of free membership of the Car Club for one
year. This offer will extend to the first occupier of any Dwelling only. The offer of free
membership must be accepted by the Occupier within 3 months of such offer being
made and will last one year irrespective of any change in the details of the occupier.
The offer will also include 25 miles of free use of the Car Club Car

. On-street car parking monitoring:

a) Monitoring of the on-street car parking levels, taking place along Worple Road
and Chalk Lane, at times to be agreed, to ensure no overspill car parking is
taking place by residents

b) Payment of the financial monitoring fee of £3,000 to be paid before completion
of the last dwelling to be built towards auditing and reviewing the car parking
monitoring reports and reviewing the restrictions on Worple Road and Chalk
Lane for a period of up to 5 years post full occupation of the proposed
development

c) Within a period of five years following full occupation of the Development, if
required by Surrey County Council following the above audit and review
process, the Ownert shall fully fund the cost of advertising and implementing a
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for a revised traffic management scheme on
Worple Road and Chalk Lane, in the vicinity of the site.

. The applicant is to enter into a full S278 agreement with Surrey County Council to
facilitate the proposed changes to the highway at the junction of Worple Road and
Chalk Lane and the provision of one car club bay on-street.

The Committee authorise the Head of Planning to grant planning permission subject to the
Conditions detailed below.

In the event that the section 106 Agreement referred to in Part A is not completed by
23.12.2020 the Head of Planning be authorised to extend the deadline to complete the
agreement or refuse the application for the following reason:

d) Inthe absence of a completed legal obligation under section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

Page 82



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Condition(s):

(1)

()

@)

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

LOC - Site Location Plan — Rev B — dated 19.05.2019

BLOC - Proposed Block Plan — Rev A — dated 31.07.2019

001 - Existing Site Plan — dated 26.07.2019

002 - Existing Coach House — Rev B — dated 30.07.2019

003 - Existing Conference Centre — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019

004 - Existing Woodcote Grove — Plans — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019

005 - Existing Woodcote Grove — Elevations — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019
006 - Existing Atkins Office Building — Ground Floor Plan — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019
007 - Existing Atkins Office Building — Typical Floor Plan — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019
008 - Existing Atkins Office Building — Elevations - Rev A — dated 26.07.2019
009 - Existing Atkins Office Building - Elevations - Rev A — dated 26.07.19
010 - Existing Reprographics Centre — Floor Plans and Elevations - Rev A — dated
26.07.2019

011 — Proposed Site Plan — Rev R — dated 28.07.2020

020 — Block A - Floor Plans — Rev D — dated 18.12.2019

021 — Block A — Elevations — Rev D - dated 27.03.2020

022 — Block B - Floor Plans & Elevations — Rev B — dated 30.07.2019

023 — Block C and D — Ground Floor Plan — Rev B — dated 31.07.2019

024 — Block C and D — First Floor Plan — Rev B — dated 31.07.2019

025 — Block C — Elevations — Rev B - dated 31.07.2019

026 - Block D — Elevations — Rev B - dated 31.07.2019

027 - Block E - Floor Plans — Rev C — dated 30.10.2019

028 - Block E — Elevations — Rev B — dated 31.07.2019

029 - Block F - Lower Ground Floor Plan — Rev F — dated 30.07.2020

030 - Block F - Upper Ground Floor Plan — Rev G — dated 05.02.2020

031 — Block F - First & Second Floor Plan — Rev H — dated 05.02.2020

032 - Block F - Third Floor Plan — Rev G — dated 27.01.2020

033 - Block F - Fourth Floor Plan — Rev E — dated 17.12.2019

035 — Block F - Elevations Sheet 1 — Rev G - dated 27.01.2020

036 — Block F — Elevations — Rev G — dated 27.01.2020

037 - Block F - Detailed Bay Sections— Rev A — dated 27.01.2020

038 - Block F - Detailed Bay Sections - Rev A — dated 27.01.2020

039 - Block F - Detailed Bay Sections— Rev A — dated 27.01.2020

040 - Site Sections AA-FF — Rev E — dated 27.01.2020

041 - Site Sections— Rev E - dated 27.01.2020

042 - Block E - Site Boundary Treatment — dated 05.02.2020

050 - Bin Stores - Plans and Elevations — dated 31.07.2019

J4/01030 — Fence Standard Install Details — dated 04.01.2017

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in
accordance with the approved plans to comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy
(2007)

Prior to the commencement of development, samples of the external materials to be
used for the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Page 83



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual amenities and
character of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(4) Prior to the commencement of development, a sample panel of brickwork measuring 1m
X 1m must be prepared for inspection and approved by the local planning authority on
the Application Site as example for the brick to be used. These shall be used as model
for colour, texture, module, bond, pointing and mortar colour and retained on the
Application Site during construction. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved samples.

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual amenities and
character of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(5) Prior to the commencement of development, section drawings [parapets
/reveals/lintel/cills/balconies, etc.] at a scale of 1:5 shall be submitted to the local
planning authority. No works shall commence until these specifications are approved.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved specifications.

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the Site and in the
interest of the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, in accordance with
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and DM10 of the
Development Management Policies 2015.

(6) The timber double doors in the archway of the Grade Il listed Stable Block shall be
retained and maintained.

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed buildings
and in the interest of the character and appearance of the conservation area in
accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and
DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

(7) Following demolition and prior to occupation of the development , a site investigation and
risk assessment to determine the existence, extent and concentrations of any made
ground/fill, ground gas and contaminants (including asbestos) with the potential to impact
sensitive receptors on and off site. The scope and detail of these are subject to the
approval in writing by the local planning authority. The results of the investigation and
risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. If
ground/groundwater contamination, filled ground and/or ground gas is found to present
unacceptable risks, a detailed scheme of risk management measures shall be designed
and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The site shall be remediated
in accordance with the approved measures and a verification report shall be submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. If, during the course of development, any
contamination is found which has not been identified in the site investigation, additional
measures for the remediation of this source of contamination shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site and
verification report shall incorporate the approved additional measures.

Reason: To control significant harm from land contamination to human beings, controlled
waters, buildings and or/ecosystems as required by Policy DM10 of the Development
Management Policies Document (2015).

(8) No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agents or successors in title,
has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work, to be conducted

Page 84



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

in accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which has been submitted to and
approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority

Reason: It is important that the archaeological information should be preserved as a
record before it is destroyed by the development in accordance with Policy CS5 of the
Core Strategy (2007).

(9) The construction of the drainage system/prior to above ground floor superstructure shall
not commence until details of the design of a surface water drainage scheme have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The design must
satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with the national Non-Statutory Technical
Standards for SuDs, NPPF and Ministerial Statement on SuDS. The required drainage
details shall include:

a) The results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE Digest: 365 and
confirmation of groundwater levels

b) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the 1in 30 & 1 in
100 (+40% allowance for climate change) storm events, during all stages of the
development. Associated storage volumes shall be provided using an infiltration
based strategy

c) Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised drainage
layout detailing the location of drainage elements, pipe diameters, levels, and long
and cross sections of each element including details of any flow restrictions and
maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, inspection chambers etc.).

d) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design events or
during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected. Including details
of how any surface water flooding risk to Block A from the adjacent highway is
mitigated

e) Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes for the
drainage system

f) Details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction and how
runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be managed before
the drainage system is operational

Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for
SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site.

(10)  Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried out by a
qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. This must demonstrate that the drainage system has been constructed as per
the agreed scheme (or detail any minor variations), provide the details of any
management company and state the national grid reference of any key drainage
elements (surface water attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction devices and outfalls)

Reason: To ensure the Drainage System is constructed to the National Non-Statutory
Technical Standards for SuDS

(11)  The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the protection,
mitigation and enhancement measures detailed in the Ecological Impact assessment,
dated 30 July 2019 prior to the first occupation of the development or in accordance with
the approved timetable detailed in the assessment. The approved measures shall
thereafter be maintained.

Reason: To preserve and enhance biodiversity and habitats in accordance with Policy
CS3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM4 of the Development Management
Policies 2015.

Page 85



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation
measures detailed within the Air Quality Assessment, dated 12.02.2019.

Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers in accordance
with Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

Other than demolition and enabling works, the following components of a scheme to deal
with the risks associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and
approved, in writing, by the local planning authority:

1) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:

[J all previous uses

[J potential contaminants associated with those uses

[ a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors

[J potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.

2) A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

3) The results of the site investigation and detailed risk assessment referred to in (2) and,
based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the
remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken.

4) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) are complete and
identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages,
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action. Any changes to these
components require the express consent of the local planning authority. The scheme
shall be implemented as approved.

Reason: For the protection of Controlled Waters. The site is located over Principal &
Secondary Aquifers and within SPZ1 and it is understood that the site may be affected
by historic contamination.

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at
the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained
written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, a remediation strategy detailing
how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. The remediation strategy shall
be implemented as approved, verified and reported to the satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: There is always the potential for unexpected contamination to be identified
during development groundworks. The Environment Agency should be consulted should
any contamination be identified that could present an unacceptable risk to Controlled
Waters.

Prior to occupation of the development, a verification report demonstrating completion of
the works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the
remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local planning
authority. The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in
accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site remediation
criteria have been met. It shall also include any plan (a "long-term monitoring and
maintenance plan") for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and
arrangements for contingency action, as identified in the verification plan, if appropriate,
and for the reporting of this to the local planning authority. Any long-term monitoring and
maintenance plan shall be implemented as approved.

Reason: Should remediation be deemed necessary, the Applicant should demonstrate
that any remedial measures have been undertaken as agreed and the environmental
risks have been satisfactorily managed so that the site is deemed suitable for use.

Page 86



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

Whilst the principles and installation of sustainable drainage schemes are to be
encouraged, no drainage systems for the infiltration of surface water drainage into the
ground are permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning
Authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated
that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to Controlled Waters. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approval details.

Reason: To protect the underlying groundwater from the risk of pollution. Infiltrating water
has the potential to cause remobilisation of contaminants present in shallow soil/made
ground which could ultimately cause pollution of groundwater.

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be permitted
other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may
be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no
resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: The developer should be aware of the potential risks associated with the use of
piling where contamination is an issue. Piling or other penetrative methods of foundation
design on contaminated sites can potentially result in unacceptable risks to underlying
groundwaters. We recommend that where soil contamination is present, a risk
assessment is carried out in accordance with our guidance 'Piling into Contaminated
Sites'. We will not permit piling activities on parts of a site where an unacceptable risk is
posed to Controlled Waters.

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as a scheme
to dispose of foul drainage has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not pose a risk to water quality
by ensuring foul sewage connection to the Thames Water sewer.

No part of the development shall be first occupied unless and until the vehicular access
to Ashley Road has been cleared of all vegetation at the back edge of the highway
(along the fence line) to improve visibility zones in accordance with the approved plan
and thereafter the visibility zones shall be kept permanently clear of any vegetation and
obstruction over 1.05m high

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause
inconvenience to other highway users. Required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. To accord with
NPPF 2019: Section 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport, and Epsom and Ewell Core
Strategy 2007 and Epsom and Ewell Development Management Policies 2015.

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until space has
been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for vehicles to be
parked and for the loading and unloading of service vehicles and for vehicles to turn so
that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear. Thereafter the parking / loading
and unloading / turning areas shall be retained and maintained for their designated
purposes

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause
inconvenience to other highway users. Required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. To accord with
NPPF 2019: Section 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport, and Epsom and Ewell Core
Strategy 2007 and Epsom and Ewell Development Management Policies 2015.

Page 87



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

(21)

(22)

(23)

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until at least 20 of
the available parking spaces are provided with a fast charge socket and a further 20 of
available spaces to be provided with a power supply to provide additional fast charge
sockets (current minimum requirement: 7kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230 v AC
32 amp single phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause
inconvenience to other highway users. Required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. To accord with
NPPF 2019: Section 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport, and Epsom and Ewell Core
Strategy 2007 and Epsom and Ewell Development Management Policies 2015.

No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management Plan, to
include details of:

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors

(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials

(c) storage of plant and materials

(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)

(e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones

(f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation

(g) vehicle routing

(h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway

(i) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and a commitment to
fund the repair of any damage caused

(j) no HGV movements to or from the site shall take place between the hours of 8.30 and
9.15 am and 3.15 and 4.00 pm nor shall the contractor permit any HGVs associated with
the development at the site to be laid up, waiting, in Ashley Road, Worple Road and )
during these times

(k) on-site turning for construction vehicles has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented
during the construction of the development.

j) No construction vehicle access shall be permitted via Worple Road and Chalk Lane at
any time

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause
inconvenience to other highway users. Required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. To accord with
NPPF 2019: Section 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport, and Epsom and Ewell Core
Strategy 2007 and Epsom and Ewell Development Management Policies 2015.

The development hereby approved shall not be first commenced unless and until a
Delivery and Servicing Plan containing a scheme specifying arrangements for deliveries
to and removals from the site, to include details of:

e) The types of vehicles to be used and hours of their operation

f)  The design of delivery areas within the development site

g) The dimensions and layout of lorry parking areas and turning spaces

h) Chalk Lane access management approach (including emergency access)

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause
inconvenience to other highway users. Required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. To accord with
NPPF 2019: Section 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport, and Epsom and Ewell Core
Strategy 2007 and Epsom and Ewell Development Management Policies 2015.

Page 88



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

(24)

(25)

(26)

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the
following facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved plans to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for:

[0 The secure, level and covered parking of 122 bicycles within the development site,
[1 Facilities within the development site for cyclists to store cyclist equipment,

[ Providing safe routes for pedestrians / cyclists to travel between Ashley Road and
Chalk Lane through the development site

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause
inconvenience to other highway users. Required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. To accord with
NPPF 2019: Section 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport, and Epsom and Ewell Core
Strategy 2007 and Epsom and Ewell Development Management Policies 2015.

Three months prior to the occupation of the development a Travel Plan shall be
submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the
sustainable development aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy
Framework, Surrey County Council’s “Travel Plans Good Practice Guide”, and in general
accordance with the 'Heads of Travel Plan' document as submitted, with specifics to be
included on:.

information to be provided to residents and visitors regarding the availability of and
whereabouts of local public transport and car clubs, and thereafter the said approved
facilities shall be provided, retained and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority

The submitted Travel Plan to include details of the car club operator, the types of vehicle
to be provided, the parking bay location and how the car club will be marketed to
residents, including any agreed membership discounts or offers

And then the approved Travel Plan shall be implemented prior to occupation of any
dwelling and for each and every subsequent occupation of the development, thereafter
maintain and develop the Travel Plan to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause
inconvenience to other highway users. Required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. To accord with
NPPF 2019: Section 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport, and Epsom and Ewell Core
Strategy 2007 and Epsom and Ewell Development Management Policies 2015.

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until a scheme
for specifying arrangements for the monitoring of the parking levels on-street connected
to the development proposals, to include details of:

1. Monitoring of the on-street parking levels, taking place along Worple Road and Chalk
Lane, at times to be agreed, to ensure no overspill car parking is taking place

2. Payment of financial monitoring fee towards reviewing the parking monitoring reports
and reviewing the restrictions on Worple Road and Chalk Lane for period of up to 5 years
post full occupation of the proposed development

3. Within a period of five years following occupation of the development, if required by
Surrey County Council following the above review process, the Applicant shall fully fund
the cost of advertising and implementing a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for a revised
traffic management scheme on Worple Road and Chalk Lane, in the vicinity of the site

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause

inconvenience to other highway users. Required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. To accord with
NPPF 2019: Section 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport, and Epsom and Ewell Core
Strategy 2007 and Epsom and Ewell Development Management Policies 2015.

Page 89



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

(27)

(28)

(29)

(30)

(31)

The following environmental mitigation measures shall be employed during the
demolition and construction phases:

e A name and contact number of a suitably accountable person shall be made available
on the site boundary.

e Alog book shall be maintained of all dust and air quality complaints, and of
exceptional instances that cause dust and/or air emissions. Records shall be
maintained detailing the measures employed to reduce emissions in a timely
manner. These records shall be made available to an officer of the local authority on
request.

e Regular checks shall be made of dust soiling of surfaces such as street furniture, cars
and window sills within 100 metres of the site boundary. The frequency of these
checks shall be increased during activities with a high potential to produce dust are
being carried out and during prolonged dry or windy conditions.

e The site layout shall be planned so that machinery and dust causing activities are
located away from receptors as far as possible and screened if necessary.

e An adequate supply of water shall be made available on the site for the use in dust
suppression systems using non potable water where possible.

e No burning of waste materials shall be permitted at any time

Reason: To protect the occupants of nearby residential properties from disturbance in

accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

No development shall take place until details of existing and proposed finished site
levels, finished floor and ridge levels of the buildings to be erected have been submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall
thereafter be constructed in accordance with the approved details

Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties
in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM10 of the
Development Management Policies 2015

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any Order revoking or re-enacting
or amending those Orders with or without modification), planning permission shall be
required in respect of development falling within Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B, C, D,
E, F, G, H of that Order

Reason: To ensure that development within the permitted Classes in question is not
carried out in such a way as to prejudice the appearance of the proposed development
or the amenities of future occupants of the development or the occupiers of adjoining
property in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM10
and DM12 of the Development Management Policies 2015

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any Order revoking or re-enacting
or amending that Order with or without modification), no gates, fences, walls or other
means of enclosure, other than those shown on the approved plans, shall be erected or
placed on the Site

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual amenities and
character of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

No development shall take place on site until:

Page 90



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

(32)

(33)

(a) details of external lighting scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and direction
of light sources, means of controlling light spillage and intensity of illumination.

(b) the external lighting scheme has been installed, maintained and operated in
accordance with the approved details

Any lighting, which is so installed, shall thereafter be maintained and operated in
accordance with the approved details and shall not be altered other than for routine
maintenance.

Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties
in accordance with Policies CS5 and CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9
and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (including demolition
and all preparatory work), a scheme for the protection of the retained trees, in
accordance with BS 5837:2012, including a Tree Protection Plan(s) (TPP) and a detailed
arboricultural method statement (AMS) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Specific issues to be dealt with in the TPP and AMS:

a) Location and installation of services/ utilities/ drainage in particular adjacent to ‘Block
A’ and the root protection areas (RPAs), as defined in BS 5837: 2012, of trees nos. 9, 10
& 11;

b) Methods of demolition within the RPAs of the retained trees nos. 9 — 13, 56, 83 — 84,
86 and 108;

c) Details of construction for foundations or other structures which require excavation or
that may impact on the RPAs of retained trees, specifically, individuals nos. 8 — 9, 48 —
49, 63, 83 — 84 & 152;

d) A full specification for the construction of any roads, parking areas, new hard surfacing
and driveways, including details of the no-dig specification and extent of the areas of the
roads, parking areas and driveways to be constructed using a no-dig specification;

e) A specification for protective fencing and trunk wrapping to safeguard trees during
both demolition and construction phases and a plan indicating the alignment of the
protective fencing;

f) A specification for scaffolding and ground protection within RPAs of construction
exclusion zones, where total protection cannot be achieved due to access and
construction requirements;

g) Details of site access, temporary contractor parking, on site welfare facilities and
services, loading, unloading and storage of equipment, materials, fuels and waste as well
concrete mixing and use of fires;

h) Methodology and detailed assessment of root pruning within RPAs;

i) Arboricultural supervision and inspection by a suitably qualified arboricultural
consultant;

j) Reporting to the LPA of inspection and supervision;

k) Methods to improve the rooting environment for retained and proposed trees;

I) Details of all proposed access facilitation pruning.

The development thereafter shall be implemented in strict accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the interests of the visual
amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

Before any development or construction work begins, a pre-commencement meeting
shall be held on site and attended by the developers appointed arboricultural consultant,
the site manager/foreman and a representative from the Local Planning Authority to
discuss details of the working procedures and agree either the precise position of the
approved tree protection measures to be installed or that all tree protection measures

Page 91



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

(34)

(39)

(36)

37)

(38)

have been installed in accordance with the approved tree protection plan. To include a
reasonable supervision and monitoring programme with the LPA for the duration of
development. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the
approved details or any variation as may subsequently be agreed in writing by the LPA

Reason: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the interests of the visual
amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

The Arboricultural Method Statement and Plan required for compliance in support of the
application shall be adhered to in full, subject to the arranged tree protection monitoring
and site supervision requirements, detailed in the pre-start meeting report shall be
undertaken by a suitably qualified tree specialist, and supervision reports forwarded to
the LPA

Reason: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the interests of the visual
amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

The completed schedule of site supervision and monitoring of the arboricultural
protection measures shall be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning
Authority within 28 days from completion of the development hereby permitted. This
condition may only be fully discharged on completion of the development, subject to
satisfactory written evidence of compliance through contemporaneous supervision and
monitoring of the tree protection throughout construction by a suitably qualified and pre-
appointed tree specialist.

Reason: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the interests of the visual
amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted, destroyed, pruned, cut or damaged in any
manner during the development phase and thereafter within 5 years from the date of
occupation of the building for its permitted use, other than in accordance with the
approved plans and particulars or as may be permitted by prior approval in writing from
the local planning authority.

Reason: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the interests of the visual
amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

No development shall take place until details for the storage of waste on the premises,
including the design and position of storage facilities for bins and recycling and details of
a management company have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The approved details shall be implemented prior to first occupation of
the development and thereafter maintained for the duration of the development.

Reason: In the interests of residential and visual amenity, and to encourage waste
minimisation and recycling of domestic refuse, in the interests of sustainable
development in accordance with Policies CS5 and CS6 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policy DM10 and DM12 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

No development shall take place until full details, of both hard and soft landscape
proposals, including a schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of 5

Page 92



23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

years, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

The approved landscape scheme (with the exception of planting, seeding and turfing)

shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved and
thereafter retained.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of an appropriate
landscape scheme in the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance
with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the
Development Management Policies 2015

(39)  Prior to first occupation of any part of the development hereby permitted, details of the

children’s play area, including the number, type and design of play equipment, surfacing
and enclosures are submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details and
thereafter retained.

Reason: To safeguard the special architecture and historic interest of the listed buildings
and in the interests of the character and appearance of the conservation area in
accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and
DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015. To secure community facilities in
accordance with Policy CS13 of the Core Strategy (2007).

(40)  Prior to the commencement of development, a Car Park Management Plan shall be

submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The plan should
describe how parking will be distributed and managed on the site and the location of
electric vehicle charging points. This shall be a live document that would be reviewed.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause
inconvenience to other highway users. Required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. To accord with
NPPF 2019: Section 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport, and Epsom and Ewell Core
Strategy 2007 and Epsom and Ewell Development Management Policies 2015.

Informatives

1.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the Applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form or our statutory policies in the Core Strategy,
Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as
well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure that the Applicant has
been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as - the
demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the extension or
alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services, underpinning works,
and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must
be given to the Council’'s Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for approval before
any building work is commenced.

The Applicant’s attention is drawn to the series of publications produced by the Department for
Communities and Local Government (CLG), which provides information for the responsible
person about the Fire Safety Order. These publications are available from Government Services
and Information website at: https://www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-
safety-advice-documents. Responsibility for ensuring that a building is provided with appropriate
fire safety arrangements rests with the responsible person, once the building is occupied. The

Page 93


https://www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-safety-advice-documents
https://www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-safety-advice-documents

23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

responsible person should, therefore, ensure that the fire safety arrangements in place are
adequate and comply fully with the requirements of the Fire Safety Order.

4. Fire safety information in accordance with Regulation 38 of the Building Regulations 2010 should
be provided to the responsible person at the completion of the project or when the building or
extension is first occupied. This information should take the form of a fire safety manual and
form part of the information package that contributes to the fire risk assessment that will need
to be carried out under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.

5. Passive fire protection measures, particularly fire stopping, fire barriers and fire resisting
compartmentation, restricts the spread of smoke and fire through a building through hidden
areas such as voids. Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) recommend that careful attention
is given to this detail during construction. Certification of this work can be beneficial to confirm
the suitability of the structure to meet its performance requirement lay out in this design
application.

6. Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) would strongly recommend that consideration is given
to the installation of AWSS (ie; Sprinklers, Water Mist etc) as part of a total fire protection
package to: protect life, protect property, heritage, the environment and our climate, help
promote and sustain business continuity and permit design freedoms and encourage innovative,
inclusive and sustainable architecture. The use of AWSS can add significant benefit to the
structural protection of buildings in the event of a fire. Other benefits include supporting business
recovery and continuity if a fire happens. SFRS are fully committed to promoting Fire Protection
Systems for both business and domestic premises.

7. If proposed site works affect an Ordinary Watercourse, Surrey County Council as the Lead
Local Flood Authority should be contacted to obtain prior written Consent. More details are
available on its website.

8. If proposed works result in infiltration of surface water to ground within a Source Protection
Zone the Environment Agency will require proof of surface water treatment to achieve water
quality standards.

9. Thames Water would advise that if the developer follows the sequential approach to the
disposal of surface water, there no objection. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a
public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required:
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-
services/\Wastewater-services

10. Thames Water would recommend that petrol/oil interceptors be fitted in all car
parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol/oil interceptors
could result in oil-polluted discharges entering local watercourses

11. There may be public sewers crossing or close to the development. If the Applicant discovers a
sewer, it's important to minimise the risk of damage. The Applicant is advised to read Thames
Water's guide: https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-
development/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes

12. If the Applicant proposes to use mains water for construction purposes, it's important to
Thames Water know before this is used, to avoid potential fines for improper usage. More
information and how to apply can be found online at: thameswater.co.uk/buildingwater

13. Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1
bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The
developer should take account of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed
development.

Page 94


https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-development/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-development/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes

23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Design standards for the layout and construction of access roads and junctions, including the
provision of visibility zones, shall be in accordance with the requirements of the County
Highway Authority

Details of the highway requirements necessary for inclusion in any application seeking
approval of reserved matters may be obtained from the Transportation Development Planning
Division of Surrey County Council

The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to obstruct the public
highway by the erection of scaffolding, hoarding or any other device or apparatus for which a
licence must be sought from the Highway Authority Local Highways Service

The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out any works on
the highway or any works that may affect a drainage channel/culvert or water course. The
Applicant is advised that, a Section 278 agreement must be obtained from the Highway
Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or
other land forming part of the highway. All works on the highway will require a permit and an
application will need to submitted to the County Council's Street Works Team up to 3 months
in advance of the intended start date, depending on the scale of the works proposed and the
classification of the road. Please see http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-
permits-and-licences/the-traffic-management -permit-scheme. The Applicant is also advised
that Consent may be required under Section 23 of the Land Drainage Act 1991. Please see
www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community
safety/floodingasorrydvice

When access is required to be ‘completed’ before any other operations, the Highway Authority
may agree that surface course material and in some cases edge restraint may be deferred
until construction of the development is complete, provided all reasonable care is taken to
protect public safety

The developer is advised that the standard fee of £4,600 will be charged for input to, and
future monitoring of the Residential Travel Plan

Any unilateral undertaking shall be in accordance with Surrey County Council’s standard
format

A TRO would be required should the CHA consider that over-spill parking is taking place from
the proposed development, with such parking resulting in danger and inconvenience to
highway users

The developer is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway works required by
the above condition, the County Highway Authority may require necessary accommodation
works to street lights, road signs, road markings, highway drainage, surface covers, street
trees, highway verges, highway surfaces, surface edge restraints and any other street
furniture/equipment

The developer would be expected to agree a programme of implementation of all necessary
statutory utility works associated with the development, including liaison between Surrey
County Council Streetworks Team, the relevant utility companies and the developer to ensure
that where possible the works take the route of least disruption and occurs at least disruptive
times to highway users

It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that the electricity supply is sufficient to meet
future demands and that any power balancing technology is in place if required. Please refer
to: http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-
infrastructure.html for guidance and further information on charging modes and connector
types

Page 95


http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html%20
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html%20

23.09.2020 19/00999/FUL Agenda Item 3

Page 96



P Historic England
A~ g Agenda Item 3

Appendix 1
Ms Virginia Johnson Direct Dial: 0207 973 3655
Epsom & Ewell Borough Council
Town Hall Our ref: LO1177310
The Parade
Epsom
Surrey
KT18 5BY 18 March 2020

Dear Ms Johnson

Arrangements for Handling Heritage Applications Direction 2015
& T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015
& Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990

WOODCOTE GROVE ASHLEY ROAD EPSOM SURREY KT18 5BW
Application Nos 19/00998/LBA & 19/00999/FUL

Thank you for your letters of 20 February 2020 regarding further information on the
above applications for listed building consent and planning permission.

Historic England Advice

| am writing to give updated advice following receipt of an amended scheme for the
redevelopment of Woodcote Grove and its environs. Since our advice of 10 October
2019 a number of changes have been made to the proposal and we offer the following
observations to assist your Council in reaching a view on this proposal.

Historic England is content that the revised ground floor plan for Woodcote Grove,
which largely retains the principal rooms in their historic form, reduces the harm to the
significance of the grade II* listed building and thus that the concern we raised in our
letter of 10 October 2019 has been addressed.

Our letter of 10 October 2019 also raised concerns that the scale, massing and
proximity of Block F would diminish the prominence of Woodcote Grove in key views
of its principal and garden elevations, thus harming an appreciation that the mansion
was designed as a high status building and the focal point of its landscaped setting.
We therefore considered that block F would cause harm to the significance of the
grade II* listed building. To address this concern the scale of block F has been
reduced by one storey with a set-back top storey and the central bays have been
recessed. We conclude this reduces the prominence of Block F in key views of
Woodcote Grove and thus also the harm to the grade II* listed building.

;\\“‘.M:d’» & 4TH FLOOR, CANNON BRIDGE HOUSE, 25 DOWGATE HILL, LONDON EC4R 2YA *
?M? Telephone 020 7973 3700 Stonewall
Yrspps HistoricEngland.org.uk DIVERSITY CHAMPION

Historic England is subject to both the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and Environmental Information Regulations (2004). Any
Information held by the organisation can be requested for release under this legislation.

Page 97



MR Historic England Agenda ltem 3
it Agpendix 1

Harm to heritage significance has also be minimised by reducing the height of Block A
meaning that the sense that Woodgrove Grove is a secluded building set within its
own grounds beyond a high boundary wall, will be sustained to a greater degree.

Overall Historic England considers that the revised scheme is capable of meeting the
requirements of Paragraph 190 to avoid or minimise harm to significance. Your
Council will need to decide if the remaining harm, which we think is less than
substantial, has clear and convincing justification as required by paragraph 194 before
weighing it against the public benefits of the proposal in the manner described in
paragraph 196.

In reaching a decision on this proposal we think your Council should also consider
whether the design of new development meets the aspirations of paragraph 192 (c)
which notes that Local Authorities should take account of the desirability of new
development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness. We
also suggest your Council should consider whether the new development is
sympathetic to local character and historic including the surrounding built environment
and landscape setting as advocated by paragraph 127 (c).

If your Council is minded to approve this application, high quality materials and
detailing will be important given the historic sensitivities of this site and we would
recommend a number of conditions be imposed to control landscaping and building
details and materials for both. We would be content to defer to the advice of your
Conservation Officer for the wording of these conditions but would be pleased to offer
advice if helpful.

Recommendation

We consider that the applications meet the requirements of the NPPF, in particular
paragraph numbers 190 and 194. In determining these applications you should bear
in mind the statutory duty of sections 16(2) and 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special regard to the desirability of
preserving listed buildings or their setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which they possess and section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to pay special attention to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas.

Your authority should take these representations into account in determining the
applications. If there are any material changes to the proposals, or you would like
further advice, please contact us. Please advise us of the decision in due course.

Yours sincerely

;\\“‘.M:d’» & 4TH FLOOR, CANNON BRIDGE HOUSE, 25 DOWGATE HILL, LONDON EC4R 2YA *
?M? Telephone 020 7973 3700 Stonewall
Yrspps HistoricEngland.org.uk DIVERSITY CHAMPION

Historic England is subject to both the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and Environmental Information Regulations (2004). Any
Information held by the organisation can be requested for release under this legislation.

Page 98



Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1

A Historic England
Aaa 5

%@a&mfuj

Alice Brockway
Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas
E-mail: alice.brockway@HistoricEngland.org.uk

’ ‘ Stonewall
DIVERSITY CHAMPION

4TH FLOOR, CANNON BRIDGE HOUSE, 25 DOWGATE HILL, LONDON EC4R 2YA

AB,
S
B & Telephone 020 7973 3700
Ysap HistoricEngland.org.uk
Historic England is subject to both the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and Environmental Information Regulations (2004). Any
Information held by the organisation can be requested for release under this legislation.
Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

Ward:

Woodcote Ward

Site

Woodcote Grove, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT18
5BW

Development: Development of 98 apartments/dwellings, including

conversion of the Grade II* Listed Woodcote Grove and
Grade Il Listed Stable Block, with parking, access,
landscaping and other associated works, following the
demolition of the existing reprographics centre and
conference centre (Listed Building Consent)

Contact Officer: Ginny Johnson

1 Plans and Representations

1.1 The Council now holds this information electronically. Please click on the following link
to access the plans and representations relating to this application via the Council’s
website, which is provided by way of background information to the report. Please note
that the link is current at the time of publication, and will not be updated.

Link: http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?active Tab=details&keyVal=PVT2Q8GYODEOO
2  Summary

21 A Full Planning Application has been submitted in tandem with this Listed Building
Consent application, under ref: 19/00999/FUL. The Full Planning Application was
presented to Planning Committee on 23 July 2020 with an Officer's recommendation for
approval. Planning Committee deferred the application on the basis that it required
further information on a range of matters, including:

. Block A

. Block F

) Density

. Housing Mix

. Private amenity space, including details of playground
. Heritage

. Highways and car parking

o Affordable housing

. Trees

2.2 Whilst not heard or discussed, Planning Committee also took the decision to defer this
Listed Building Consent application. The Applicant has prepared additional information to
address the questions raised by Committee. The additional information was subject to
formal consultation.

2.3 This application seeks Listed Building Consent for the internal refurbishment, external
alterations and conversion of the Grade II* Listed Woodcote Grove and Grade Il Listed
Stable Block to residential use.

2.4 The refurbishment and conversion of the Grade II* Listed Woodcote Grove and Grade Il

Listed Stable Block to residential use is considered acceptable in principle. The internal
refurbishment is considered acceptable and the exterior alterations are considered to
preserve the special historic interest of the buildings.

Page 101


http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=details&keyVal=PVT2Q8GY0DE00
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=details&keyVal=PVT2Q8GY0DE00

23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

The proposal seeks a coherent layout that opens up the link between the two listed
buildings, achieved through sensitive design, the orientation of new buildings and careful
landscaping. The architectural character of the development is considered to respond to
the Site’s surroundings, but with a more contemporary and sustainable context.

The proposed development is considered to deliver an optimum viable use for the listed
buildings, helping to secure their longer-term future. The proposed adaptations and
alterations are considered suitably sensitive, preserving the special historical and
architectural character of these buildings and their setting.

It is recommended that the scheme is supported and referred to the Secretary of State
as Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings (SPAB) has raised concerns regarding
the application, which are addressed within this report.

The matter of planning permission for the use and associated Section 106 Agreement is
the subject of a separate assessment.

Site description

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The Application Site (‘Site’) measures 1.29 hectares in size and comprises five buildings,
including a Grade II* and Grade Il Listed building. The Site presently forms part of the
wider Atkins campus, but is considered surplus to requirements since Atkins consolidated
its office requirements on the adjacent Site (application ref: 14/01150/FUL).

The Site is immediately bound by the Atkins Office building, which is nearing completion,
and its associated car park to the north-east. It is bound by woodland and horse paddocks
to the south-east and by a wall to the south-west and north-west.

To the south-west of the Site is Chalk Lane, which comprises a hotel (benefiting from
planning permission to accommodate 21 dwelling units, application ref: 17/01275/FUL),
residential properties and a pub. To the north-west of the Site is Worple Road, which
typically comprises residential properties. The Site is located approximately 1.8 kilometres
from Epsom Town Centre.

The Site is currently accessed from Ashley Road, to the north-east. The proposal seeks
an underground car park (beneath proposed Block F), which is accessed via the existing
access off Ashley Road. The proposal also seeks a new vehicular access along Chalk
Lane.

The Site is designated as a Built up Area and is within the Chalk Lane Conservation Area.
As above, the Site comprises a Grade II* listed building, Grade Il listed building and a wall.
In accordance with Historic England’s records, the wall surrounding the Site is not
independently listed.

e Chalk Lane Hotel. Grade Il listed.

Maidstone House. Grade Il listed.

2,4,5,6,8, 10, 12 and 14 Chalk Lane. Grade |l listed.

Woodcote Green House. Grade II* listed.

South East Boundary Wall to Woodcote Mews. Grade I listed.

South East Boundary Wall to 1 Woodcote Mews. Grade Il listed.

Page 102



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

3.6 Descriptions and details of the listed buildings is provided below:
Woodcote Grove

3.7 Woodcote Grove (otherwise referred to as “Mansion House”) is a Grade II* listed building.
It is four storeys in height, including a basement and attic and comprises office floor space.

3.8 Woodcote Grove is listed under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990 as amended for its special architectural or historic interest. The listing details are
provided below:

Late C17. Two storeys, basement and attic. Plain brick with red dressings. 1 - 3 - 1
sashes, the centre slightly projecting under pediment. Flight of steps with iron rails
leads to central fluted Corinthian columned doorcase with rusticated surround, panelled
frieze and dentilled cornice. Glazed double doors and rectangular leaded fanlight.
Carved and dentilled eaves cornice, round window to pediment. Slate roof with four
large (? modern) pedimented sashed dormers, inner ones with segmental pediments.
To North and South are two storey and attic similar style wings added circa 1895. Flat
roofs with parapets. Rear elevation, similar, but no doorcase to centre. The house was
built by J Diston. A portrait of Charles Il in the hall bears an inscription that it was
painted by Lely at the command of and as a present from him to Diston. The house
was originally called Mount Diston and there is a mount in the garden. Interior: Hall
paved with white marble, and black and white marble mantelpiece. Staircase, screened
by Doric colonnade, is of stone with wrought iron scrolled balustrade and ribbed barrel
ceiling. Pine panelling to library with two mid-C18 carved wood fireplaces with rococo
ornament. 3 bedrooms with C17 bolection moulded panelling, one with original marble
fireplace and C18 hob grate

Stable Block to Woodcote Grove

3.9 Stable Block to Woodcote Grove (otherwise referred to as “Stable Block”) is a Grade |l
listed building. It is two storeys in height and comprises office floor space.

3.10 The Stable Block is listed under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990 as amended for its special architectural or historic interest. The listing details are
provided below:

Late C18. Yellow stock brick. Hipped slate roof. 2 storeys. Ashlar parapet. 6 bays and
frontispiece, divided by pilasters without capitals or bases. 1 range of segment-headed
C19 windows in 3 right hand bays, others blind. Frontispiece breaks forward. Round
arch with moulded inposts and panelled double doors, flanked by Tuscan columns
which take attic storey with 3 blind panels, moulded cornice and blocking course.

4 Proposal

4.1 The Site presently forms part of the wider Atkins campus. Planning permission was granted
on 26.01.2015, under application ref: 14/01150/FUL, for a new office building. This is
located immediately adjacent to this Site in question. Due to the new office building, which
is nearing completion, the buildings located on this Site in question, are considered surplus
to requirements. In essence, Atkins has consolidates its office requirements on the
adjacent Site.

4.2 The proposal seeks to demolish the existing office buildings and redevelop the Site to
provide 98 flats/dwellings.

Page 103



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

4.3

4.4

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Condition 3 of the 2015 Planning Permission (application ref: 14/01150/FUL) required
existing office blocks to be demolished within 6 months of first occupation of the new
building. The four storey Atkins office block (located at the south-eastern part of this Site)
was identified for removal. This building is being demolished and this application seeks
Block F in this location.

The proposal includes the conversion of a Grade II* listed building (Woodcote Grove, often
referred to as ‘Mansion House’) and a Grade I listed building (Stable Block) to residential
use. Parking, access, landscaping and other associated works are also proposed.

A Full Planning Application has been submitted in tandem with this Listed Building Consent
application, ref: 19/00999/FUL. This was also deferred at Planning Committee on 23 July
2020.

Building A (plots 1-8)

The existing print room, proposed to be demolished, measures 4 metres in height, from
the surrounding courtyard. Building A is proposed in this location.

The general height of Building A is 8.275 metres, measured from surrounding site level
(the existing ground level has been excavated by 500mm as part of the proposed
development).

Building A is located at the north-western end of the Site. This comprises an irregular
shape and is two storeys in height, with an eaves height of 63.55 metres AOD and a ridge
height of 66.44 metres AOD. This building would provide eight flats: four flats at ground
floor level and four at first floor level. The below table provides a breakdown of the housing
mix for building A:

Building A
Floor 2B4P 3B5P Total
Ground Floor 3 1 4
First Floor 3 1 4
Total 6 2 8

Building B (plots 9-12)

Building B seeks the conversion of the Grade Il listed Stable Block to residential use. This
building seeks the provision of four flats: two flats at ground floor level and two flats at first
floor level. The below table provides a breakdown of the housing mix for Building B:

Building B
Floor 1B2P
Ground Floor 2
First Floor 2

Page 104



23.09.2020

19/00998/LBA

Agenda Item 4

Total

Buildings C and D (plots 13-26)

4.6 The existing conference building, proposed to be demolished, measures 6.02 metres in
height, measured from ground level to roof apex.

4.7 Buildings C and D are two identical rows of terraces. Each row comprises seven dwellings,
totalling 14 dwellings in total. These comprise two-bedroom, four person houses.

4.8 The general building height for proposed Buildings C and D is 8.2 metres. Building C is
two-storeys in height, with an eaves height of 64.27 metres (AOD) and a ridge height of
66.8metres (AOD). Building D is two-storeys in height, with an eaves height of 64.05metres
(AOD) and a ridge height of 66.94metres (AOD).

Building C and D

Building C D
2 storey House (2B4P) 7 7
Total 7 7

Building E (plots 27-22)

49 Building E seeks the conversion of the Grade II* listed Woodcote Grove. This seeks the

provision of seven flats:

Building E
Floor 1B2P 2B4P 3B5P 3B6P Total
Basement 2 2
Ground 1 1 2
Floor
First Floor 1 1(DUPLEX) | 1(DUPLEX) | 3
Second
Floor
Total 7

Building F (plots 34-98)

4.11  Building F is a new build, replacing the existing office building at the south-eastern end of
the Site. This comprises a basement, with a vehicular access ramp leading to Ashley Road.
This building seeks the provision of 65 flats.

Page 105



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

412

4.13

The height of the existing office building is as follows:
¢ 11.8 metres to ridge (measured from Garden Square level)
¢ 15.2 metres to top of lift overrun (from Garden Square level)

The proposed general building height of Block F is15.4 metres (from Garden Square level
to ridge).

The below table provides a breakdown of the housing mix for Building F. The proposed
basement of Block F comprises 61 car parking spaces, 8 disabled spaces, totalling 69
car parking spaces. It also comprises 4 motorcycle spaces and 122 cycle spaces.

Building F Finished Floor Level
(FFL)

Floor 1B2P 2B3P 2B4P Total FFL (AOD)
Ground 6 1 7 14 59.63 (AOD)
Floor
First Floor 4 5 7 16 62.63 (AOD)
Second 4 5 7 16 65.63 (AOD)
Floor
Third Floor | 6 1 6 13 68.63 (AOD)
Fourth Floor | 2 2 2 6 71.63 (AOD)
Total 22 14 29 65 Ridge: 74.88 (AOD)

5 Comments from third parties

5.1

5.2

A Site Notice was displayed and the Listed Building Consent application was advertised
in the local paper and neighbouring notification letters sent to 151 properties.

52 letters of objection were initially received, regarding:

. Density, massing and design
. Adverse visual impact
. Adverse impact on historical significance of Listed buildings, wall and the character

of Conservation Area

Impact on neighbouring amenities
Loss of light/overbearing

Loss of outlook

Noise

Traffic/Parking implications

Flood risk

Ecology and biodiversity

Page 106



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

Update

5.3 Following deferral by Planning Committee on 23 July 2020, the Applicant prepared additional
information. The Local Planning Authority re-consulted accordingly (21 days) and a Site
Notice was displayed and the Listed Building Consent application advertised in the local
paper. 101 letters of objection have been received regarding:

5.4 The amended proposal is not materially different from the application deferred at
Planning Committee

. Principle of development

o Residential provision (need for housing)

. Density, massing and design

o Accommodation mix

o Affordable housing/viability

. Adverse visual impact

o Adverse impact on historical significance of listed buildings, wall and the character
of Conservation Area

o Private amenity space

) Loss of light/overbearing

o Noise

. Traffic/parking implications (too few car parking spaces proposed)

. Flood risk

. Ecology and biodiversity (wildflower)

o Sustainability, environment, climate change

. A response from Woodcote (Epsom) Residents’ Society was received, regarding
(inter alia) density, housing mix, private amenity space, impact of Block F on
Mansion House, inadequate car parking provision and implications of overspill
parking.

o A response from Epsom Civic society was received, regarding (inter alia) the Site’s

planning history and the principle of Block F, the impact of Block F on Mansion
House and the impact of development on Conservation Area. Objection to proposed
highways junction improvements and construction access, density, housing mix and
private amenity space.

. A response on behalf of The Board at Sandown Lodge Estate, regarding principle
of development, impact of development on character of area, density, affordable
housing, Block F and traffic implications.

6  Statutory Consultations
6.1 The following statutory consultees were consulted on the application. Following deferral

at Planning Committee in July 2020, the applicant prepared additional information. The
‘updated responses’ relate to the latest replies received by consultees.

. Historic England: no objection (representation annexed)

Historic England updated response (28.08.2020): do not wish to offer any
comments. Letter of 18.03.2020 represents HE's substantive response

. Design and Conservation Officer: no objection, subject to Conditions
Design and Conservation Officer updated response (01.09.2020): No
objection. Queried road junction improvements and impact on integrity
Conservation Area. Officers advised that this is in relation to highways works.
o The Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings (SPAB): (11.03.2020): concerns

raised within objection, considered within body of Committee Report.

Page 107



23.09.2020

19/00998/LBA Agenda ltem 4

SPAB updated response (02.09.2020): do not wish to offer any further
comments. The issues raised in correspondence (11.03.2020) in relation to the
design detailing of the Mansion House (inappropriate and unsympathetic
glazed balustrading and enclosure of the main historic stair) have not been
addressed. Therefore, as they stand, SPAB do not believe that the proposals
relating to the Mansion House constitute a positive heritage benefit, as
asserted by the applicant. SPAB would recommend that the applicant is asked
to submit revised designs for the Mansion House that addresses these
outstanding issues. Reviewed at paragraph 10.51 — 10.52.

The Georgian Group (20.09.2020): Does not wish to formally comment
The Victorian Society (24.09.2020): No comments to make

The Victorian Society updated response (18.08.2020): No additional
comments

The Ancient Monuments Society: no response received
The Council for British Archaeology: no response received
The Twentieth Century Society: no response received.

7  Relevant planning history

7.1

The below table sets out principle recent and relevant planning history relating to the
Application Site and the adjacent Atkins Site. For clarity, it does not include minor full
planning applications approval of non-material amendment applications, approval of
details applications or tree applications.

Page 108



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

Application Decision date Application detail Decision
number
18/01009/REM Granted Application to vary Condition 27 of planning permission 15.02.2019

14/01150/FUL as varied by planning permission
15/01097/REM and planning permission 16/01591/REM to
enable a final plant solution to be implemented

16/01591/REM Granted Variation of Condition 27 of planning application reference: 28.04.2017
14/01150/FUL and 15/01097/REM to enable the erection of
a fixed guard railing to the main office building

15/01097/REM Granted Variation of Conditions 2 (Phasing), 5 (Materials), 9 14.12.2015
(Construction traffic management plan) and 13 (Soft
landscaping) of planning permission 14/01150/FUL. Changes
to the wording of the conditions is required to revise the
overall phasing of the development and to allow some
conditions to be discharged in a phased manner

14/01150/FUL Granted Proposed new office building (use class B1) of 9924m GIA 26.01.2015
with associated revised access and parking, demolition of
existing blocks A, B and C with the reinstatement of land and
landscaping of site

8 Planning Policy

National Policy Planning Framework (NPPF) 2019

e Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places

e Chapter 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Core Strategy 2007

e Policy CS5 The Built Environment

Development Management Policies Document (2015)

e Policy DM8 Heritage Assets
e Policy DM9 Townscape Character and Local Distinctiveness
e Policy DM10 Design Requirements for New Developments (including House

Extensions)
9 Update

9.1 The accompanying Full Planning Application was presented at Planning Committee on
23 July 2020, with an Officer's recommendation for approval. This was deferred by
Members, who requested additional information to enable an informed decision. Whilst
not heard or discussed, the Listed Building Consent application was also deferred.

9.2 The following considerations formed part of the Members discussion at Planning

Committee, in relation to the Full Planning Application. Below is a brief summary of the
main points of the discussions relevant to the Listed Building Consent.

Page 109



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

Density and Heritage (reviewed at paragraphs 10.90 — 10.97)
¢ Queries regarding whether the scheme would improve the setting of the Site’s listed
buildings and whether there would be wider public benefits as a result of the
scheme.
¢ Queries regarding what weight should be attributed to Historic England’s formal
response.

Block A (reviewed at paragraphs 10.63 — 10.66)
e Concerns regarding the impact of the height, massing and design of Block A on the
character of the Stable Block.

9.3 Whilst the Listed Building Consent application was not discussed at Planning Committee,
this report captures the updates relevant to this application.

10 Planning considerations

Design and Heritage

10.1  This section of the Committee Report is split into distinct sections:

Planning policy

Historical background and the Site’s significance
The proposal

Listed Buildings

Conservation Area

Planning policy

10.2 Chapter 12 of the NPPF relates to achieving well-designed places. Paragraph 124 sets
out that the creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities. Being clear about design expectations, and how
these will be tested, is essential for achieving this.

10.3 Paragraph 127 sets out that planning decisions should ensure that developments (inter
alia) function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term, but
over the lifetime of the development. Developments should be visually attractive as a result
of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping. Development
should be sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environmental and landscape setting, establish or maintain a strong sense of place and
optimise the potential of a Site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and
mix of development. Furthermore, places should be created that are safe, inclusive and
accessible, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

10.4 Paragraph 128 sets out that design quality should be considered throughout the evolution
and assessment of individual proposals. Early discussion between applicants, the Local
Planning Authority and local community about the design and style of emerging schemes
is important for clarifying expectations and reconciling local and commercial interests.

10.5 Paragraph 130 sets out that permission should be refused for development of poor design
that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an
area and the way it functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides
in plans or supplementary planning documents. Conversely, where the design of a
development accords with clear expectations in plan policies, design should not be used
by the decision-maker as a valid reason to object to development.

Page 110



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

10.6  Paragraph 131 sets out that in determining applications, great weight should be given to
outstanding or innovative designs, which promote high levels of sustainability, or help raise
the standard of design more generally in an area, so long as they fit in with the overall form
and layout of their surroundings.

10.7 Chapter 16 of the NPPF relates to the conservation and enhancement of the historic
environment. Paragraph 189 sets out that in determining applications, Local Planning
Authorities should require an applicant to describe the significance of any heritage asset
affected, including any contribution made by their setting. The level of detail should be
proportionate to the assets’ importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the
potential impact of the proposal on their significance.

10.8 Paragraph 190 sets out that Local Planning Authorities should identify and assess the
particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including
by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available
evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this into account when
considering the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict
between the heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

10.9 Paragraph 192 sets out that in determining applications, Local Planning Authorities should
take account of:

. The desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

. The positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

. The desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character
and distinctiveness.

10.10 Paragraph 193 sets out that when considering the impact of a proposed development on
the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less
than substantial harm to its significance.

10.11 Paragraph 194 sets out that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting),
should require clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:

a) grade |l listed buildings, or grade Il registered parks or gardens, should be exceptional;

b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites,
registered battlefields, grade | and II* listed buildings, grade | and II* registered parks and
gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional.

10.12 Paragraph 195 sets out that where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm
to (or total loss of significance of) a designated heritage asset, Local Planning Authorities
should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total
loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or
all of the following apply:

a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and

b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and

Page 111



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

c) conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or public
ownership is demonstrably not possible; and

d) the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use.

10.13 Paragraph 196 sets out that where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing
its optimum viable use.

10.14 Paragraph 200 sets out that Local planning authorities should look for opportunities for
new development within Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites, and within the
setting of heritage assets, to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that
preserve those elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to the asset (or
which better reveal its significance) should be treated favourably

10.15 Policy CS5 sets out that the Council will protect and seek to enhance the Borough’s
heritage assets including historic buildings and conservation areas. The settings of these
assets will be protected and enhanced. The policy also sets out that high quality and
inclusive design will be required for all developments. Developments should (inter alia)
create attractive, functional and safe environments, reinforce local distinctiveness and
complement the attractive characteristics of the Borough and make efficient use of land.

10.16 Policy DM8 sets out that the Local Planning Authority will resist the loss of Heritage Assets
and every opportunity to conserve and enhance these should be taken by new
development.

10.17 Policy DM9 sets out that planning permission will be granted for proposals that make a
positive contribution to the Borough’s visual character and appearance. In assessing this,
the following is considered

. compatibility with local character and the relationship to the existing townscape and
wider landscape;

. the surrounding historic and natural environment;
. the setting of the proposal site and its connection to its surroundings; and
. the inclusion of locally distinctive features and use of appropriate materials

10.18 The Chalk Lane Conservation Area Map recognises Woodcote Grove as a Grade II* Listed
building and a focal building. The Stable Block is identified as a Grade Il Listed building
and the wall running around the perimeter of the Site (off Chalk Lane and Worple Road) is
identified as Grade Il Listed. There is a historic street light at the Site and an important
view, to the south-east of Chalk Lane. Furthermore, the Atkins Office Building is identified
as a negative building.

Historical background and the Site’s significance
10.19 A Heritage Statement accompanies this application, which assesses the significance of

the Listed Buildings on the Site and its historical surroundings. The Heritage Statement
refers to the Grade II* Listed Woodcote Grove as “Mansion House”.

Page 112



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

10.20 The Mansion House was originally constructed as a single-family residence, within ample
grounds. To the south, north and east of Mansion House was a large formal garden,
creating long views over Epsom Downs, to the south of the Site. Later works included the
addition of two small wings to the main building, as well as the Stable Block, which appears
on mapping by the 1840s.

10.21 In the 1950s the Site was sold to Atkins. The earliest complete set of plans of Woodcote
Grove date from this period, showing the intention to alter Mansion House to office use,
resulting in the subdivision of much of its historic space. The purchase of the estate by
Atkins also saw the creation of a large office block to the South of Mansion House, as well
as to the south and north of the Stable Block. These works severely altered the formal
setting of Mansion House and saw the loss of visual connection between the Mansion
House and the Stable Block.

10.22 The Mansion House remains the principle building within the Site, set on raised ground
and set back from the entrance off Chalk lane, meaning that it benefits from glimpsed views
from the road only. To the north-west and south of the Site, modern ancillary office
buildings mar the garden setting of the Mansion House. The largest of these office
buildings is the late twentieth century ‘S’ shaped office building, which has a utilitarian
appearance, contrasting with the ornate fagade of the Mansion House. This office building
diminishes an appreciation of the original grounds that surround Mansion House, as well
as eroding its domestic character.

10.23 The Heritage Statements assesses the significance of the Listed Buildings and wall. The
findings are summarised below, with additional comments from the Local Planning
Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer.

10.24 The setting of the Site is mixed, making only a limited contribution to the significance of
Mansion House, due to the mid and late twentieth century building works within the
grounds.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Except that the gates and walls are of
significance to the entrance, but will not be affected at any point near the main Listed
Building

10.25 The Site is relatively sheltered from its surroundings by the boundary wall, which encloses
the western and northern boundaries. The wall is believed to have been repaired and
potentially rebuilt in the twentieth century, although it retains a nineteenth century
character. The wall and Mansion House possesses a group value and each inform an
appreciation of the significance of the other. The overall significance of the wall is
considered to be moderate.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed and not substantially harmed

10.26 There are clear views of Mansion House on entering the Site through the southern
gateway. Despite alterations to this over the years, the Mansion House and side wings
have retained a cohesive appearance. The overall significance of the building is high, as
this is the primary building on the Site, reflecting eighteenth/nineteenth century design and
aesthetics.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed

10.27 The Stable Block retains its raised central parapet and arched central opening, formally
known as an open carriage way. Both the northern and southern elevations have been
constructed of different brick stock resulting in a contrasting appearance. Repairs to the
northern elevation are less sympathetic. The infill of the central opening in particular is
detrimental to the appearance of the building.

Page 113



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed

10.28 The conversion of the Stable Block into an office has resulted in alterations to the original
openings and brickwork, as well as the interior. Views from the southern fagade of the
stable block would have looked directly towards the Mansion House. This relationship has
been interrupted by the creation of additional office buildings between the two buildings.
Therefore, while the building dates to the period when the Mansion House remained in
residential use, this is no longer appreciable. This overall significance of the building is
therefore moderate.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: the orientation of the building
towards the Mansion House does remain of some significance, especially if the
central doors facing the Mansion House are retained, as they should be, and a view
between the two listed buildings is reopened as is proposed

10.29 Chapter 10 of the Heritage Statement assesses the significance of interior spaces of
Mansion House. The findings are summarised below, with additional comments from the
Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer.

10.30 The basement of Mansion House has very limited fabric of interest because of its office fit
out. Modern partitions have disrupted the historic circulation of the space and suspended
ceilings result in the division of window openings. Volumes that appear to correspond to
secondary circulation spaces, such as the circular stair and servant’s passageway should
be preserved.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: The interior of this level is not of great
significance except for the stairs, but the outer wall may also be some of the earlier
fabric, especially where doorways open to the vaults under the landscape to the east
and to the tunnel from Mansion House

10.31 The ground floor of Mansion House comprises the principle rooms, including the main
entrance hall, library and staircase. Largely this floor has avoided unsympathetic
subdivisions. The ground floor comprises some of the most significance internal spaces,
with their original volume best preserved

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed
10.32 The first floor retains a residential quality, due to the retention of wooden panelling and
glazing details. The northern wing extension and the western room within the southern

wing extension appear to the most altered.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed, though many or even most of
the alterations are pre-1948 and therefore of significance

10.33 The second floor is the most altered within the Mansion House, with the full extent of the
floor plan subdivided following the office conversion. There is very little historic fabric of
interest at this floor.

LPA Design and Conservation Officer comment: Agreed, this floor probably never had
any features of great historic significance as it would have been the servants quarters.

The Proposal
10.34 Representation has been received setting out that the proposal represents an overly dense

development, adversely impacting the historic significance of the Site and the character of
the area.

Page 114



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

10.35 This section explores the design of the scheme and notes the comments received by
Historic England, the Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer and The
Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings (SPAB).

10.36 Officers undertook a Site Visit with Historic England on 30.09.2019. Following this, Historic
England formally responded to the originally submitted scheme on 10 October 2019
(referred to as ‘initial’ advice). Historic England had concerns regarding the application on
heritage grounds and considered that the issues and safeguards outlined in its advice
needed to be addressed in order for the application to meet the requirements of
paragraphs 190, 193, 194 and 195 of the NPPF.

10.37 The applicant sought to revise the scheme, taking into consideration the views of Historic
England. A Design and Access Statement Addendum was prepared and submitted, which
sets out the key changes made to the scheme. Historic England provided an updated
response to the revised scheme on 18 March 2020. It sets out that overall, the revised
scheme is capable of meeting the requirements of paragraph 190 of the NPPF, to avoid or
minimise harm to significance. The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation
Officer formally commented on the revised scheme on 16 April 2020. The comments are
referred to below.

10.38 The Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings (SPAB) commented on the application
on 11 March 2020. The comments are referred to below.

Mansion House

10.39 Proposed external alterations to Mansion House include repair to the main facade,
introduction of a glazed balustrade above the bay windows of the side wings and a
lightweight frame.

10.40 Proposed internal alterations to Mansion House comprise:

. At basement level, the proposal seeks to remove partitions and remove thicker
masonry. The proposal seeks to retain the small circular staircase and jack arches
above the corridor.

. At ground floor level, the proposal seeks to remove the modern WC adjacent to the
stairs and subdivide the side wings to create two apartments.

. At first floor level, the proposal seeks a secondary stair and partition walls, to create
a division between the three separate apartments.

o At second floor level, the proposal seeks the removal of partitions and subdivision.

10.41 Historic England’s initial comments acknowledged that internal demolition and subdivision
had been concentrated to the areas of lesser interest at Mansion House, such as the
second floor, basement and the nineteenth century wings. But, the degree of change to
the principal rooms through subdivision was considerable. Particular concerns were raised
about the degree of subdivision to the rear boardroom on the ground floor and the ground
floor wing rooms, both of which would cause harm.

10.42 The applicant sought to address the comments made by Historic England and reduced
the internal partitioning within the Mansion Block (see Heritage Statement Addendum).
Parking spaces adjacent to Mansion House were also removed, with an area of
hardstanding retained as existing.

Page 115



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

10.43 Historic England’s formal comments on the revised scheme (18 March 2020) set out that
it is content that the revised ground floor plan for the Mansion House retains the principle
rooms in their historic form, reducing the harm to the significance of the Grade II* Listed
building.

10.44 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer acknowledges that
Woodcote Grove is the most historically important building at the Site and has a very
substantial impact on Chalk Lane and the land and buildings to the north of the Site. The
alteration of the room plans of the interior of this building has some benefits and some
drawbacks. The partition of the back room on the upper ground floor is perhaps the most
harmful and results in a large reception room being subdivided into a single flat.

10.45 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that there are a
number of minor changes to the first floor, but these do not significantly alter the room plan.
The most significant change is in levels, which resolves some of the anomalies in this floor
resulting from several changes made in the past. An additional change is made to this level
by the introduction of a new stair well to the second floor. This unfortunately requires a
subdivision in the large northeast room but enables the occupation of flats on the second
floor. At present, the second floor is only accessible via the spiral stair, which is neither
practical nor safe.

10.46 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that subject to
planning permission being granted, a Condition is recommended, seeking a historic
building survey with photographs, to more accurately survey and assess the significance
and history of the building’s fabric. The Historic building Survey must be submitted to the
local authority and to be recorded at Bourne Hall.

10.47 SPAB raises concerns regarding the glazed balustrading on the wing terraces, which are
retained. SPAB would prefer to see simple metal balustrading utilised here — with a narrow
steel handrail and vertical spindles - as this would be more sympathetic to the existing
house. Glass will not be invisible in this location as reflections catch the eye and a tint to
the sky behind the glass would distract from the more solid historic materials that the
building is constructed from. Glass balustrades are therefore considered inappropriate for
a listed building at roof level when visible from the ground.

10.48 The applicant provided a response to Officers on 03 June 2020, to address SPAB’s
comments. The applicant is content to agree the above, which, subject to Listed Building
Consent being granted, will be subject to a Condition.

10.49 SPAB further commented that it was unable to find any further reference to the enclosure
of the main stair and the suggested necessary incorporation within a unit referred to on
page 39 of the DAS (bullet 2 key feedback from pre-app meeting 3, 23rd May). SPAB is
concerned about this element and would therefore like confirmation that the principal
staircase balustrade is not going to be altered in any way, and that enclosure of the landing
of the first floor is not being proposed.

10.50 The applicant provided a response to Officers on 03 June 2020, to address SPAB’s
comments. The applicant is content to agree the first point above. At pre-application stage,
it was acknowledged that a residential flat is proposed and that obscure glazing would be
required to enclose this area, otherwise the proposed flat would lack privacy and would be
visible to visitors. The applicant has confirmed that the obscure glazing could be removed
at a later date, if required.

Page 116



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

Update

10.51 Inits updated response, dated 02.09.2020, SPAB sets out that on the basis of the further
information supplied, it does not wish to offer any further comments. However, SPAB
note that the issues raised in it correspondence of 11 March 2020 in relation to the
design detailing of the Mansion House (inappropriate and unsympathetic glazed
balustrading and enclosure of the main historic stair) have not been addressed.
Therefore, as they stand, SPAB do not believe that the proposals relating to the Mansion
House constitute a positive heritage benefit, as asserted by the applicant. SPAB
recommends that the applicant is asked to submit revised designs for the Mansion
House that addresses these outstanding issues.

10.52 The applicant has not responded to the updated response from SPAB. But, Officers
consider that the Applicants response to SPAB’s comments of 11.03.2020 are acceptable,
references at paragraphs 10.48 and 10.50 above.

Stable Block

10.53 Proposed external alterations to the Stable Block include opening up the passageway
underneath the central arch. The proposals also include improvements to the setting of the
Stable Block, re-establishing the visual link with the Mansion House, so that the historic
functional relationship between the two buildings is appreciable.

10.54 Historic England’s initial response considered the residential conversion of the Stable
Block as suitable and raised no concerns about the principle of the works.

10.55 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer raises no objection to the
conversion of this building. The most sensitive and significant features of this building will
not be harmed, which includes the roof structure and the archway.

10.56 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer does wish to see the
heavy timber double doors in the archway retained. The applicant team confirmed this and
subject to Planning Permission and Listed Building Consent being granted, this is secured
by Condition.

Wall

10.57 The wall is believed to have been repaired and potentially rebuilt in the twentieth century,
although it retains a nineteenth century character. The proposals seek the retention of the
wall, with the introduction of a pedestrian opening. This is to offer convenient access to
this part of the Site and glimpsed views to passing pedestrians.

10.58 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer does not have an
objection to the proposed pedestrian entrance. The section of the wall is not independently
listed, though it is curtilage listed. An opening would be acceptable and subject to p Listed
building Consent being granted, a Condition is recommended, to ensure good design that
respects the wall.

Boundary treatment
10.59 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that the proposed
steel fence acting as boundary treatment is a good solution, provided that this boundary is

not added to by dense planting of hedges and trees. The view across the landscape should
retain the dominance of the Listed Building and its place in the landscape.

Page 117



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

Building A

10.60 Building A has been designed to respond to its surroundings, specifically drawing on the
materiality and massing of the Stable Block. Building A comprises a prominent gable end
design with a pitched roof, and is predominantly brick faced. The building incorporates
pronounced chimney stacks, referencing eighteenth century building styles. Window voids
and a central parapet break the massing of this building over the central entrance on the
southern fagade.

10.61 Inits initial response, Historic England recommended lowering the height of Building A, as
this would be visible from outside the Site and would sit rather awkwardly with the boundary
wall, interrupting the sense of seclusion of the Site within the Conservation Area. The
applicant responded to this comment and reduced the height of Block A by 500mm, which
was achieved by a sunken courtyard (see Heritage Addendum). The Heritage addendum
sets out this reduces the building’s perceived massing onto Worple Road and Chalk Lane.

10.62 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer raises no objection to the
demolition of the existing print room building, as it has no architectural interest. The
proposed building is two storeys in height and should have relatively little impact on the
Conservation Area, which typically comprises two-storey dwelling houses. It will be
separated from the Listed buildings surrounding the Site by the wall. The Local Planning
Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer confirms that the design of building A is
acceptable.

Update

10.63 Planning Committee raised concerns about the impact of Block A on the character of the
Stable Block.

10.64 Concerns have been raised by nearby residents concerning the impact of Block A on the
character of the Stable Block and its positioning on the corner of Worple Road and Chalk
Lane. Representation has been taken into consideration in the ‘Officer’s response’ below.

Applicant’s response

10.65 The Stable Block is currently enclosed by the conference centre, a print building and
excessive hardstanding, which harms the setting of the Stable Block. The scheme has
been designed to remove the conference building and replace it with an avenue that links
the Stable Block to Mansion House. Landscaped areas are proposed, which has a
double function, as a buffer between Block A and the Stable Block and as outdoor
amenity space.

10.66 Block A is taller than the existing print room, but, it is of a better design than the existing
building, which has been considered acceptable by Historic England and the Local
Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer.

Buildings C and D

10.67 Buildings C and D comprise two rows of terraces, which have been designed to reference
historic cottage rows, typical of eighteenth century estate design. The terraces open views
between the Mansion House and the Stable Block, reinstating the historic visual
relationship between these two buildings. The design of these buildings draws on
traditional building materials and proportions, using a pitched roof, with chimney stacks on
each dwelling. But, these buildings also comprise a contemporary character.

Page 118



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

10.68 Within its initial response, Historic England welcomed the removal of the conference
building, which was considered to have a negative impact on the Grade II* Listed building.
But, Historic England cautioned against taking a formal, axial approach to any housing
development, which might replace it. This has been pursued and Historic England note
that its form is not particularly historically appropriate, though it was acknowledge that the
impact of this discrete part of the scheme is an improvement on the present situation.

10.69 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer acknowledges that the
terraces are small two-bedroom homes, with limited outlook and rear gardens that are little
more than small yards. But, the buildings are well laid out, creating positive vistas along
the axis of the Site, with views from Woodcote Grove to the Stable Block.

10.70 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that the outlook
and private amenity space can be compensated for by shared amenity space and well laid
out landscape.

Building F
10.71 On submitting the application, building F comprised a part 4, 5 and 6-storey building.

10.72 Inits initial response, Historic England set out that it considered that the baseline scenario
was not the present office building, but empty landscaped ground, which was the benefit
included in application ref: 14/01150/FUL.

10.73 Historic England’s initial response considered that flanking the Grade II* Listed building
with a taller residential block with a greater overall massing would weaken its status. In
combination with the recently built office building to the rear of the Site, the Grade II* Listed
building would be confronted by dominant structures in most views. Although the present
office block should not be considered the baseline for comparison, it is notable that the
proposed building would be two storeys higher than the current post-war building (the
conservation area’s most prominent detractor) and includes an eye-catching roof form.
The proposed building was not considered to respond to the scale, character and design
of the Listed building and was considered discordant and conspicuous in key views from
in front of the Grade II* Listed building and across the one remaining area of open land to
the rear. It would therefore cause harm to the Grade II* Listed building.

10.74 Following Historic England’s initial comments, the fifth floor of the proposed building was
removed and the fourth floor set back on the northern elevation (adjacent to Mansion
House) to reduce its massing. A recessed central section sought to reduce the scale of
this building. A contrasting fenestration approach of flint at ground floor providing a plinth
to the building and varying transparencies of glazing seeks to create a visual break in the
front elevation. These are framed by two bookend brick pavilions, which are detailed with
projecting brick courses. The recessed section has a reduced ridge height and the eastern
wing sees a reduction from four storeys to three, matching the western wing. The wing has
also been reduced in plan to allow space for the pedestrian access ramp from Ashley
Road.

10.75 In its updated response, Historic England acknowledged that the scale of building F has
been reduced by one storey with a set-back top storey and recessed central bays. Historic
England concluded that this reduces the prominence of Building F in key views of
Woodcote Grove and thus also the harm to the Grade II* listed building.

10.76 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that the reduction
of height and setting back of the top floor of this building has significantly reduced its
dominance on the Site and its massing should no longer compete with the Listed building.
The comment also sets out that brick is an appropriate material. This heavier materials
gives the building a lower centre of gravity, with the lightweight fourth floor.

Page 119



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

10.77 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer sets out that the entrance
to the Site from the northeast remains an unfortunate and confined relationship with the
vehicle traffic, parked cars and pedestrians sharing a relatively narrow route. It should be
noted that there are no objections from a safety perspective, from SCC Highways.

10.78 SPAB commented on the revised design of Block F. SPAB welcomes the reduction in
height and bulk of this building and consider it to be more acceptable than the previous
design for this building. The introduction of symmetry about a central recessed element,
with brick bookend pavilions is a more appropriate design response in this setting. The
removal of the two-storey mansard roof treatment and replacement with a visually lighter-
weight set-back top storey reduces the dominant character of this building which is a
positive change. As a consequence the impact of this block on the Listed Mansion House
has been reduced.

Conservation Area

10.79 The Heritage Statement sets out that the proposals seek to better reveal the historic
character of the Site, opening up the views between the Mansion House and the Stable
Block, as well as replicating a small terrace cottage typology. This helps to understand the
age of the Site as well as enhancing a sympathetic appearance between the Site and its
surroundings.

10.80 The proposals will alter the existing views of the Site from along Chalk Lane. The
introduction of new buildings, which are more responsive in terms of massing and material
character is considered a positive contribution to the Conservation Area.

10.81 The Listed buildings surrounding the Site derive their significance from their material
character and vernacular historic style, as well as their shared group value. The
contribution of the Site to the significance of the surrounding heritage assets is presently
undermined by the late twentieth century additions to the site, including the office buildings
to the north and south of the Stable Block. The replacement of these buildings with more
sensitively designed buildings, responding to the location, hierarchy, materials and
massing of the historic buildings within the Site are considered to enhance the wider setting
of the Listed buildings.

Harm and public benefits

10.82 Paragraph 190 of the NPPF sets out that Local planning authorities should identify and
assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal
(including by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the
available evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this into account when
considering the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict
between the heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

10.83 Paragraph 194 of the NPPF sets out that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a
designated heritage asset should require clear and convincing justification.

10.84 Historic England considers that the revised scheme is capable of meeting the requirements
of Paragraph 190 of the NPPF to avoid or minimise harm to significance. Officers are
required to decide if the remaining harm, which Historic England think is less than
substantial, has clear and convincing justification as required by paragraph 194 of the
NPPF before weighing it against the public benefits of the proposal in the manner
described in paragraph 19 of the NPPF.

10.85 The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer provided further

comments on 29 June 2020, to those referenced above. This summarises the harm to the
historic significance of the scheme:

Page 120



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

e Block A replaces a post-war large building with no historic or special architectural interest.
The proposal will result in little to no harm. This is considered to cause very much less than
substantial harm

e The proposed works mainly affect the interior parts of the Stable Block, which has been subject
to previous alterations. The proposal is considered less than substantial harm. The external
setting of the building also is attributed less than substantial harm, due to the opening of the
landscape and the reduced scale of adjacent buildings.

e Buildings C and D have little or no impact on the historic significance of the Site. These
comprises a reduced height and bulk than the existing building and should detract less from
Woodcote Grove. These buildings will have a better alignment, complimenting the Stables
Block. These two buildings are on balance considered beneficial and not harmful to any
significance of the building.

o Woodcote Grove should be caused no substantial harm by this proposal, provided that the
existing main central doors are retained. Subject to planning permission and Listed Building
Consent being granted, a condition secure this.

e Block F is a larger, but better designed building than existing. Its impact on the Site should
result in very much less than substantial harm.

10.86 Together, the Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer concludes that
the harm to the heritage significance of the whole Site is regarded as less than substantial.

10.87 In considering the above, the harm to the significance of the heritage assets at this Site is
considered less than substantial. It is necessary to consider the public benefits of the
proposal. In this case, the public benefits comprise the provision of new housing and
affordable housing, bringing buildings into viable use that are otherwise considered surplus
to requirements and a contribution to improve the pedestrian facilities and junction
improvements at Worple Road and Chalk Lane. The scheme benefits are considered to
outweigh the harm caused.

Summary

10.88 The harm to the significance of the heritage assets at this Site is considered less than
substantial. The proposal has been subject to a thorough design process, to present a
scheme that is considered acceptable from a design and heritage perspective. It proposes
various public benefits, which are considered to outweigh harm. As such, there are no
robust grounds to refuse this application on this aspect.

10.89 The proposal is considered to comply with policies CS5, DM8 and DM9.
Update
10.90 Planning Committee raised concerns that the development is considered too dense and
questioned whether there would be an improvement to the setting of Mansion House as a
result of the proposal and queried what weight could be attributed to Historic England’s

consultation responses. Furthermore, clarification was sought of the scheme’s public benefits.

10.91 Concerns from nearby residents have been raised in relation to the density of the
development. This has been considered under Officer’s response below.

Page 121



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

Applicant’s response

10.92 The Applicant does not propose to lessen the number of units proposed in order to reduce the
density of the scheme. But, within the updated planning statement, it is highlighted that the
scheme saw a reduction in units from 115 to 98, following the initial response from Historic
England. The Applicant refers to the NPPF, which seeks the efficient use of land and site
optimisation.

10.93 The updated planning statement sets out that a key benefit of the scheme is opening up
the Site to residents and visitors, allowing Mansion House to be enjoyed by the wider
community, as opposed to the current situation. Furthermore, the removal of the
conference centre and creation of a walkway between Mansion House and the Stable
Block opens reinstates views. The proposed pedestrian access gate at the north-western
corner of the Site would also serve to break up the dominant wall, allowing for passing
views of the Stable Block.

Officer’s response

10.94 The Local Planning Authority’s severe housing land supply deficit and the requirements
of the NPPF mean that all sites should be considered for optimisation. In May 2018, the
Licensing Planning Policy Committee took a decision to set aside Policy DM11 (Housing
Density) and Policy DM13 (Building Heights) as these policies were restricting
opportunities for growth in the Borough.

10.95 Significant weight should be given to the consultation responses from Historic England. It
considers that the scheme is capable of meeting the requirements of Paragraph 190 of the
NPPF, to avoid or minimise harm to significance. Officers acknowledge that the Site currently
comprises buildings and hardstanding that make a limited contribution to the significance of the
two listed buildings or the wider Conservation Area. The proposal seeks to remove unsightly
buildings from the Site and replace these with sensitively designed buildings, which respond to
the location, massing and materials of the historic buildings and the Conservation Area setting.
The Local Planning Authority’s Design and Conservation Officer concludes that the harm to the
heritage significance of the whole Site is regarded as less than substantial.

10.96 In considering comments from Historic England and the Local Planning Authority’s Design and
Conservation Officer, it is imperative to consider the scheme benefits. The proposal seeks the
conversion of listed buildings, which are considered surplus to requirements and which would fail
to attract office occupiers due to their constraints. It seeks the provision of new residential
dwellings, on-site affordable housing and a payment in-lieu. There is also a contribution to
improve pedestrian facilities and junction improvements at Worple Road and Chalk Lane. These
benefits are considered wide ranging and outweigh the scheme’s disadvantages.

10.97 In summary, the proposal seeks to remove buildings from the Site that do not currently enhance
the integrity of the listed buildings or the Conservation Area. The Application has worked
proactively to respond to comments from Historic England and the Local Planning Authority’s
Design and Conservation Officer, to present a well-considered scheme, which optimises the Site,
delivers a meaningful supply of new homes, whilst respecting the historic context.

11 Conclusion

11.1 A Full Planning Application has been submitted in tandem with this Listed Building
Consent application, under ref: 19/00999/FUL. The Full Planning Application was
presented to Planning Committee on 23 July 2020 with an Officer's recommendation for
approval. Planning Committee deferred the application on the basis that it required
further information on a range of matters, including:

. Block A

Page 122



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

12

Block F

Density

Housing Mix

Private amenity space, including details of playground
Heritage

Highways and car parking

Affordable housing

Trees

11.2  Whilst not heard or discussed, Planning Committee also took the decision to defer this
Listed Building Consent application. The Applicant has prepared additional information to
address the questions raised by Committee. The additional information was subject to
formal consultation.

11.3  The refurbishment and conversion of the Grade II* Listed Woodcote Grove and Grade I
Listed Stable Block to residential use is considered acceptable in principle. The internal
refurbishment is considered acceptable and the exterior alterations are considered to
preserve the special historic interest of the buildings.

11.4 The proposal seeks a coherent layout that opens up the link between the two Listed
buildings, achieved through sensitive design, the orientation of new buildings and careful
landscaping. The architectural character of the development is considered to respond to
the Site’s surroundings, but with a more contemporary and sustainable context.

11.5 The proposed development is considered to deliver an optimum viable use for the Listed
Buildings, helping to secure their longer-term future. The proposed adaptations and
alterations are considered suitably sensitive, preserving the special historical and
architectural character of these buildings and their setting.

11.6 It is recommended that Listed Building Consent is granted. The matter of planning
permission for the use and associated Section 106 Agreement is the subject of a separate
assessment.

Recommendation

12.1  Itis recommended that the scheme is supported and referred to the Secretary of State.

Part A: Refer to Secretary of State with a recommendation to grant Listed Building Consent,
subject to proposed conditions

Part B: Following confirmation from the Secretary of State that the matter is not to be called in,
delegation be given to the Head of Planning to determine the application securing:

Condition(s):

(1) The works hereby granted shall be commenced before the expiration of three years from
the date of this consent.

Reason: To comply with Section 18 (1) (a) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by Section 52 (4) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2005.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

LOC - Site Location Plan — Rev B — dated 19.05.2019
BLOC — Proposed Block Plan — Rev A — dated 31.07.2019

Page 123



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

(4)

001 - Existing Site Plan — dated 26.07.2019

002 - Existing Coach House — Rev B — dated 30.07.2019

003 - Existing Conference Centre — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019

004 - Existing Woodcote Grove — Plans — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019

005 - Existing Woodcote Grove — Elevations — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019
006 - Existing Atkins Office Building — Ground Floor Plan — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019
007 - Existing Atkins Office Building — Typical Floor Plan — Rev A — dated 26.07.2019
008 - Existing Atkins Office Building — Elevations - Rev A — dated 26.07.2019
009 - Existing Atkins Office Building - Elevations - Rev A — dated 26.07.19
010 - Existing Reprographics Centre — Floor Plans and Elevations - Rev A — dated
26.07.2019

011 — Proposed Site Plan — Rev R — dated 28.07.2020

020 — Block A - Floor Plans — Rev D — dated 18.12.2019

021 — Block A — Elevations — Rev D - dated 27.03.2020

022 — Block B - Floor Plans & Elevations — Rev B — dated 30.07.2019

023 — Block C and D — Ground Floor Plan — Rev B — dated 31.07.2019

024 — Block C and D - First Floor Plan — Rev B — dated 31.07.2019

025 — Block C — Elevations — Rev B - dated 31.07.2019

026 - Block D — Elevations — Rev B - dated 31.07.2019

027 - Block E - Floor Plans — Rev C — dated 30.10.2019

028 - Block E — Elevations — Rev B — dated 31.07.2019

029 - Block F - Lower Ground Floor Plan — Rev F — dated 30.07.2020

030 - Block F - Upper Ground Floor Plan — Rev G — dated 05.02.2020

031 — Block F - First & Second Floor Plan — Rev H — dated 05.02.2020

032 - Block F - Third Floor Plan — Rev G — dated 27.01.2020

033 - Block F - Fourth Floor Plan — Rev E — dated 17.12.2019

035 — Block F - Elevations Sheet 1 — Rev G - dated 27.01.2020

036 — Block F — Elevations — Rev G — dated 27.01.2020

037 - Block F - Detailed Bay Sections— Rev A — dated 27.01.2020

038 - Block F - Detailed Bay Sections - Rev A — dated 27.01.2020

039 - Block F - Detailed Bay Sections— Rev A — dated 27.01.2020

040 - Site Sections AA-FF — Rev E — dated 27.01.2020

041 - Site Sections— Rev E - dated 27.01.2020

042 - Block E - Site Boundary Treatment — dated 05.02.2020

050 - Bin Stores - Plans and Elevations — dated 31.07.2019

J4/01030 — Fence Standard Install Details — dated 04.01.2017

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in
accordance with the approved plans to comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy
(2007)

All works of making good and repair associated with the proposed works shall match the
existing adjacent fabric in material details, finish and design detail, unless otherwise
agreed in the plans approved in this planning consent

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed buildings
and in the interest of the character and appearance of the conservation area in
accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and
DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

Prior to the commencement of works, a survey of the Grade II* Listed Woodcote Grove
including a photographic survey shall be prepared to record its condition prior to
development and shall show all areas associated with the approved works including
exposed historic fabric. The said report shall be submitted to the local the planning
authority for approval and copies sent to the borough library at Bourne Hall

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed buildings
and in the interest of the character and appearance of the conservation area in

Page 124



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

®)

(6)

(7)

(8)

©)

accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and
DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

Prior to commencement of works, specifications of works with section drawings through
the Grade II* Listed Woodcote Grove, showing proposed changes in floor levels around
introduced steps and stairs and their existing materials altered by those changes shall be
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. No works shall commence
until these specifications are approved and shall carried out in accordance with the
approved specifications.

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed buildings
and in the interest of the character and appearance of the conservation area in
accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and
DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

The timber double doors in the archway of Grade Il Stables Block shall be retained and
maintained accordingly.

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed buildings
and in the interest of the character and appearance of the conservation area in
accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and
DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

The existing main central doors of Grade II* Listed Woodcote Grove shall be retained
and maintained accordingly.

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed buildings
and in the interest of the character and appearance of the conservation area in
accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and
DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

Prior to commencement of works, specifications of works showing changes to provide
metal balustrading with a narrow steel handrail and vertical spindles to the wing terraces
of Grade II* Listed Woodcote Grove shall be submitted. No works shall commence until
these specifications are approved and shall carried out in accordance with the approved
specifications.

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed buildings
and in the interest of the character and appearance of the conservation area in
accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and
DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

Prior to the commencement of works to the Chalk Lance boundary wall a method
statement with detail drawings (at a scale 1:10) is required to be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority, showing the exact location and detail design
of the entrance, with an assessment of the historic significance of those parts of the wall
to be removed. No work relating to this entrance shall comment until the local authority
has approved these documents.

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the listed buildings
and in the interest of the character and appearance of the conservation area in
accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8, DM9 and
DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

Page 125



23.09.2020 19/00998/LBA Agenda Item 4

Informatives

1. In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form or our statutory policies in the Core Strategy,
Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as
well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure that the applicant has
been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered
favourably.

2. Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as - the
demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the extension or
alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services, underpinning works,
and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must
be given to the Council’'s Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for approval before
any building work is commenced.

Page 126



P Historic England
A~ g Agenda Item 4

Appendix 1
Ms Virginia Johnson Direct Dial: 0207 973 3655
Epsom & Ewell Borough Council
Town Hall Our ref: LO1177310
The Parade
Epsom
Surrey
KT18 5BY 18 March 2020

Dear Ms Johnson

Arrangements for Handling Heritage Applications Direction 2015
& T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015
& Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990

WOODCOTE GROVE ASHLEY ROAD EPSOM SURREY KT18 5BW
Application Nos 19/00998/LBA & 19/00999/FUL

Thank you for your letters of 20 February 2020 regarding further information on the
above applications for listed building consent and planning permission.

Historic England Advice

| am writing to give updated advice following receipt of an amended scheme for the
redevelopment of Woodcote Grove and its environs. Since our advice of 10 October
2019 a number of changes have been made to the proposal and we offer the following
observations to assist your Council in reaching a view on this proposal.

Historic England is content that the revised ground floor plan for Woodcote Grove,
which largely retains the principal rooms in their historic form, reduces the harm to the
significance of the grade II* listed building and thus that the concern we raised in our
letter of 10 October 2019 has been addressed.

Our letter of 10 October 2019 also raised concerns that the scale, massing and
proximity of Block F would diminish the prominence of Woodcote Grove in key views
of its principal and garden elevations, thus harming an appreciation that the mansion
was designed as a high status building and the focal point of its landscaped setting.
We therefore considered that block F would cause harm to the significance of the
grade II* listed building. To address this concern the scale of block F has been
reduced by one storey with a set-back top storey and the central bays have been
recessed. We conclude this reduces the prominence of Block F in key views of
Woodcote Grove and thus also the harm to the grade II* listed building.

;\\“‘.M:d’» & 4TH FLOOR, CANNON BRIDGE HOUSE, 25 DOWGATE HILL, LONDON EC4R 2YA *
?M? Telephone 020 7973 3700 Stonewall
Yrspps HistoricEngland.org.uk DIVERSITY CHAMPION

Historic England is subject to both the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and Environmental Information Regulations (2004). Any
Information held by the organisation can be requested for release under this legislation.

Page 127



PR Historic England Agenda Item 4
A Agpendix 1

Harm to heritage significance has also be minimised by reducing the height of Block A
meaning that the sense that Woodgrove Grove is a secluded building set within its
own grounds beyond a high boundary wall, will be sustained to a greater degree.

Overall Historic England considers that the revised scheme is capable of meeting the
requirements of Paragraph 190 to avoid or minimise harm to significance. Your
Council will need to decide if the remaining harm, which we think is less than
substantial, has clear and convincing justification as required by paragraph 194 before
weighing it against the public benefits of the proposal in the manner described in
paragraph 196.

In reaching a decision on this proposal we think your Council should also consider
whether the design of new development meets the aspirations of paragraph 192 (c)
which notes that Local Authorities should take account of the desirability of new
development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness. We
also suggest your Council should consider whether the new development is
sympathetic to local character and historic including the surrounding built environment
and landscape setting as advocated by paragraph 127 (c).

If your Council is minded to approve this application, high quality materials and
detailing will be important given the historic sensitivities of this site and we would
recommend a number of conditions be imposed to control landscaping and building
details and materials for both. We would be content to defer to the advice of your
Conservation Officer for the wording of these conditions but would be pleased to offer
advice if helpful.

Recommendation

We consider that the applications meet the requirements of the NPPF, in particular
paragraph numbers 190 and 194. In determining these applications you should bear
in mind the statutory duty of sections 16(2) and 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special regard to the desirability of
preserving listed buildings or their setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which they possess and section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to pay special attention to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas.

Your authority should take these representations into account in determining the
applications. If there are any material changes to the proposals, or you would like
further advice, please contact us. Please advise us of the decision in due course.

Yours sincerely

;\\“‘.M:d’» & 4TH FLOOR, CANNON BRIDGE HOUSE, 25 DOWGATE HILL, LONDON EC4R 2YA *
?M? Telephone 020 7973 3700 Stonewall
Yrspps HistoricEngland.org.uk DIVERSITY CHAMPION

Historic England is subject to both the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and Environmental Information Regulations (2004). Any
Information held by the organisation can be requested for release under this legislation.

Page 128



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

A Historic England
Aaa 5

%@a&mfuj

Alice Brockway
Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas
E-mail: alice.brockway@HistoricEngland.org.uk

’ ‘ Stonewall
DIVERSITY CHAMPION

4TH FLOOR, CANNON BRIDGE HOUSE, 25 DOWGATE HILL, LONDON EC4R 2YA

AB,
S
B & Telephone 020 7973 3700
Ysap HistoricEngland.org.uk
Historic England is subject to both the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and Environmental Information Regulations (2004). Any
Information held by the organisation can be requested for release under this legislation.
Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



	Agenda
	2 15 Beech Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT17 4NH
	3 Woodcote Grove, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT18 5BW, 19/00999/FUL
	Woodcote Grove, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT18 5BW Appendix 1

	4 Woodcote Grove, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT18 5BW, 19/00998/LBA
	Woodcote Grove, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT18 5BW Appendix 1


